
 

Neuadd Cyngor Ceredigion, Penmorfa, 
Aberaeron, Ceredigion SA46 0PA 

ceredigion.gov.uk 
 

 

1 
 

10 October 2022 
 

Lisa Evans 
 

01545 574177 
 

Dear Sir / Madam 
 
I write to inform you that a Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordinating 
Committee will be held at the HYBRID - NEUADD CYNGOR CEREDIGION, 
PENMORFA, ABERAERON / REMOTELY VIA VIDEO CONFERRENCE on Friday, 
14 October 2022 at 10.00 am for the transaction of the following business: 
  
1.   Apologies  

  
2.   Disclosures of personal interest (including whipping declarations) 

Members are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any 
personal and prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained in 
this agenda in accordance with the provisions of the Local 
Government Act 2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct. In addition, Members must declare any prohibited 
party whip which the Member has been given in relation to the 
meeting as per the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011  
  

3.   Draft Corporate Strategy 2022-27 (Pages 3 - 116) 
  

4.   To confirm minutes of the Coordinating meeting held on 26 
September 2022 and to consider any matters arising from those 
minutes (Pages 117 - 120) 
 

 
 

Members are reminded to sign the Attendance Register 
 

A Translation Services will be provided at this meeting and those present are 
welcome to speak in Welsh or English at the meeting. 

 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Miss Lowri Edwards 
Corporate Lead Officer: Democratic Services 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.ceredigion.gov.uk/


To:  Chairman and Members of Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordinating 
Committee 
 The remaining Members of the Council for information only. 



 

1 
 

Cyngor Sir CEREDIGION County Council 
 
REPORT TO: 
 

 Overview and Scrutiny Coordinating Committee 

DATE: 
 

 14 October 2022 

LOCATION:  Council Chamber / Remotely Via Video Conference 
 

TITLE: 
 

 Draft Corporate Strategy 2022-27 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: To present the draft Corporate Strategy 2022-2027  
including Corporate Well-being Objectives  
 

REASON SCRUTINY HAVE 
REQUESTED THE 
INFORMATION: 
 

 To consider the draft Corporate Strategy 2022-2027  
including the new draft Corporate Well-being Objectives 
prior to presenting to Cabinet and Council for final  
approval 

 
CABINET PORTFOLIO 
AND CABINET MEMBER: 
 

Councillor Bryan Davies, Leader of the Council and  
Cabinet Member for Policy, Performance,  
Partnerships and Democratic Services 

BACKGROUND: 
 
Following the local elections in May 2022, a new Corporate Strategy is required to set out the 
Council’s new Corporate Well-being Objectives (corporate priorities) and ambitions for the 
next five years. The Strategy illustrates how the Council will seek to enhance the social, 
economic, environmental and cultural well-being for the citizens and communities of 
Ceredigion and also maximise its contribution to the seven National Well-being Goals in 
accordance with the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  

 
CURRENT SITUATION: 
 
The draft Corporate Strategy 2022-27 has now been prepared and sets out the proposed 
Corporate Well-being Objectives for the next five years. The draft Corporate Strategy is 
attached at Appendix 1.  
 
The core purpose of the Corporate Strategy is to illustrate how the authority will support and 
promote sustainability and the wellbeing of the citizens of Ceredigion, through its long-term 
Vision and its Corporate Well-being Objectives. The proposed Corporate Well-being Objectives 
are: 
 
• Boosting the Economy, Supporting Businesses and Enabling Employment 
• Creating Caring and Healthy Communities 
• Providing the Best Start in Life and Enabling Learning at All Ages 
• Creating Sustainable, Green and Well-connected Communities 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

2 
 

They have been identified through extensive analysis of evidence and engagement with 
residents, including the ambitions of the new political administration, the Ceredigion 
Assessment of Local Well-being and the recent public consultation on the draft strategy.   
 
The objectives have also been identified through the lens of the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015. This involved identifying how we could maximise our 
contribution to the national well-being goals and also ensure that we used the sustainable 
development principle to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising 
the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.  

 
The draft Corporate Strategy includes an action plan detailing the steps necessary to deliver  
each of the Corporate Well-being Objectives. Progress is reviewed each year which will be 
published in the Council’s Self-Assessment Report.  

 
Consultation on the draft Strategy and Corporate Well-being Objectives took place between 24 
August and 30 September 2022. The Consultation Feedback Report is attached at Appendix 
2. Any amendments from the consultation have been incorporated into the final document.  

 
Has an Integrated Impact 
Assessment been 
completed? If, not, please 
state why 

Yes  

Summary: All of our Priorities seek to establish a more Equal 
Wales by ensuring equal opportunities for employment, housing, 
education, healthier lifestyles and sustainable communities. 
Long term: The Corporate Strategy looks at the 

Priorities for the Council for the next 5 years. 
The new Corporate Well-being Objectives 
seek to maximise the contribution that will be 
made to the seven well-being goals. 

Integration: The priorities together seek to impact on the 
social, economic, environmental and cultural 
well-being of the people. 

Collaboration: Partnership working and collaboration on 
the delivery of services is an important 
element of the Strategy. 

WELLBEING OF FUTURE 
GENERATIONS: 

Involvement: Consideration has been given to the 
ambitions of the new administration, 
Corporate Managers workshop, the 
Ceredigion Assessment of Local Well-being 
and the public consultation on the Strategy 
and the Corporate Well-being Objectives.  

Page 4



 

3 
 

Prevention: All of the Corporate Well-being Objectives 
seek to embed the prevention agenda. 

RECOMMENDATION (S): That Members consider and agree the draft Corporate Strategy 
2022-2027 including the Corporate Well-being Objectives prior 
to consideration by Cabinet and Council 
 

REASON FOR 
RECOMMENDATION (S): 

To progress the preparation of the Corporate Strategy 2022-
2027.  

Appendices: 1) Draft Corporate Strategy 2022-27 
2) Corporate Strategy 2022-27 Consultation Feedback Report 
3) Integrated Impact Assessment 

 Contact Name: Rob Starr  

 Designation: Performance and Research Officer 

 Date of Report: 9 September 2022 

 Acronyms:  
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATE STRATEGY  
2022-27 

new 

Mae’r ddogfen hon hefyd ar gael yn Gymraeg 
This document is also available in Welsh 

P
age 7



      
      

CONTENTS 

 Boosting the Economy, Supporting Businesses and  
 Enabling Employment 

 Creating Caring and Healthy Communities       

 Providing the Best Start in Life and Enabling  
 Learning at All Ages 

 Creating Sustainable, Greener and Well-Connected  
 Communities 

11 

17 

23 

29 

 Responding to COVID-19 and Developing New  
 Ways of Working 35 

 Introduction              2 

 About Ceredigion               3 

 Key Achievements            5 

 Our Council              7 

 Money and Finance            7 

 Transformation             8 

 Vision and Priorities            9 

 Improving Outcomes            6 

 Contribution to the National Well-being Goals 10 

 Sustainable Development          38 

 Managing Our Performance         37 

 Home of the National Eisteddfod 2022       36 

 Our Performance           39 

Designed using resources from Freepik.com 

P
age 8



       

      INTRODUCTION 

Welcome to Ceredigion County Council’s 
new Corporate Strategy 2022-27. 
Following the Local Elections in May 2022, 
this document sets out our new Corporate 
Well-being Objectives and ambitions for 
the next five years.  

Over the past five years the Council has 
continued to deliver quality services and  
improve the social, cultural, economic and 
environmental well-being of Ceredigion. We 
have positively embraced our duties under 
the Well-being of Future Generations Act 
and embedded the Sustainable 
Development Principle across the Council.  

We would like to thank the previous 
administration for pushing ahead with key 
investment projects such as Growing Mid 
Wales, school improvements and of course 
co-ordinating our response to the COVID-19 
pandemic. Our achievements over the last 
term are numerous and include: 

• Signing of the Final Deal Agreement of 
the Mid Wales Growth Deal which will 
result in a combined investment of 
£110m into the Mid Wales economy 

• £10.8m of capital funding secured 
through the Levelling Up Fund and 
£2.5m secured through the Community 
Renewal Fund  

• A 61% reduction in carbon emissions 
since 2007 saving £6m to reinvest. 

• The Council’s recycling rate of over 70% 
remains amongst the best in Wales 

Councillor Bryan Davies 

Leader of  Ceredigion County 
Council 

2 

Eifion Evans 

Chief Executive of Ceredigion 
County Council 

From the Leader and Chief Executive of Ceredigion 
County Council  

• The new area school for Drefach, Ysgol 
Dyffryn Cledlyn opened its doors in 
September 2017 

In this document, we turn our attention to 
the next five years and set out our 
commitments to local residents to build 
on these achievements.  

Following extensive analysis of evidence 
and engagement with residents, we have 
identified our new Corporate Well-being 
Objectives as:  

• Boosting the Economy, Supporting 
Businesses and Enabling Employment 

 

• Creating Caring and Healthy 
Communities 

 

• Providing the Best Start in Life and 
Enabling Learning at All Ages 

 

• Creating Sustainable, Green and Well-
connected Communities 

 

It is into these areas that we will direct our 
resources to re-invigorate the local 
economy and provide a prosperous, 
healthy, safe and affordable environment 
in which the citizens and communities of 
Ceredigion can thrive.  

In doing so we will continue to apply and 
embed the principles of the Well-being of 
Future Generations Act and maximise our 
contribution to the National Well-being 
Goals.  

We are working hard to bring economic 
recovery and success to Ceredigion 

through supporting local businesses, 
tackling poverty, and providing greater 
opportunities for young people to stay or 
return to their local communities.  

During this term we will also be working 
collaboratively with local Housing 
Associations to increase our stock of 
social housing to meet the needs of local 
people, and discouraging ownership of 
second homes in the county.   

We will also be pushing ahead with 
implementing our ground-breaking 
Through Age Well-being Programme to 
transform the delivery of social care and 
ensure people get the right level and type 
of support at the right time. 

Everyone recognises the importance of 
being connected, and we will be working 
to improve digital and transport 
connectivity across the County, through 
supporting the rollout of 4G Broadband, 
pushing for greater road safety and 
campaigning for greater provision of 
active travel routes.  

Our ambition remains to be a net zero 
carbon Council by 2030. In order to 
achieve this we will continue to ensure 
that decarbonisation and climate change 
initiatives underpin all that we do as we 
seek to protect our beautiful environment 
now and for future generations.  

We hope you enjoy reading about the 
ambitions for our County, and look 
forward to reporting back on progress.  

P
age 9



3 

ABOUT CEREDIGION 
Ceredigion covers an area of 1,900km² and 
is mostly made-up of agricultural land, 
moorland and forestry, with the upland 
areas to the east forming a significant 
portion of the Cambrian Mountains.  

The County has a variety of natural 
landscapes and habitats: coastal cliffs and 
beaches, marshlands and open upland. The 
County’s landscapes and natural 
environment are highly valued by local 
people and visitors alike.  

Ceredigion has a high proportion of land 
recognised for its high environmental value 
through official designations, including two 
internationally important wetland areas (the 
Dyfi estuary and Cors Caron); 13 Special 
Areas of Conservation (SAC); around 100 
Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI’s) 
seven National Nature Reserves and three 
Local Nature Reserves. The Cambrian 
Mountains uplands are important for wildlife 
as are the wet ‘rhos pastures’. 

The County is bordered by over 90km of 
coastline, with four sections (around 35km) 
designated as Heritage Coast. The Wales 
Coast Path follows a 60 mile (96km) route 
between the Teifi and Dyfi estuaries. The 
Coast Path links towns and villages dotted 
along the spectacular Cardigan Bay 
coastline.  

The rivers in the Ceredigion catchment are 
the Rheidol, Ystwyth, Clarach, Aeron and 
Teifi rivers. Ceredigion’s river catchment is 
varied and distinctive, with each river 
flowing through a variety of landscapes, 
before reaching the sea. The Teifi River is 
one of the longest rivers in Southwest 
Wales, at 122km long.  

The attractive landscapes and remote 
locations in Ceredigion form the basis of 

‘rural well-being’ tourism, which draws in 
many visitors to the area. Overall, there almost 
3 million visitors to Ceredigion each year. 

Although the environment has always been a 
valued feature of well-being, over the past few 
years protecting the environment has become 
much more important to people. The adverse 
effects of climate change on the environment 
and nature are far more recognised and 
people want to do more to protect our 
environment. In 2020 Ceredigion County 
Council declared a global climate emergency, 
prior to this the Council had also committed to 
being a net zero carbon council by 2030. 

The economy of Ceredigion is fairly typical of 
that of many rural and coastal areas. A high 
proportion of jobs are in the tourism industry 
(12.9%), wholesale and retail (12.9%) and 
human health and social work activities 
(12.3%). Education is the largest sector in the 
county, employing around 4,300 people and 
accounting for around 13.9% of jobs in the 
county.  

Unlike many rural areas, the County has two 
universities at Aberystwyth and the University 
of Wales Trinity St. David’s Campus at 
Lampeter. It is also home to national 
institutions such as the National Library of 
Wales. The knowledge economy is strong in 
Ceredigion and it has a growing ‘green 
economy’ focusing on low carbon emissions, 
efficient use of resources and being socially 
inclusive.  

Self-employment is an important element in 
the local economy, and Ceredigion has one of 
the highest proportions of self-employed 
people nationally. Many are farmers with 
others working in a range of established small-
scale enterprises such as building repair and 
maintenance. 

The Aberystwyth Farmers’ Market 
goes from strength to strength and is 
held twice monthly throughout the 
year. The market has been running for 
over twenty years in the town and 
continues to be successful, hosting up 
to 25 stalls every first and third 
Saturday of every month. The market is 
administered via Food Centre Wales at 
Horeb, Llandysul.  

P
age 10



4 

The vast majority (99%) of enterprises in 
Ceredigion are ‘micro’ or ‘small’ sized (up to 
49 employees). Only 1% of enterprises in 
Ceredigion have fifty or more employees. The 
survival rates of newly established businesses 
are consistently amongst the highest 
nationally, making Ceredigion a great place to 
start and grow a business 

Ceredigion is one of the heartlands of the 
Welsh language, despite a substantial student 
population. The 2011 Census showed that 
47.3% of Ceredigion’s residents could speak 
Welsh, the third highest of all counties 
nationwide. 

There are 43 schools in Ceredigion, a mixture 
of primary, secondary and through age 
schools. 37 are Welsh medium schools, 
meaning that the majority of our younger 

population are learning and using the Welsh 
language from a young age.  

Ceredigion’s Welsh in Education  Strategic 
Plan 2022-32 aims for all pupil’s in the 
authority’s schools to attend Welsh-medium 
immersion education until the age of seven 
and increases the pupil’s choice  to follow a 
fully bilingual path through their career and 
in their future work and social life. It also 
contributes to the Wales national well-being 
goal and Welsh Government’s aim of 
increasing the number of Welsh speakers to 
1 million by 2050.  

Ceredigion is a County well known for its 
cultural and heritage sites. There are castles 
and museums situated across the County, 
which draw many tourists to the area 
throughout the year. 

OUR COUNTY IN NUMBERS 

71,500 
people 

46.8 years 
average age 

43 
schools and 9,590 pupils 

6 
leisure facilities 

2,805 
active enterprises 

47.3% 
of residents are Welsh speakers 

2,265km 
of roads 

2,500km 
of bridleways and footpaths 

4% 
BAME population* 

8,350 
university students 

10% 
with a disability 

31,246 
households 

47.3% 
Of residents are Welsh 
speakers 

*BAME = Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic population 

The County is made up of three 
geographical areas covering the north, mid 
and southern parts, shown in the diagram 
below right. 

North 

Mid 

South 

P
age 11



KEY ACHIEVEMENTS 

£10.8m of capital funding 
secured through the 
Levelling Up Fund  
2022-25 

£2.5m 
of revenue funding 
secured through the 
Community Renewal 
Fund for 2022/23 

70.2% of wase collected by 
the Council was 
composted or reused, 
consistently amongst 
the best nationally 

61% reduction in carbon 
emissions since 2007 
saving £6m to reinvest 

£98,000 
of Carers Fund 
distributed to unpaid 
carers in Ceredigion 

15,000+ food parcels 
delivered to medically 
vulnerable residents 
during the COVID-19 

£5.8m secured to refurbish 
and build extension at 
Ysgol Uwchradd 
Aberteifi, as one of a 
number of investments 
in local schools 

Gold 
Standard awarded to various 

local schools in the 
Welsh Language 
Charter, including 
Gynradd Llanilar  and 
Dyffryn Cledlyn  

5 

INVESTING IN CEREDIGION 

Boosting the Economy, Supporting 
Businesses and Enabling Employment 

Creating Caring and Healthy Communities 

Providing the Best Start in Life and 
Enabling Learning at All Ages 

Creating Sustainable, Greener and Well-
Connected Communities 

Ceredigion  

Consultants and contractors being 
appointed to deliver the new 

£11.5m Aeron Valley area school, 
and the new £5.4m extension at 

Ysgol Gymraeg, Aberystwyth 

£2.6m school redevelopment at 
Cardigan Primary School 

A number of Welsh Government 
Transforming Towns Place 
making grants and strategic 

projects have been secured for a 
range of partners in Ceredigion 

Over £30m will be spent on the 
coastal defence schemes in 
Aberaeron and Aberystwyth 

New £1.2m Well-being Centre in 
Lampeter 

New £300,000 Dementia Wing at 
Hafan Deg Care Home in Lampeter 

Over £250,000 has been secured 
to improve people’s access to 

Ceredigion’s natural assets through 
the Local Nature Partnership   

Helped fund the development of 
Cardigan as a Smart Town, 

applying technologies such as Wifi, 
Internet of Things and a popular 

town App to allow traders, Cardigan 
Town Council and Ceredigion 

County Council to measure 
information such as footfall and 

popular areas of town 

P
age 12



IMPROVING OUTCOMES 

In June 2022 at the Wales Regional Energy 
Efficiency Awards, Ceredigion County 
Council’s Energy Efficiency Schemes scooped 
2 awards.  

The Energy Efficiency Awards recognise the 
work being undertaken by the energy 
efficiency sector in Wales. The measures were 
introduced to help homeowners reduce their 
energy bills, tackle fuel poverty and reduce 
carbon emissions. 

The Council has been delivering the ECO 
Local Authority Flexibility scheme along with 
the Warm Homes Cozy Ceredigion Scheme for 
a number of years. These schemes have seen 
a number of insulation measures and heating 
systems being installed in properties 
improving their energy efficiency. 

To date, the Council has invested over £5 
million in energy efficiency and carbon 
reduction projects, and this investment has 
saved £2.8m to date.  

Healthy 

Environment 

January 2022 saw the signing of the final deal 
agreement of the Mid Wales Growth Deal by 
the Welsh Government, UK Government and 
Ceredigion and Powys County Councils.  

The Growth Deal is a ground-breaking 
partnership to bring a combined investment of 
£110m from UK and Welsh Government, 
which is expected to lever in significant 
additional investment from other public and 
private sources to maximise the impact in the 
Mid Wales region. 

This milestone is significant as the 
programmes and projects supported by the 
Growth Deal are expected to produce wider 
social and economic benefits, such as 
enhanced quality of life, creating business 
opportunities following the impact of COVID-
19, decarbonisation in industry and 
consideration of climate change impacts. 

The potential outcomes that are achievable in 
Mid Wales through Growth Deal investment 
are: 

• To create between 1,100 and 1,400 new 
jobs in Mid Wales by 2032. 

• To support a net additional GVA uplift of 
between £570 million and £700 million for 
the Mid Wales Economy by 2032. 

• To deliver a total investment of up to £400 
million in the Mid Wales Economy by 
2032. 

Creating 

Opportunities 

During the COVID-19 pandemic around 2,900 
residents from young people to families to 
carers were supported through regular 
‘Keeping in Touch’ calls from Council staff in 
Porth Cymorth Cynnar to check on their well-
being and provide an opportunity to talk to 
someone whilst in lockdown, helping to 
reduce social isolation and loneliness. 

Supporting 

vulnerable people 

The first residents at Aberystwyth’s new extra 
care scheme have spoken about how it has 
transformed their lives, from sparking new 
friendships to providing the platform for a 
fresh start in life. 

Maes y Môr, provided by Wales & West 
Housing in partnership with Ceredigion 
County Council, opened in October at Pen-yr-
Angor, overlooking the town and harbour. But 
for many of its new residents, it has offered 
much more than just spectacular sea views. 
 
Their new homes provide easy access to a 
range of facilities, 24-hour on-site care and 
support as well as a Wellbeing Officer, 
ensuring that residents lead an independent, 
healthy, and fulfilling life. 

Independent and 

Fulfilling Lives 

The last two years have shown just how critical digital connectivity is for Wales’ businesses, public 
services and communities. Continued investment and lobbying by the Council has led to the 
improvement of digital connectivity across the County. For example, the provision of Fibre to the 
Premises (FTTP) broadband has increased from 20% to 28.3%.   

Improved digital connectivity increases not only innovation and productivity across the economy, it 
also keeps people and communities connected. The Council will continue to support 
improvements to digital connectivity, such as the rollout of 4G Broadband, to help provide the 
connectivity that businesses and people need, tackle digital exclusion and increase opportunities 
for all.  

Connected 

Ceredigion 

Strong 

Communities 

Ceredigion Museum is delighted to have been 
awarded £115,894 development funding by 
the National Lottery Heritage Fund for the 
following project: Perthyn 'belonging to/
possessing': An exploration of how collections 
can create community in Ceredigion. 

Perthyn is an ambitious project that aims to 
ensure that every Ceredigion resident can find 
something in the museum collection that 
resonates with their sense of identity and 
values, regardless of their age, gender, 
ethnicity, beliefs, sexuality, ability or other 
characteristics that they identify with. 

6 

P
age 13



The frequency of local government elections 
in Wales has been increased from four to 
five years, in order to avoid clashes with 
Senedd elections, meaning the next 
Ceredigion Council election will take in May 
2027. 

You can find out more about the 
Committees of the Council and access 
Reports, Agendas and Minutes on the 
Council’s website:  

https://council.ceredigion.gov.uk/
mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1 

 

 

 

MONEY AND FINANCE 

The Council’s Medium-Term Financial 
Strategy sets out how the Council plans its 
budget annually and over the next 3 years. It 
supports the overall management of the 
Council’s key resources to meet its objectives.  

The Council`s expenditure supports the 
delivery of its Corporate Strategy and the 
delivery of its Corporate Well-being 
Objectives. Despite the COVID-19 pandemic, 
Ceredigion County Council continues to 
demonstrate an open desire to improve 
services and invest in better resources and 
facilities.  

The financial objective is for the careful and 
responsible use of resources and to ensure 
that the financial resilience of the Council is 
maintained and strengthened. In order to 
meet the budgetary challenges it faces, the 

OUR COUNCIL 

Council continues to implement back office 
efficiencies, develop alternative delivery 
methods whilst also sustaining services. The 
following charts show where the money comes 
from and how it is spent.  

7 

At the local elections in May 2022, Ceredigion 
residents returned 38 councillors in 34 wards 
across the County.  

The new administration is a Plaid Cymru 
majority with 20 councillors, along with 9 
independents, 7 Welsh Liberal Democrats, 1 
Welsh Labour and 1 GWLAD. The new Leader 
of the Council is Councillor Bryan Davies and 
Councillor Ifan Davies is the current Chairman 
of the Council.  

Local Councillors are elected by the 
community to decide how the council should 
carry out its various activities. They represent 
public interest as well as individuals living 
within the ward in which he or she has been 
elected to serve a term of office.  

COUNCIL 
MONEY  COMES 

FROM... 

Welsh Government (72%) 

Council Tax (28%) 

Schools and Culture £48.86m ⚫ 
Porth Cynnal (Specialist Through Age Services)  £21.95m ⚫ 
Finance and Procurement  £20.86m ⚫ 
Highways and Environmental Services £16.31m ⚫ 
Porth Gofal (Targeted Intervention Services)  £10.24m ⚫ 
Leadership Group  £6.94m ⚫ 
Customer Contact  £5.45m ⚫ 
Levies, Council Tax Premium and Reserves £4.48m ⚫ 
Democratic Services  £3.96m ⚫ 
Economy and Regeneration  £3.28m ⚫ 
Porth Cymorth Cynnar (Community Well-being and 
Learning) 

£3.16m ⚫ 

Partnerships, Performance and Public Protection  £2.18m ⚫ 
People and Organisation  £2.01m ⚫ 
Legal and Governance  £1.48m ⚫ 

Based on service expenditure in 2020/21, showing 

revenue funding only and excludes income 

generated by the Council 

Local Government elections across 
Wales took place on 5th May 2022 

HOW THE 
MONEY IS 
SPENT... 

Ceredigion County Council Political Administration 
following Local Government Elections 2022 

P
age 14



TRANSFORMATION 

6 

Ceredigion is investing in new technology to 
transform the way services are provided to our 
customers. This is to ensure they meet 
growing demands and are sustainable in the 
future, and also provide an enhanced 
experience for our customers.  

The Through Age Well-being Programme that 
is transforming social care and the Customer 
Contact Centre called ‘CLIC’ are two good 
examples of this.  

Through-Age Well-being  

The priorities aim to enable the delivery of 
services that will enhance the social, 
economic, environmental and cultural well-
being for the people of Ceredigion. 

Providing support for all ages and needs is a 
significant challenge for the Council with 
limited resources. The profile of society and 
demographics have changed considerably 

over the last decade with a significant 
increase in the prevalence and impact of 
substance misuse, poor mental health and 
domestic abuse and older age groups living 
in Ceredigion. As a consequence, demand 
for certain services has increased placing a 
greater financial pressure on those service 
areas.  

The Through Age and Wellbeing strategy 
sets out the vision and approach that will be 
taken to transform how the wellbeing and 
safety of the people of Ceredigion is 
supported.  

To achieve our vision we have developed a 
Through Age and Wellbeing operating model 
that is designed to ensure people get the 
right level and type of support, at the right 
time, to prevent, reduce or delay the need 
for ongoing support, and to maximise 
people’s independence and to be able to 

remain in their own home in their own 
community wherever possible.  

Customer Contact 

The CLIC Team is the face and voice of 
Ceredigion County Council. Whether calling the 
Contact entre with a query regarding bins, 
checking Council Tax or submitting an 
application to the Housing Team, the customer 
comes into contact with CLIC.  

Our Customer Contact Centre is an example of 
how we’re using new technology to provide an 
enhanced customer experience. All initial 
contacts to the Council are received and 
tracked by the Contact Centre through the 
Customer Relationship Management (CRM) 
system. This provides an effective way to 
manage the increasing number of contacts we 
receive, provide a higher quality, more tailored 
service and enhance the customer experience. 
For our customers: 

• It is easier to make initial contact - just one 
telephone number and one email address. 

• Our advisors are trained to deal with a wide 
range of enquiries - so that where possible, 
queries are resolved at the first point of 
contact.  

• There is no need to retell the same story each 
time a customer calls - their information is on 
hand via the CRM system to provide a 
quicker and more tailored response to 
resolving their enquiry.  

• Services are provided in Welsh or in English 
according their choice of language. 

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS IN 
2021/22: 

1. PROMOTE POSITIVE HEALTH AND WELLBEING AND 
SUPPORT PEOPLE TO SELF SUPPORT 

2. STRENGTHEN FAMILIES SO THAT CHILDREN AND 
YOUNG PEOPLE REMAIN WITH THEIR FAMILY 

3. ENABLE INDIVIDUALS TO LIVE INDEPENDENTLY IN 
THEIR OWN COMMUNITY  

4. PROVIDE PROPORTIONATE APPROACHES TO 
MANAGED CARE AND SUPPORT  

5. PROTECT INDIVIDUALS AND KEEP THEM SAFE 
FROM ABUSE, HARM AND NEGLECT 

The Objectives of the                      
Through-Age Well-being Programme: 

114,060 
Telephone calls handled by 

CLIC during the 2021/22 year 

15% 
Of telephone calls  (or 
16,677) were in Welsh 

38,508 
Emails responded to by CLIC 

during the 2021/22 year 

77,921 
Enquiries logged by CLIC during 
the 2021/22 year (an increase of 

21,000 on the previous year) 

8 

P
age 15



OUR VISION AND PRIORITIES 

9 

The Corporate Strategy 2022-2027 outlines 
how the Council intends to deliver its four  
Corporate Well-being Objectives or Strategic 
Priorities.  

The core purpose of the Corporate Strategy is 
to illustrate how the authority will support and 
promote sustainability and the wellbeing of 
the citizens of Ceredigion, through its long 
term Vision and its Corporate Well-being 
Objectives. 

The Corporate Well-being Objectives will 
enable the delivery of services that will 
enhance the social, economic, environmental 
and cultural well-being for the citizens and 
communities of Ceredigion. They have been 
identified through public engagement, the 
Ceredigion Assessment of Local Well-being 
and the ambitions of the new political 
administration. 

The process started with a desktop analysis of 
a variety of evidence, in order to identify the 
main issues affecting the well-being of 
Ceredigion’s citizens. This included reviewing  
the Ceredigion Public Service’s Board 
Assessment of Local Well-being, which 
provides a comprehensive picture of well-
being in the county, and included extensive 
public engagement during 2021. This told us 
about the concerns people had and the areas 
they would like to see improve.  

A triangulation exercise was then conducted, 
looking at the new Administration’s priorities 
for the next five years and comparing with the 
Assessment to identify any gaps. Workshops 
were run with Council services to provide a 
further check and to develop the individual 

Our Vision: 
Ceredigion County Council delivers value for money, 
sustainable bilingual public services, that support a 

strong economy and healthy environment, while 
promoting well-being in our people and our communities 

Our Corporate Well-being Objectives: 

steps to be taken to deliver the Objectives.  

The draft Strategy and Well-being Objectives 
were consulted on during August and 
September 2022, with the final agreed 
objectives being:  

• Boosting the Economy, Supporting 
Businesses and Enabling Employment 

• Creating Caring and Healthy 
Communities 

• Providing the Best Start in Life and 
Enabling Learning at All Ages 

• Creating Sustainable, Green and Well-
connected Communities 

 

We developed the objectives through the 
lens of the Wellbeing of Future Generations 
Act, in particular identifying how we could 
maximise our contribution to the national 
well-being goals and also ensure that we 
used the sustainable development principle 
to ensure that the needs of the present are 
met without compromising the ability of 
future generations to meet their own needs.  

More information on how we have assessed 
our objectives using the sustainable 
development principle can be found on page 
36.  

We review our Corporate Well-being 
Objectives and steps annually to ensure they 
remain the right Objectives for Ceredigion 
and ensure we are delivering them.  

The Strategy sets out clearly our priorities 
and demonstrates our commitment to 
improving social, economic, environmental 
and cultural well-being in the County.   

P
age 16



10 

partners to tackle these complex issues to 
create the Ceredigion that we want.  

Our Corporate Well-being Objectives have 
been developed based on evidenced local 
needs and on the views of local people as 
identified in the Ceredigion Assessment of 
Local Well-being. The Assessment provides 
a comprehensive review of well-being in the 
County, and was underpinned by extensive 
public engagement during the summer and 
autumn of 2021.  

The steps we plan to take to achieve our 
Corporate Well-being Objectives will help us 
improve outcomes for local people and also 
maximise our contribution to the national 
Well-being Goals. We will use the steps set 
out on pages 11-31 to measure our progress 
towards achieving the Corporate Well-being 
Objectives and national Well-being Goals.   

The table below shows a summary of how 
each of the Council’s Well-being Objectives 
contributes to Wales’ national Well-being 
Goals.  

 Corporate Well-being Objective 
Contributes to the following      
National Well-being Goals  

Boosting the Economy, Supporting Business and Enabling Employment            

Creating Caring and Healthy Communities           

Providing the Best Start in Life and enabling learning at all ages            

Creating Sustainable, Green and Well-Connected Communities             

6 

CONTRIBUTION TO THE NATIONAL WELL-BEING GOALS 

The Well-being of Future Generations Act 
(Wales) 2015 seeks to improve the social, 
economic, environmental and cultural well-
being of Wales by requiring public bodies to 
work together to create a sustainable Wales. It 
is intended to help to create a Wales that we 
all want to live in, now and in the future. There 
are 7 national well-being goals  that set out a 
shared vision for all public bodies to work 
towards (shown right). 

We know that we face challenges in 
Ceredigion - the COVID-19 pandemic has 
been unprecedented in its impact on all walks 
of life, but more recently the cost of living 
crisis is impacting many households in the 
County. There is also the need to grow the 
local economy and create opportunities for 
local people, tackle poverty and the high costs 
of accommodation, along with the County’s 
decreasing population which will have far 
reaching impacts.  

Ceredigion County Council works 
collaboratively with its local and regional 

Prosperous Resilient Healthier More Equal Cohesive Culture Global 

THE 7 NATIONAL  

WELL-BEING GOALS 

10 

Ceredigion Public Services Board brings 
together the County’s public service 
leadership and decision-makers, to improve 
the economic, social, environmental and 
cultural well-being of the County by 
strengthening joint working across the 
County’s services.  

The Board is in the process of developing its 
new Five Year Local Well-being Plan for 
2023-28. Like the Council, its priorities were 
developed using the evidence and 
engagement feedback from the Ceredigion 
Assessment of Local Well-being.  

This ensures that both Ceredigion County 
Council and Ceredigion Public Services 
Board’s Well-being Objectives are aligned to 
focus on the priority needs of the County, 
and maximise the contribution to the 
national Well-being Goals. The new Local 
Well-being Plan will be published in May 
2023.  

The Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015 

puts in place 7 Well-Being Goals 
  

All public bodies must work to 
achieve all of the goals  

10 

P
age 17



Food Centre Wales is a dedicated food 
technology centre offering advice, technical 
services and training to business start-ups, 
SME’s and existing food manufacturers.  The 
centre boasts a dedicated Research and 
Development building with unrivalled facilities 
for food manufacturers to develop new and 
existing products . 

BOOSTING THE ECONOMY, SUPPORTING 
BUSINESSES AND ENABLING EMPLOYMENT Our priorities for delivering the  

Corporate Well-being Objective are: 
 

• Progress the £110m Mid Wales Growth Deal 

• Support local businesses in the recovery from COVID-19 

• Support new and growing businesses in the County 

• Create new job opportunities for skilled young people 

• Promote equal opportunities in employment 

• Achieve sustainable economic growth 

• Pursue the Local Development Plan 

• Prioritise locally sourced produce and supply chains 

• Improve 4G Broadband 

• Equitable funding within the Arfor programme  

• Improve digital, transport and energy connectivity  

• Tackle poverty in Ceredigion 

• Support working parents in Ceredigion  

• Enhance the provision of skills and learning opportunities for 
people aged 16+ 

• Further develop apprenticeships in the County 

 

P
age 18



Progress Made 
• The Growing Mid Wales economic 

partnership has been established and has 
succeeded in attracting a £110m Growth 
Deal of investment to Mid Wales over the 
next 10 years for projects across the region. 

• £10.8m of investment has been secured 
from the UK Government’s Levelling Up Fund 
to help transform Aberystwyth's Harbour, Old 
College and Promenade. 

• 2.8m worth of investment has been secured 
from the UK Government’s Community 
Renewal Fund, for 12 community schemes 
across the county.  

• A Welsh Government funded Small Capital 
Grant scheme delivered in early 2021 led to 
almost £500,000 of grant investment in 
Ceredigion businesses, attracting a further 
£631,000 of private sector funding. The 
support led to the creation of 146 new jobs in 
Ceredigion, and a further 408 jobs were 
safeguarded in 81 businesses through the 
investments. 

• Ceredigion’s new Economic Strategy was 
published in March 2021 setting out how we 
will work together towards achieving strong, 
sustainable and more resilient economic 
growth for Ceredigion, created and shared by 
all.  The strategy sets out the actions that will 
address the challenges and opportunities 
that exist in the local economy.  

• External funding secured to the tune of over 
£20m, including Levelling Up Fund, 
Community Renewal Fund, Transforming 
Towns, Land Release Fund, Land and 
Buildings Development fund, Helix, Arfor, 
Business Capital and revenue grant 
schemes. 

• Ceredigion County Council has one of the 
most advanced Internet of Things (IoT) 
network now installed across the county 
(LoRaWAN), giving the opportunity for 
improved service performances, and allowing 

businesses to harness and take advantage 
of the capabilities of IoT. 

• Supporting the independent sector 
through collaborative working providing 
mutual aid, funding and resources. 
Provision of additional staffing resources, 
equipment as well as H&S advice and 
policies and procedures. 

• Leading on work of Centre for Local 
Economic Strategies (CLES) to develop 
community wealth building approaches to 
local procurement policy and practices 

• Supported local businesses during the 
COVID pandemic by administering 8,835 
Business Grant payments across 
Ceredigion with a value of £49m. 

• Significant  lobbying by Ceredigion County 
Council and others has resulted in 29.5% 
coverage of full Fibre broadband giving 
over 100 Mbps capability. The county wide 
current average download of 54mbps is 
one of the highest levels for a rural local 
authority.  

• Ceredigion C4W+ and Workways+ has 
continued to help people who are not in 
employment to access training, work 
experience, volunteering and job 
opportunities.  

• Supported local businesses during the 
COVID-19 Pandemic - 8,900 COVID 
related enquiries were managed by 
Ceredigion’s Customer Contact Service 
‘CLIC’. This included enquiries relating to 
Business Grants, the Cultural Recovery 
Fund and the Small Business Capital Grant 
Scheme.  Over 2,000 alone were in relation 
to the Non-Domestic Rate Grant to help 
businesses in the hospitality, tourism, 
leisure and non-essential retail sectors 
that had to close. 

 

Priorities for 2022/23 

Background 

Ceredigion is a confident, attractive county in 
which many of our people prosper and 
develop, where many have established thriving 
and successful businesses.  

However, our size and location mean we face 
challenges to growing the local economy, but 
equally there are many opportunities for us to 
take full advantage of in positioning the county 
to adapt to both a low-carbon future and 
increased digitisation.  

The key challenges can be summarised as the 
need to attract new businesses and grow 
existing businesses, create more and higher 
paid job opportunities, provide opportunities 
for younger people to remain in the county,  
and increase average earnings of the County in 
comparison to Wales as a whole  

The strengths and unique selling points for the 
local economy are that new business start-ups 
have some of the best survival rates across 
Wales, our workforce has much higher than 
average skills and qualifications, and the 
knowledge economy is strong with two highly 
rated Universities.  

It is against this backdrop that we have 
developed our Corporate Well-being Objective 
to build on our strengths as a county, take full 
advantage of the opportunities open to us and 
tackle the challenges facing us to grow the 
local economy. Boosting the economy, 
supporting our local businesses and enabling 
our people to access good quality employment 
and careers will help us achieve this.  

Boosting the Economy 

We will continue to progress the Mid Wales 
Growth Deal to realise the benefits of the 
£110m investment in the mid-Wales economy. 
The projects supported by the Growth Deal will 
leverage additional investment in the economy 
and maximise the economic impact of 
Ceredigion, such as creating additional jobs 
and economic growth of up to £700m.  

A key part of growing the local economy will be 

the delivery of Ceredigion’s Economic Strategy 
which sets out the actions we will take over the 
next 15 years. We will continue to deliver the 
actions in the Strategy, and work with partners 
across the County to identify and deliver further 
interventions to bring economic growth to the 
County.  

Tackling poverty and supporting working parents 
will continue to be a priority for the Council, and 
we will work with our partners on the Ceredigion 
Public Service Board’s Poverty Sub Group to 
identify actions to mitigate the impacts.  

Supporting Businesses 

We will continue to support local businesses in 
the recovery from COVID-19, but also work to 
support new business start-ups in Ceredigion 
and support existing businesses to expand and 
grow.  

Part of this will involve prioritising locally-
sourced produce and supply chains in council 
business in order to keep as much money and as 
many jobs as possible within the local 
community. Where possible we will break up 
contracts in order to maximise the use of local 
suppliers.  

Enabling Employment 

In addition, to supporting job creation, we will 
continue to promote equal opportunities in 
employment, boost inclusive growth, promote 
gender equality in employment and encourage 
greater investment in education and skills 
throughout working life.  

We will achieve this by enhancing the provision 
of skills and learning opportunities at age 16 and 
further developing apprenticeships in the 
County. We will establish an employability skills 
development pathway for young people and 
those with disability to promote inclusion in the 
workforce.  

For parents, we will support the provision of free 
childcare for all two-year olds, and also the 
expansion of Flying Start to help children 
develop social, emotional and communication 
skills they need  for success in school. 

12 

P
age 19



WHAT WILL BOOST CEREDIGION’S ECONOMY, SUPPORT BUSINESSES AND ENABLE 
EMPLOYMENT? 

We will: Service 

Deliver coastal defences for Aberaeron and Aberystwyth  
Highways and 
Environmental 
Services 

Complete the coastal defence works at Aberaeron, Aberystwyth, Borth and 
Llangrannog 

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services 

Support the development of the County’s harbour provision 
Highways and 
Environmental 
Services 

Continue to develop the £110m Mid Wales Growth Deal Economy and 
Regeneration 

Pursue the Ceredigion Local Development Plan Economy and 
Regeneration 

Support the roll-out of 4G Broadband Economy and 
Regeneration 

Explore possibilities for enabling seacraft to access the Teifi estuary  

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services 

Support Aberystwyth's bid to become a UNESCO City of Literature Economy and 
Regeneration 

We need to develop our Asset base of physical and natural assets that 
contribute fully to the efficient operation of Ceredigion County Council, but 
also contribute to the growth of the Economy in Ceredigion while halting 
and reversing the decline in nature: 
• Ensure that the Asset programme is linked to our corporate and 

economic ambitions and feeds into the long-term Capital programme 
and prioritises contributing to the Env (Wales) Act Section 6 Duty and 
An Ecologically Resilient Wales goal  

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Boosting the Economy 

13 

We will: Service 

Economic growth will be achieved sustainably - whilst also continuing to 
play our part in dealing with the causes and impacts of climate change, 
biodiversity loss and helping our communities prosper throughout 
Ceredigion: 
• Digital connectivity - In simple terms, our ambition is to ensure that 

residents and businesses in Ceredigion are not at a disadvantage 
because of a lack of digital connectivity. It is widely acknowledged 
that digital connectivity is now considered an essential part of 
home and business life, and is a fourth utility. It is not therefore 
about catching up – but ensuring we have parity of access and 
opportunity to towns and communities across the UK. That means 
an ambition to deliver services that equate to full fibre equivalent to 
levels well above the current 80% reach. 

• Transport connectivity - To drive economic growth and attract new 
investment we need to improve connectivity both to and within 
Ceredigion. We will build on our existing linkages to deliver the 
transport network required to help grow the economy and raise 
productivity. 

• Energy Connectivity - Affordable connectivity to a decarbonised 
energy network is a vital part of our future economic growth. Energy 
is everything, without it we cannot heat our homes, move around, or 
have employment. The UK decarbonisation agenda means this 
energy has to come from renewable sources in the future. The 
county and region are well placed to contribute to meeting this 
need, but poor existing grid infrastructure hampers this. 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services 

Supporting the local economy to ensure it works well for local people by: 
 
• Supporting Ceredigion’s UK Shared Prosperity Fund bid 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

All 

To support families in Ceredigion by: 
 
• Developing a resource centre to support vulnerable / low-income 

families 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

P
age 20



Supporting Businesses 

We will: Service 

Support the development of the Smart Towns project in Cardigan in our 
other Ceredigion towns 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services 

Prioritise locally-sourced produce and supply chains in council business Economy and 
Regeneration 

Push for equitable funding within the Arfor programme between the two 
areas of West Wales and the Valleys 

(The Arfor Innovation Fund 2022-25 is a £11 million scheme funded by 
Welsh Government to pilot innovative approaches in promoting 
entrepreneurship, business growth, community resilience and the Welsh 
language in the Arfor region of West Wales the counties of Ceredigion, 
Carmarthenshire, Gwynedd and Anglesey).  

Economy and 
Regeneration 

More businesses will be established and businesses will grow, enjoying the 
positive environment for growth here in Ceredigion: 
 
• Our ambition is also to see an increase in the number and proportion 

of our businesses that are mid-sized (employing over 50 people). 
• Simply, we want to see Ceredigion as a great place to start up in 

business and to grow a business. 
• We will see new businesses starting across a range of sectors, but 

particularly focused on our core strengths of food manufacturing, 
agriculture, agri-tech, tourism, environmental science, aerospace, 
spectrum and other science-based research and development 
industries. The foundational economy will also play an important part 
of growth in Ceredigion, with key opportunities particularly in 
construction and care. 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

We aim to be the catalyst for creating new businesses in Ceredigion and 
helping existing businesses grow into mid-size businesses. 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

14 

We will: Service 

Poverty is seen as a cross-cutting theme of the Local Wellbeing Plan (2023
-2028): 
 
• Develop economic dashboard to monitor the delivery of the 

Economic Strategy and Growing Mid Wales 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Ensure the alignment and linkages across what is in the Wellbeing Plan and 
Corporate Strategy to tackle poverty: 
 
• Ensure alignment between Local Authority and PSB in relation to 

Boosting the Economy & Tackling Poverty 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Household income above national average Economy and 
Regeneration 

Working parents are supported Schools and 
Culture 

P
age 21



WHAT WILL BOOST CEREDIGION’S ECONOMY, SUPPORT BUSINESSES AND ENABLE 
EMPLOYMENT? 

15 

We will: Service 

Enterprise-led innovation will lead to new job opportunities for skilled young 
people educated and trained in our schools, colleges and universities: 
 
• We have an excellent education system that delivers excellent results for 

learners. We will work with education providers in Ceredigion to build 
stronger relationships with employers, so that education and training 
services are firmly aligned with the needs of those employers 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Young people who wish to stay in Ceredigion, as well as those who may want 
to return to live and work here or move here for the first time, will see 
Ceredigion as a place of opportunity. This will ensure our communities 
remain vibrant places where our culture and Welsh language can thrive: 
 
• We want Ceredigion to continue to be a place where people want to live, 

work and visit. We will work to understand the changing needs of its 
residents, workers, visitors, as well as the challenges represented by 
climate change and the nature emergency to adapt in a changing World 
in the wake of the Covid 19 pandemic and Brexit). 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Enhance provision for pupils at age 16 ensuring that there is a wide, 
appropriate, bilingual and equitable choice of subjects offered to learners, 
that meets their needs and develops their skills and supports the needs of 
the local economy: 
 
• Undertake a review of post-16 education and implement the 

approved recommendations 
• Continue to develop the E-sgol provision 
• Ensure that the UK Shared prosperity fund is utilised on identified 

projects to develop appropriate skills to support the local economy 

Schools and 
Culture 

Strengthen the pool of highly skilled and qualified applicants/ candidates in 
Ceredigion by 
• Further developing apprenticeships, micro enterprise and social 

enterprise 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

Enabling Employment 

We will: Service 

Prevent the talent drain from Ceredigion: 
 
• Develop through the Regional Skills Partnership, Economy and 

Regeneration, and LL&S a robust employer forum 
• Develop online/ social connectivity and pop-up events to market 

roles/ sectors within Ceredigion 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

People and 
Organisation 

P
age 22



16 

We will: Service 

The RLSP will be established by Ceredigion County Council and Powys 
County Council to provide a focus for skills in Mid Wales, and to drive 
economic growth by ensuring investment in the right skills 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Develop an employability skills development pathway for young people and 
those with disability to promote inclusion in the workforce 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Raise the profile of the DP PA workforce through active recruitment  Porth Gofal 

Progress with the development of the provider hub and raising the profile of 
the sector and opportunities for skill development 

Porth Gofal 

Work with regional partners in the development of social and micro 
enterprise opportunities.  

Porth Gofal 

We need to be at the forefront of achieving a change in the narrative where 
people in Ceredigion feel there are genuine career opportunities that will 
enable them to have the choice to develop meaningful careers in Ceredigion: 
 
• Ensure effective delivery of the investment programmes secured. 
• Launch of ‘Softer’ business / career development programmes e.g. 

Business Awards, Careers information inked to Ceredigion’s business 
community 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

To have equal opportunities for people to work in Ceredigion: 
 
• Develop an employability skills development pathway across the 

Pyrth for young people and those with disability to promote inclusion 
in the workforce 

Porth Gofal 

We will: Service 

To have a sustainable and resilient independent care sector Porth Gofal 

Every pupil to have  a destination 
 
• Development of ‘Life Skills and Work Skills’ project for those that are 

furthest from the labour market, including disengaged learners. 
• Collaboratively develop/ strengthen early identification pathways to 

ensure that those identified as at risk of exclusion, disengagement or 
other socio-economic factors receive support as early as possible 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

People of all ages to have a learning pathway: 
 
• Development of a career pathway for post-16 across Ceredigion 

County Council services, including work experience, volunteering, 
traineeships and apprenticeship opportunities 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

P
age 23



CREATING CARING AND                                              
HEALTHY COMMUNITIES 

The Council’s Through Age Well-being 
Programme is transforming social care in 
Ceredigion. Providing support for all ages and 
needs is a significant challenge for the Council 
with limited resources. The profile of society 
and demographics has changed considerably 
over the last decade and demand for certain 
services has increased placing a greater 
financial pressure on those service areas.  

Our Through Age and Wellbeing operating 
model is designed to ensure people get the 
right level and type of support at the right time. 
It aims to prevent, reduce or delay the need for 
ongoing support, and to maximise people’s 
independence and to be able to remain in their 
own home in their own community wherever 
possible. The Programme is in the process of 
being implemented and will run until 2027. 

Our priorities for delivering the  

Corporate Well-being Objective are: 
 

• Provide for the nursing care needs of our population  

• Deliver the Through Age Well-being Programme 

• Promote the Welsh Language in Ceredigion 

• Launch Well-being Centres across the County 

• Pursue initiatives to train and recruit social care staff 

• Progress Cylch Caron extra care facility at Tregaron 

• Welcome and support refugees 

• Develop carers’ breaks/ respitality and support the aspiration of 
creation of a National Care Service for Wales  

• Support community mental health facilities 

• Encourage and enable people to get physically active so they 
can benefit from positive health and wellbeing  

• Develop an improvement plan for the strategic provision of 
facilities to increase physical activity levels in the county  

• Enhance the role of Community Connectors to support the 
development of resilient communities 

• Further develop participation events to ensure communities 
have a voice 

• Develop and increase the number of focussed and universal  
extra-curricular and holiday activity programmes  

• Develop and increase the number of support groups and 
programmes  

Ceredigion has responded to the challenges in 
the provision of social care by moving towards 
combining the previously separate children and 
adults' services into a single Through-Age and 
Well-Being Service. This eliminates 
departmental barriers, provides a more 
consistent, lifelong service for users and 
maintains the generic skills and flexibility of 
staff. In 2021, the Council approved the 
Through Age and Wellbeing Strategy for 2021-
2027 and action plan for Ceredigion.  

P
age 24



Progress Made 
• Ceredigion County Council has continued to 

implement the Welsh Language Standards and 
develop procedures to enable service users to 
access services in their language of choice.  It has 
also have worked with the National Centre for 
Learning Welsh to part-fund a “Welsh in the 
Workplace” language tutor in order to increase the 
opportunities for Council staff to learn the language 
and build confidence in using the language in the 
workplace.  

• The Council has worked in collaboration with its 
partners through the Bilingual Futures Forum to 
deliver the Ceredigion Welsh Language Strategy 
2018-2023, which contributes towards the delivery 
of the Welsh Government target of having one 
million Welsh speakers by 2050. 

• The Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 2022-2032 
has been published, which is integral to the 
County’s vision of developing truly bilingual citizens.  

• A very successful National Eisteddfod was held in 
Ceredigion in 2022. It was a unique opportunity to 
celebrate language and culture of the area and 
Wales on the national stage. The Eisteddfod is one 
of the cornerstones of the Welsh language, which 
offered important opportunities for people to speak 
the language and to reinforce their confidence in 
their Welsh skills.  

• As part of its prevention work, the Council has 
invested in giving full recognition and support to the 
role of carers, in particular by providing 
opportunities for respite, allowing carers to take a 
rest from what can be a demanding 24/7 role.  

• Working with Wales and West Housing Association, 
we have facilitated the ground-breaking Maes y Môr 
Extra Care Housing development in Trefechan that 
helps to maintain independent living for the 
vulnerable by varying the level of care required by 
the individual. 

• Completed the £100k Canolfan Steffan Community 
Support Facility in Lampeter, and delivering the 
£150k refurbishment of Canolfan Padarn Day 
Centre in Aberystwyth. 

• Commissioning arrangements for the new Complex 
Children’s residential provision have commenced. 

• Maximised the Disabled Facility Grant and 
associated Welsh Government Funding to provide 

adaptations to homes, in order to enable 
people  to remain within their communities. 

• Used Welsh Government allocated Social 
Housing Grant to deliver much needed 
Affordable Housing for rent. 

• Allocation of Social Housing via the Common 
Housing Register now allows applicants to 
select 5 areas, giving them more choice for 
where they and their family wish to live. 

• A new Strategic Equality Plan 2020-2024 has 
been published to ensure that residents and 
stakeholders in Ceredigion have a voice to 
influence the development of policies and 
strategies that will affect their lives.  

• A Tackling Hardship Strategy was published to 
help to mitigate the impact of COVID-19 and 
the cost of living crisis on the most vulnerable 
in Ceredigion. 

• Public Space Protection Orders (PSPO’s) have 
been renewed for Cardigan, Lampeter and 
Aberystwyth to deal with nuisance or problems 
in an area that cause harm to the quality of life 
of the local community.  

• Reinvigorated Dyfed Powys Police and Police 
and Crime Commissioner's work on Anti-Social 
Behaviour and introduced a Community 
Trigger Protocol for Ceredigion County 
Council.  

• Introduced multi agency weekly tension 
monitoring meetings to address early signs of 
community tensions through early 
intervention/ preventative work on a 
partnership basis. 

• Implemented with partner organisations, place
-based pilots in Cardigan, Lampeter and 
Aberystwyth to address wellbeing in 
communities based on need. 

• Increased provision for our National Exercise 
Referral Scheme (NERS) from 21 weekly 
sessions in 2014 to 75 sessions a week in 
2020. 

• Introduced a Walking for Wellbeing 
Programme in 2020. 

• Achieved Insport Silver Accreditation from 
Disability Sport Wales. 

Priorities for 2022/23 
Background 

The ‘Social Services and Well-being (Wales) 
Act, 2014’ places a legal requirement on the 
Council to develop a range of early intervention 
and prevention strategies that include 
collaborative arrangements with communities 
and the voluntary sector to support 
independent living.  

Ceredigion has an ageing population. It is 
expected that this will put a significant strain on 
our public services, particularly our local health 
and care service.  

Creating caring and healthy communities will 
improve well-being through supporting 
independent living, preventing future problems, 
providing for the nursing care needs, and 
supporting mental as well as physical well-
being following the COVID-19 pandemic.  

Creating Caring Communities 

The Council’s Through Age Well-being 
Programme has progressed well, and we will 
continue to push forward with transforming how 
people’s health, wellbeing and safety can be 
supported in Ceredigion. The Programme aims 
to identify at an early stage what concerns 
people have and aim to prevent escalation, 
wherever possible, through a timely and 
proportionate response. This approach will help 
to ensure people get the right level and type of 
support, at the right time, to prevent, reduce or 
delay the need for ongoing support, and to 
maximise people’s independence and to be 
able to remain in their own home in their own 
community wherever possible.  

A higher level of provision is needed in housing 
for older people, housing with care and nursing 
care in order to match the aspirations of the 
Welsh Government’s Older People’s Expert 
Housing Panel report, and to meet the older 
people’s preference to staying independent 
and living in their home. The potential 
development of the Cylch Caron Integrated 
Resource Centre in Tregaron and Maes Y Môr 
(extra care scheme) in Aberystwyth will help to 
address this need. 

As a result we will continue to progress the ground-
breaking Cylch Caron integrated health and social 
care project in partnership with Hywel Dda 
University Health Board and will pursue further 
extra-care facilities in Aberaeron and elsewhere. 
Maes Y Môr opened in October 2021, a supportive 
community of 56 apartments, allowing people to live 
in their own home with access to 24-hour on site 
care and support. 

Ceredigion has a history of supporting families 
fleeing from war, hunger and homelessness. Over 
the past few years the Council has successfully 
supported 74 refugees from Syria to be welcomed 
into the community. We will continue to play a 
leading role in helping refugees and resettling them 
into our communities.  

Creating Healthy Communities 

Ceredigion is predominately a bilingual county, and 
our Welsh heritage and culture is important. 
Safeguarding the language is a high priority for the 
Council, where the County continues to be a 
heartland of the Welsh Language and that it is an 
everyday language that is heard and spoken 
naturally by children, young people and adults. 

We want to encourage all of our citizens, regardless 
of ability, to become physically active so they can 
benefit from positive health and well-being. To 
achieve this we have put in place a series of actions 
to deliver over the next five years, including the 
provision of outreach physical activity opportunities, 
providing Health Intervention Programmes to 
improve physical activity levels in older adults and 
supporting community organisations to provide 
opportunities for residents to be active.  

We will also be moving ahead with transforming 
Lampeter Leisure Centre into a ‘Wellbeing Centre’.  
The Centre will enhance the core offer of Leisure 
provision with areas for meeting, consultation and 
treatment to contribute to improving the physical, 
mental and social well-being of the County's 
residents. Our aim is for the whole of Ceredigion to 
benefit from Well-being Centres, and as a result we 
will be progressing plans to develop Wellbeing 
Centres in the North and South of the county, as 
well as ‘pop-up’ provision in other locations.  

18 

P
age 25



WHAT WILL CREATE CARING AND HEALTHY COMMUNITIES? 

We will: Service 

Pursue the building of a new nursing home in the Aberystwyth area and 
fully provide for the nursing care needs of our population Porth Cynnal 

Progress the ground-breaking Cylch Caron integrated health and social 
care project in partnership with Hywel Dda University Health Board 

• Completion of Cylch Caron Tender and approval of business case by 
Welsh Government 

Porth Gofal 

Pursue further extra-care facilities in Aberaeron and elsewhere Porth Gofal 

Support the aspiration of creating a National Care Service for Wales Porth Gofal 

Further strengthen the provision and use of the Welsh language within 
social care services to be able to provide services in the language of 
service users’ choice by implementing the actions as set out in Welsh 
Government Strategic Framework: ‘More than Just Words’ 

Through Age Well
-being  

We will work with our local universities with the aim of seeing our county 
becoming one of the bases for social worker training in Wales   

Progress the Through Age Delivery Model providing 70% of services within 
universal and early help services, 20% in Assessment and short-term 
services and 10% in Specialist services 

Through Age Well
-being  

Delivering the Through Age Strategy: 
 
• Maximising opportunities for use of physical assets across the 

Through Age Well-being model 

Through Age Well
-being  

Creating Caring Communities 

19 

We will: Service 

People of all ages know where and how to access focussed and universal 
services in person and online to maintain their own wellbeing and 
independence 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

Family group meeting coordination across the Pyrth Porth Gofal 

Develop a Tech enabled Care Strategy Porth Gofal 

Maximise use of green and blue environments to enhance care and 
support for service users 

 Porth Gofal 

Development of our technology enabled care strategy including digital 
improvements to LA estates 

Porth Gofal 

Embedded through age approach to triage and assessment Porth Gofal 

Direct services review and future model design and delivery Porth Gofal 

Implementation of the ‘patch base’ model for delivery of community care 
services 

Porth Gofal 

We will continue to play a leading role in helping refugees and resettling 
them into our communities 

Partnerships, 
Performance and 
Public Protection 

Ensure that Ceredigion’s residents understand the Tim Ceredigion ethos 
and value its contribution/ impact to Caring and Healthy Communities 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

Prioritising and supporting the needs of carers 
Porth Gofal 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

P
age 26



20 

We will: Service 

Complete review of respite and day opportunities Porth Gofal 

People of all ages are supported to have a voice and feel that they’re 
listened to by 

• Further developing Carers breaks/ respitality for all ages 

• Participation and Signs of Safety / rights-based approach is embedded 
at all levels 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

Through Age respite model Porth Gofal 

Availability of a range of local social and micro enterprises 
Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

Re-engagement with the intergenerational project work Porth Gofal 

Delivery of a range of asset improvements Porth Gofal 

To have a sensory impairment support service Porth Gofal 

Establish a robust Domiciliary Care Commissioning Framework Porth Gofal 

Sustain, successful, and inclusive Community provision of services, 
including third sector partners: 

• Enhance the role of the Community Connectors to support the 
development of resilient communities. 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

Utilisation of technology in people’s homes to promote independence and 
resilience: 
 
• Development of our technology enabled Care Strategy including digital 

improvements to local authority estates 

Porth Gofal 

We will: Service 

Investing in smart technology to develop services and inform future 
practice 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

People of all ages have a platform and opportunity to share ideas and 
solutions: 

• Further develop relationships with third sector organisations, 
promoting volunteering opportunities and ‘community champion’ 
pathway 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

Community initiatives are supported and promoted: 

• Further develop the place-based approach to collaborative working. 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

Blended opportunities to access services: 

• Collaborative working to maximise resources and funding 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynar 

Develop data driven approach to social care reporting throughout the 
Through Age Well-being Programme by  
 
• Represent Ceredigion on the national Social Care Business 

Intelligence Group Meetings 

Partnerships, 
Performance and 
Public Protection 

Develop and publish Ceredigion Strategic Equality Plan 2024-2028 
Partnerships, 
Performance and 
Public Protection  

Align and link the Corporate Well-being Objectives and the Local Well-
being Plan to reduce inequalities through social prescribing 

Partnerships, 
Performance and 
Public Protection  

P
age 27



WHAT WILL CREATE CARING AND HEALTHY COMMUNITIES? 

21 

Creating Healthy Communities 

We will: Service 

Developed new set of evidence based Corporate Well-being Objectives 
based on Council ambitions and linked back to the findings of key 
documents such as the Assessment of Local Well-being 

Partnerships, 
Performance and 
Public Protection  

Publication of updated Corporate Strategy by November 2022 for the new 
electoral term 2022-27 

Partnerships, 
Performance and 
Public Protection  

Expand the services and activities traditionally offered at our Leisure Centres 
and transform them into Well-being Centres  

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

Continue to promote and facilitate social prescribing – such as gardening, 
walking and swimming 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

Support public and third sector partners to develop community-based 
mental health facilities, support groups and programmes  

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

Assist our Ageing population to be physically and socially active, supporting 
their independence  

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

All children and young people have opportunities to access after-school, 
evening and weekend activities  

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

Schools and 
Culture 

People of all ages have access to a range of social activities within their own 
communities: 
 
• Further develop participation events to ensure communities have a voice 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

We will: Service 

Promote the Welsh Language in Ceredigion: 
 
• Ensure that the principles of the Welsh Language Standards underpin 

the way the Council deliver its services to the public, so that service users 
are able to access services through the language of their choice naturally 

• Enhance the bilingual culture and ethos of the organisation, providing 
training and social opportunities for our staff to work in Welsh and 
increase their confidence in using the language in the workplace. 

• Develop the Ceredigion Welsh Language Strategy 2023-28, in order to 
promote and support the vitality of the Welsh language within the 
County, to help meet the Welsh Government’s ‘Cymraeg 2050: A million 
Welsh speakers’ strategy. 

All services 

P
age 28



22 

We will: Service 

Improve the opportunity and capability for everyone to be physically active 
everyday by: 
 
• Provide modern, accessible and inspiring leisure facilities across all 

three areas of Ceredigion (north, mid and south) 
• Encouraging people to Get Physically Active so they can benefit from 

positive health and wellbeing  
• Introducing an improved membership package for use of council 

operated leisure facilities  
• Providing outreach physical activity opportunities outside of the 

county’s towns   
• Further developing mobile and outreach services to promote wellbeing 

and community safety  
• Delivering Health Intervention Programmes to improve physical activity 

levels in older adults    
• Developing Wellbeing activities for individuals with chronic conditions  
• Introduce a focussed intervention to improve the physical and emotional 

wellbeing of individuals in registered settings to regain their 
independence  

• Supporting community organisations to provide opportunities for 
residents to be active  

• Significantly increase the active travel provision including walking and 
cycling throughout the County in order to improve the health of our 
population  

• Identifying the future role of Ceredigion Local Sports Council in order to 
maximise its contribution to community organisations  

• Achieving Disability Sport Wales In sport Gold Accreditation  
• Transforming Lampeter Leisure Centre into a Wellbeing Centre to 

improve the physical, social and emotional wellbeing of citizens in the 
Mid of the county   

• Progressing with plans to develop Wellbeing Hubs serviced by a 
Wellbeing Centre in the North and South of the county 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services 

We will: Service 

Ensure everyone has the opportunity and capability to be physically active 
everyday by 
 
• Upgrading council owned Artificial Turf Pitches, creating 3G facilities in 

the Mid and South of the county   
• Developing an improvement plan for the strategic provision of facilities 

to increase activity levels in the county  
• Undertaking a joint feasibility study with Aberystwyth University and 

provide a report that identifies the facility infrastructure required in the 
North of Ceredigion to meet the strategic aspirations of both 
organisations   

• Effective resourcing for universal and focussed activities   

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

To develop and maintain the Toilet Strategy: 
 
• To deliver the Toilet Strategy for Ceredigion 
• Engage with the general public for their feedback 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

To provide additional Changing Places provision in Ceredigion Economy and 
Regeneration 

To maintain cleaning regimes and to ensure all facilities are clean, 
accessible and well maintained 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

P
age 29



PROVIDING THE BEST START IN LIFE AND 
ENABLING LEARNING AT ALL AGES 

Ceredigion's new Welsh in Education 
Strategic Plan (WESP) is a 10-year strategy, 
2022–2032, seeking to reinforce and 
strengthen the Welsh language provision and 
meet targets set by the Welsh Government 
for a million Welsh speakers Wales-wide by 
2050. One over-riding aim is to ensure that 
pupils are confident communicators in both 
Welsh and English by the end of Key Stage 2 
(year 6) when they progress from primary to 
secondary education. The Strategy was 
approved by Council’s Cabinet in February 
2022.  

Our priorities for delivering the  

Corporate Well-being Objective are: 
 

• Deliver schools investment across the County, including the net 
carbon zero 3-storey extension at Cardigan Secondary School  

• Deliver the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan (WESP) 2022 to 
2032 

• Ensure that pupils are confident communicators in both Welsh 
and English by the end of Key Stage 2 (year 6) 

• Support the Ceredigion Youth Council as a forum for children 
and young people  

• Developing Children and Young People’s skills, knowledge and 
confidence to be physically active 

• Develop Leadership skills within our Children and Young People 
at the earliest opportunity  

• Support the provision of Free School Meals for primary school 
pupils  

• Support the provision of free childcare for all two-year-olds 

• Support the development of Theatr Felinfach’s facilities 

• Ensure that all learners’ identified Additional Learning Needs 
are supported appropriately to become independent and 
fulfilled individuals 

• Provide support for schools to successfully implement the new 
curriculum for Wales   

• Develop a Culture Strategy and Equity Strategy to support 
school and community wellbeing  

• Enhance the range of care and support options for looked after 
children and young people 

P
age 30



Progress Made 
• Ceredigion's Education system continues to 

be considered amongst the most successful 
in Wales. The support and resources provided 
to all Ceredigion schools during the Covid-19 
pandemic – particularly during periods of 
lockdown – were particularly commended, 
praised and appreciated by inspectors, 
school staff, parents and pupils alike. 

• The Council established childcare hubs 
during the early stages of the pandemic to 
support those children and their families who 
needed care.  

• In response to long waiting times to access 
mental health support, Ceredigion County 
Council have supported a local youth charity 
to provide easily accessible mental health 
services to young people in the county.  

• Working with 3rd sector and private 
businesses to provide work experience 
opportunities for individuals/vulnerable 
groups 

• Roll out of funded childcare for 3-year olds 
across the county.  

• Invested in and delivered nursery provision 
such as the £900k Llwyn yr Eos Nursery in 
Aberystwyth, the £700k Cenarth School 
Nursery and the £600k Tregaron Nursery 
facility. 

• The new area school for Drefach, Ysgol 
Dyffryn Cledlyn, opened its doors in 
September 2017.  

• Invested in and delivered school 
improvements such as the refurbishment and 
extension to create a 3-16 school at Henry 
Richard, the extension and improvements at 
Cardigan Primary School and the new net-
zero carbon 3-storey extension at Ysgol 
Uwchradd Aberteifi.  

• School developments already underway 
including the £100k of construction work at 
Penglais secondary school, providing the 
school with new and improved facilities, 
£160k of construction work at Ysgol Henry 
Richard School and £5.4m of work on the 
Cardigan Secondary School as part of the 
21st Century Schools Programme. 

• Professional consultants and contractors 
being appointed to deliver the new £11.5m 
Aeron Valley new area school, and the new 
£5.4m extension at Ysgol Gymraeg, 
Aberystwyth. 

• Appointing consultants to scope works to 
Aberystwyth Museum totalling 
approximately £1m.  

• 2-year programme of investments worth 
£500,000 as part of the Arfor Programme to 
support and strengthen the links between 
economic growth and the Welsh language. 

• Proactively working with Cadw (Welsh 
Government's historic environment service)  
and the Royal Commission on the Ancient 
and Historical Monuments of Wales 
“Historic Place Names Task and Finish 
Group”.  

• Developed apprenticeship scheme within 
Local Authority care homes in Ceredigion. 

• Collaborative working across the Pyrth in 
supporting young people and prevention of 
crisis 

• Introduced a complete Young Ambassador 
(YAs) Pathway in the county with Bronze 
YAs in every primary school; Silver YAs in 
every secondary school and a Play Unified 
Pathway for young people with an 
intellectual impairment to develop their 
leadership skills.  

Priorities for 2022/23 

Background 

The Ceredigion education system is one of the 
most successful in Wales, but earnings in the 
County are below average, and the perceived 
lack of career and social opportunities have 
resulted in an outwards migration of our 
younger adults.  

Ceredigion is also a low income economy, with 
household income amongst the lowest in 
Wales despite having relatively high 
qualification levels in the workforce. In-work 
poverty and child poverty is significant and 
affects a higher proportion of citizens in our 
county than in the acknowledged deprived 
areas in the Valleys and East Wales.  

Providing the best start in life and helping 
people to learn at all ages will ensure that the 
appropriate training programmes will enable 
learners to meet the employment needs of 
current and future businesses within 
Ceredigion. This includes equipping post-16 
and adult learners with the necessary skill set 
to enable them to be agile, bilingual workers 
and adapt to the requirements of future 
employment.  

Providing the best start in life 

In order to provide the best start in life for our 
children and young people we will be 
supporting the provision of Free School Meals 
for primary pupils from September 2022. 
Under the initiative, all Reception Class 
children will receive free nutritious school 
meals. This is an important initiative as the 
cost of living crisis continues.  

Flying Start provides childcare of the highest 
quality and has been highly effective in 
Ceredigion for families in our most deprived 
areas. We will be supporting the expansion of 
early years childcare provision via Flying Start for 
all 2-year olds, from September 2022. Flying 
Start supports development of children's speech, 
language and communication; parenting 
support; and an enhanced health visitor service.  

Enabling learning at all ages 

During the next term we will build on the 
investment in our schools in recent years. This 
will include delivering the new net carbon zero 3-
story extension at Cardigan primary school, that 
will provide a new main entrance and two new 
classrooms.  

Research shows that Welsh language 
development in early years can encourage 
feelings of belonging and offer a path into new 
cultural and social opportunities. As a result we 
will deliver the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 
to strengthen Welsh language provision and 
ensure that pupils are confident in both Welsh 
and English at year 6. This will be supported by 
the development of a Culture Strategy and Equity 
Strategy to support community well-being.  

We believe in young people and will also support 
the Ceredigion Youth Council as a forum for 
children and young people to share their 
opinions, discuss current projects and raise their 
concerns. The following pages outline the steps 
we will take to deliver the Corporate Well-being 
Objective.  

24 

P
age 31



WHAT WILL PROVIDE THE BEST START IN LIFE AND ENABLE LEARNING AT ALL AGES? 

We will: Service 

Ensure purposeful and resilient school infrastructure for high quality 
provision based on the capital available for the next 5 years including: 
  
Completion of new Dyffryn Aeron 3-11 Area school: 
• Open a new 3-11 area school at Dyffryn Aeron 
  
Complete extension to Ysgol Gymraeg Aberystwyth and the new Canolfan 
Iaith for the north of the county: 
• Complete the extension at Ysgol Gymraeg Aberystwyth 
  
Work in conjunction with Welsh Government to ensure capital investment 
for a new school at Penglais: 
• Explore Mutual Investment Model as funding to enable a new build at 

Penglais 

Schools and 
Culture 

Continue to review school places and Additional Learning Needs provision 
to ensure the infrastructure is resilient and sustainable and aligned to the 
net-zero carbon agenda: 
 
• Continue to annually review school places and Additional Learning 

Needs provision, projections, standards, building condition and 
financial resilience to ensure a sustainable infrastructure 

Schools and 
Culture 

Progress the net zero 3-storey extension at Cardigan Secondary School Schools and 
Culture 

Progress plans for the extension and improvements to Cardigan Primary 
School 

Schools and 
Culture 

Providing the Best Start in Life 

25 

We will: Service 

Implement all 7 outcomes in the Welsh in Education Strategic Plan 
including all pupils taught predominantly through the medium of Welsh 
until age 7 thus contributing to the National Cymraeg 2050 policy: 
 
• Create and implement Action Plan to include within the first 5 years a 

statutory Consultation to change the language category of a group of 
primary schools in the county to Welsh language at the foundation 
Phase of education and provide a new  Canolfan Iaith in Aberystwyth 
in order to support this vision. 

Schools and 
Culture 

Ensure that pupils are confident communicators in both Welsh and English 
by the end of Key Stage 2 (year 6) 

Schools and 
Culture 

Develop Leadership skills within our Children and Young People at the 
earliest opportunity: 
 
• We will expand our school based Young Leaders programme into 

Community Organisations 
• Support the Ceredigion Youth Council as a forum for children and 

young people from each secondary school in Ceredigion 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

Support the development of Theatr Felinfach’s facilities Schools and 
Culture 

Open Sycharth and work regionally on the therapy model of support Porth Gofal 

Increase recruitment in in-house Welsh speaking foster carers Porth Gofal 

P
age 32



26 

We will: Service 

Enhanced range of care and support options for looked after children and 
young people: 
 
• Implement the Proportionate Assessment for Children 

Porth Gofal 

Availability of a suite of options for respite and day opportunities for 
Children and Young People: 
 
• Complete review of respite and day opportunities 

Porth Gofal 

Support the Co-operation Agreement negotiated between Plaid Cymru and 
the Welsh Government to provide childcare for children from 2 years of age 
and free school meals for primary school pupils in order to support 
families: 
 
• Support the implementation of funded childcare for all two-year-olds   
• Implement the phased roll out of free school meals for primary school 

pupils, starting in September 2022  

Schools and 
Culture 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

All children have the best possible start in life and access support when 
needed: 
 
• Provide Needs-led and Evidence-based programmes for parents, to 

promote positive parenting practices, supporting the holistic growth 
and development of healthy and happy children  

• Use the findings of Surveys and feedback across Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar to shape our future provision 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

We will: Service 

Provide our Children and Young People the Best Start in Life by developing 
their skills, knowledge, and confidence to be physically active through: 
 
• Supporting the expansion of Flying Start 
• Increasing the contribution of Play to positive health and wellbeing 
• Providing the opportunity for every child in the county to learn to swim 
• Provide the opportunity for every child in the county to learn key 

foundation of movement skills.  

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

School and 
Culture 

Support the monitoring and delivery of Early Years Outcomes by 
developing a regional Early Years Outcomes Dashboard to be used by 
partners across Ceredigion to monitor progress against the national Early 
Years Outcomes Framework 

Schools and 
Culture 

Support pupils and families to access local youth clubs, social groups and 
organised activities  

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

P
age 33



WHAT WILL PROVIDE THE BEST START IN LIFE AND ENABLE LEARNING AT ALL AGES? 

27 

We will: Service 

Complete the review of Sixth Form education and implement the approved 
recommendations to ensure the infrastructure supports the needs of 
learners  

Schools and 
Culture 

Develop a Culture Strategy to support school and community wellbeing by 
ensuring equitable access to a vibrant arts and culture offer, including: 
  
• Work in conjunction with Welsh Government to ensure capital 

investment to replace Theatr Felinfach with a new theatre and Centre 
for the Arts in Dyffryn Aeron as approved by Cabinet 

  
Provide a new Store and Public Engagement Facility for Ceredigion Museum 
Collections: 
 
• Develop a comprehensive Culture Strategy to include Theatr Felinfach 

and Museum infrastructure 

Schools and 
Culture 

Develop a clear understanding of the nature of rural deprivation, and a 
strategy and action plan to reduce the impact of deprivation on pupils, 
aligned to the corporate Tackling Hardship Strategy: 
 
• Create and implement a Rural Deprivation and Equity Action Plan to 

support schools to reduce the impact of poverty on pupils 

Schools and 
Culture 

Ensure that all learners experience a wide range of learning opportunities to 
develop skills, knowledge and understanding that reflect the four core 
purposes of the Curriculum for Wales by 
 
• Ensuring appropriate support for schools to successfully implement 

curriculum for Wales 

Schools and 
Culture 

Enabling Learning at All Ages 

We will: Service 

Ensure that all learners’ identified Additional Learning Needs are supported 
appropriately to become independent and fulfilled individuals 
 
• Ensure appropriate support for schools to successfully implement 

Additional Learning Needs transformation 

Schools and 
Culture 

Provide a number of targeted courses linking in with the Regional Skills 
Partnership, labour market research to improve opportunities for upskilling 
and employment 
 
• Strengthen informal and non-formal learning opportunities for hard-to-

reach learners and those not ready to engage in education and training 
due to emotional and mental wellbeing needs 

 
• The Regional Skills and Learning Partnership will be established by 

Ceredigion County Council and Powys County Council to provide a 
focus for skills in Mid Wales, and to drive economic growth by ensuring 
investment in the right skills.  

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

People of all ages have a learning pathway 
 
• Expand community-based adult learning opportunities, that meet the 

needs of all learners 

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

Children and young people identified as at risk of exclusion and 
disengagement are supported to access structured informal learning 
programmes and activities to support their attainment  

Porth Cymorth 
Cynnar 

P
age 34



28 

We will: Service 

Achievements are celebrated and showcased All 

P
age 35



CREATING SUSTAINABLE, GREENER AND          
WELL-CONNECTED COMMUNITIES 

Ceredigion County Council is keen to create 
more opportunities for walking and cycling in 
the County, in order to improve the health of 
our population, and to make it easier for 
people to leave their cars at home, thereby 
reducing carbon emissions. To help achieve 
that, we will push for our smaller towns and 
rural areas to be included in Welsh 
Government's criteria for funding active 
travel routes. 

Our priorities for delivering the  

Corporate Well-being Objective are: 
 

• Prioritising the reduction of carbon emissions and pursue our 
goal of becoming a Net Carbon Zero Council by 2030  

• Build on Ceredigion's excellent performance in waste 
management and recycling  

• Transition towards an Ultra Low Emission Vehicle corporate 
fleet  

• Work with local Housing Associations to increase our stock of 
social housing  

• Discourage the ownership of second homes in the county  

• Enable more young people to build their lifetime home 

• Protect Welsh-language house and place names  

• Press for an urgent resolution to the phosphates issue that is 
preventing building in the Teifi Valley  

• Find solutions to flooding in the Teifi Valley  

• Pursue funding for coastal defences at Aberaeron and 
Aberystwyth and develop proposals for the next phase of the 
Borth coastal defence scheme and for the frontage at 
Llangrannog  

• Halt and reverse the decline in biodiversity including in our 
marine environment 

• Support increased provision for walking and cycling  

• Advocate strongly for a rail link between Aberystwyth and 
Carmarthen  

P
age 36



Progress Made 
• Prioritised climate change and carbon 

reduction. Since 2007 the Council has 
undertaken a series of three 5-year Carbon 
Management Plans. Since the first plan was 
instigated, Ceredigion County Council has 
reduced its carbon emissions by 61%. 

• In 2020, the Council declared a Climate 
Emergency and committed the Council to 
achieving Net Zero Carbon by 2030. 

• Developed the first net carbon zero building on 
the Council's estate with the new nursery block 
at Ysgol Llwyn yr Eos in Penparcau. 

• Placed 70kw of photovoltaic cells on the roof 
of Ysgol Bro Teifi, generating 160kw hours of 
clean electricity. 

• In addition we have placed 22kw of 
photovoltaic cells on Ysgol Bro Pedr in 
Lampeter, 10kw on Ysgol Henry Richard in 
Tregaron and another 10kw on Ysgol Comins 
Coch. 

• Fitted hundreds of LED bulbs into our street 
lighting around the county, resulting in a 
saving of over £2 million. 

• Instigated a review into transitioning our 
corporate fleet of vehicles towards Ultra Low 
Emission Vehicles.  

• In the last five years Ceredigion has achieved 
one of the highest recycling rates in both 
Wales and the UK and is currently at 70%. This 
has avoided 9,000 tons of carbon emissions 
and saved around £2 million compared to 
traditional disposal. We collect enough food 
waste in one year to power 300 homes.  

• Introduced a kerbside glass recycling 
collection. 

• The Council's award-wining Cosy Caron project 
has ensured that the homes of many local 
residents are energy-efficient and warm. The 
programme has provided central heating and 
insulation for 137 homes that were previously 
energy-inefficient, particularly in rural areas 
where the gas network does not reach. 

• The Council has delivered Energy 
Efficiency initiatives providing efficiency 
measures and advice in people’s homes. 

• Delivered public transport infrastructure 
improvements along the TrawsCymru 
corridor through Local Transport Funding. 

• A Towns Development Officer has been 
employed  to engage with town 
representatives to help facilitate and 
support ideas to reinvigorate Ceredigion’s 
rural towns. This is provided with the 
support of Leader funding through the 
Cynnal y Cardi programme.  

• £379k of funding secured from Welsh 
Government to support a range of projects 
to bring town centre assets into economic 
use and to enhance green infrastructure in 
town centres.  

• Continued to invest in and improve digital 
connectivity across the County. Over the 
last two years, the provision of Fibre to the 
premises (FTTP) has increased from 20% 
to 28.3%, and for Superfast Broadband 
(>30Mbps or over) from 80.6% to 86.3%. 

• Supported local suppliers throughout the 
COVID-19 pandemic during the period of 
service reduction or postponement in 
waste and transport.  

• Delivered a number of Active Travel 
improvements, including major 
refurbishment of Pont-yr-Odyn, Trefechan 
and construction of a shared use path 
between Gogerddan and Penrhyncoch.  

• Enabled over £200k of Local Places for 
Nature Funding for Ceredigion projects. 

• Hosted the Ceredigion Local Nature (LNP) 
Partnership Coordinator as part of the 3 
year Wales Wide LNP project and now the 
first year of the Wales Wide LNP / LPfN 
project. 

• £25k funding allocation for allotment 
improvements in 2021 -2022  

Priorities for 2022/23 
Background 

The Council has a leading role to play in 
protecting and enhancing the natural resources 
of the County whilst endeavouring to protect air, 
land and water quality. In March 2020, the 
Council declared a global climate emergency. 
The decision highlights the need to take further 
drastic action to reduce our carbon emissions.  

It also has a key role in promoting, securing and 
enhancing bio-diversity. The Council’s 
environmental stewardship responsibility also 
extends to the built environment and the 
positive management of future development 
and land use is crucial to achieving these aims.  

There are key challenges to achieving this such 
as the phosphates levels in the River Teifi 
Special Area of Conservation that is preventing 
building in the Teifi Valley.  

Housing affordability continues to be a major 
challenge for many in the county. The demand 
for housing in Ceredigion has seen average 
property prices reach record levels, making it 
increasing difficult for local people to remain in 
their local community and for first time buyers 
to get on the housing ‘ladder’.   

Creating Sustainable Communities 

We will continue to work with local housing 
associations to increase our stock of social 
housing to meet the needs of local people and 
our ageing population, in particular the 
approximately 1,700 people on the housing 
waiting list. We will also take action to 
discourage second home ownership in the 
County and use the review of the Local 
Development Plan to enable more young people 
to build their lifetime homes in order to ensure 
the sustainability of our rural communities.  

Creating Greener Communities 

During the next term we will continue to 
prioritise the reduction of carbon emissions in 

order to pursue our goal of becoming a net zero 
carbon Council by 2030. Some of the actions 
we will be taking include delivering all new 
schools developments in Ceredigion to net zero 
carbon and investigating the transition of our 
corporate fleet to Ultra Low Emission vehicles 
to deliver a 3% reduction in carbon emissions 
year-on-year. The Council’s current five year 
action plan will continue to be delivered as we 
aim to protect our environment for future 
generations.  

We will also be pushing ahead with further 
projects to maximise green and renewable 
energy production on the Council’s estate. For 
example, completing the programme of 
installing energy saving LED bulbs in street 
lights, rationalising the Council’s building 
stock, and installing further solar canopies.  
Our new hybrid working policy will permanently 
reduce the amount of travelling for both 
Councillors and officers, thus reducing 
congestion and emissions.  

Creating Well-Connected Communities 

The last two years have shown just how 
important being connected is to our residents 
and businesses. As a result we will be 
advocating for increased provision for walking 
and cycling, continue to maintain and repair 
our highway network and push for a rail link 
between Aberystwyth and Carmarthen.  

Good progress has been made in recent years 
in strengthening the County’s digital 
connectivity, and we will continue to push for 
better connectivity across the county, 
including supporting the rollout of 4G 
Broadband masts in the next three years, 
including in our most rural areas to reduce 
inequality in services. We will do everything we 
can to ensure that the residents and 
businesses of Ceredigion can become full 
members of an inter-connected Wales.  

30 

P
age 37



WHAT WILL CREATE SUSTAINABLE, GREENER AND WELL-CONNECTED COMMUNITIES? 

We will: Service 

Work with local Housing Associations to increase our stock of social 
housing to meet the needs of local people and our ageing population Porth Gofal 

Work alongside the Well-Being Centres and Third Sector to provide a range 
of Housing advice / services through a proactive approach, promoting 
independence and both personal and community resilience 

Porth Gofal 

Provide a range of Affordable Housing Options from rental to Home 
Ownership initiatives 

Porth Gofal 

Discourage the ownership of second homes in the county All 

Support the setting of maximum thresholds for the number of second and 
holiday homes in a given area Porth Gofal 

Use the review of the Local Development Plan to enable more young 
people to build their lifetime homes 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Support the Welsh Housing Justice Charter Porth Gofal 

Enable initiatives and mitigation measures to help with the resolution to 
the phosphates and nutrient ecological issue in the Teifi Valley and other 
catchments 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Work with all relevant agencies to find solutions to flooding in the Teifi 
Valley with Natural Resources Wales taking the lead on intervention in their 
role as the flood risk managers for main rivers 

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Continue to push for the protection of Welsh-language house and place 
names 

Democratic 
Services 

Complete delivery of the coastal defence works at Aberaeron, 
Aberystwyth, Borth and Llangrannog, and the flood risk management 
works at Llandre, Aberaeron, Borth, Talybont and Capel Bangor (subject to 
appropriate funding being made available from Welsh Government) 

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services 

Creating Sustainable Communities 

31 

We will: Service 

Pursue funding for coastal defences at Aberaeron and Aberystwyth and 
develop proposals for the next phase of the Borth coastal defence scheme 
and for the frontage at Llangrannog  

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services 

Assist local communities wishing to provide Growing Spaces to local 
residents 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Assist local communities wishing to establish or improve Local Places for 
Nature for local residents 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Maintain Ceredigion’s position as one of the most successful recyclers in 
Wales and to continue to build on that success by: 
 

• Undertaking a review of waste functions to ensure that services are 
future-proofed, and identify appropriate funding support 

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services 

To implement the vision of sustainable communities for learning as regards 
the net zero agenda 

Schools and 
Culture 

Enhancing and protecting biodiversity for future generations - halt and 
reverse the decline in biodiversity by: 
 
• Declare a Nature Emergency 
• Develop and implement Corporate Biodiversity Management Plans 

and Nutrient Management Plans 
• Actively engage in programmes to minimise Ceredigion’s contribution 

to biodiversity loss and deal with its effects, including in our marine 
environment  

• Ensure that the asset programme and the management of all amenity 
areas and road verges contributes to the Environment (Wales) Act 
Section 6 Duty and An Ecologically Resilient Wales Goal 

All 

P
age 38



Creating Greener Communities 

We will: Service 

Pursue our goal of becoming a net carbon zero council by 2030 by: 

• Prioritising the reduction of carbon emissions 

• Delivering schemes that contribute to the Council’s Net Zero Action 
Plan 

• Delivering the Council’s current 5-Year Carbon Management Plan 

• Develop depot infrastructure and appropriate funding 

• Continuing to develop an Energy Action Plan for the region, as well 
Local Area Energy Plans. The Mid-Wales Energy Strategy is in place  

• Transition towards an Ultra Low Emission Vehicle (ULEV) corporate 
fleet of vehicles  

• Using 21st Century Schools funding to refurbish Ysgol Uwchradd, 
Aberteifi to include more photovoltaic cells on the roof (photovoltaics 
is the conversion of light into electricity) 

• Install solar canopies in the car park of Canolfan Rheidol in 
Aberystwyth 

• Increase renewable energy generation on Council property 

• Identify baseline for permanently reducing travel for both Councillors 
and Officers 

• Deliver a 3% carbon reduction year-on-year by identifying resources 
to progress the incremental decarbonisation of the corporate fleet 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services 

Schools and 
Culture 

Continue to support strategic opportunities with our Mid Wales partners, 
including scoping and developing proposals identified within the Mid 
Wales Energy Strategy including green hydrogen and other sources 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services 

32 

We will: Service 

Share Net Zero aspirations between Ceredigion Public Services Board  
members, exchange examples of good practice and actively support 
individual and collective actions for the promotion of a carbon neutral 
county:  
 
• Undertake Feasibility Study and report to the Ceredigion Public 

Service Board with regards to the District Heat Network project 
based at the University Campus, Penglais, Aberystwyth 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

All new schools built and maintained to net zero carbon in operation: 
 
• We will continue to deliver major School schemes to provide and 

energy efficiency rating of EPC +10%  
• New schools will be maintained to deliver net zero carbon in 

operation wherever possible 
• To reduce the carbon footprint of materials and use innovative 

construction and maintenance methods wherever possible 
• New schools and major projects will have embodied carbon of 

20% below the baseline. 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

All new schools built to achieve BREEAM Excellent  

(BREEAM is an assessment and certification scheme designed to help 
building managers reduce and improve the environmental performance of 
existing non-domestic buildings. BREEAM stands for  Building Research 
Establishment Environmental Assessment Method) 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Rationalise the Council's building stock in order to further save carbon 
and resources 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Develop a single green energy district heating system for the public 
sector organisations on Penglais Hill - the Penglais District Heating 
Project 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

P
age 39



WHAT WILL CREATE SUSTAINABLE, GREENER AND WELL-CONNECTED COMMUNITIES? 

33 

We will: Service 

Support the delivery of an integrated public transport network by 
 
• Working with stakeholders to support and sustain the public transport 

network, and identify funding/improvement where appropriate 

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services 

Economy and 
Regeneration  

Continue the improvement in the condition of the highway network in 
accordance with the Highways Asset Management Plan: 
 
• Continue to inspect, maintain and repair the highway network subject 

to available funding 

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services  

Significantly increase the active travel provision including walking and 
cycling throughout the County in order to improve the health of our 
population by 
 
• Securing increased funding for the delivery of a wide range of active 

travel improvements 
• Campaigning for active travel routes alongside the whole length of our 

trunk roads 
• Pushing for our smaller towns and rural areas to be included in Welsh 

Government's criteria for funding active travel routes. 
• Make it easier for people to leave their cars at home, thereby reducing 

carbon emissions by pushing for our smaller towns and rural areas to 
be included in Welsh Government's criteria for funding active travel 
routes.  

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services  

Support the Bwcabus on-demand service in our rural communities 
Highways and 
Environmental 
Services  

Creating Well-Connected Communities 

We will: Service 

Support planning policies in favour of renewable energy and low energy 
housing 

Economy and 
Regeneration 

Complete programme of installing energy-saving LED bulbs in street 
lights and illuminated road signs  

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services  

Improve the Electric Vehicle (EV) charging infrastructure across 
Ceredigion, to encourage decarbonisation of transport and increase 
uptake in Ultra Low Emission Vehicles (ULEVs) by 
 
• Install Electric Vehicle charging points in council owned and 

managed car parks  
• Providing a comprehensive Electric Vehicle charging network 

through a provision of private infrastructure and public funding 

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services 

Identify and address the impact of climate change on our communities 
and infrastructure, and seek appropriate funding for mitigation 

All 

Use land in Ceredigion for carbon offsetting, halting and reversing the 
decline in nature and for nutrient management 

All 

Through the work of the Ceredigion Public Services Board, identify skills 
gaps and deliver training to enable Ceredigion’s businesses and residents 
to contribute to improving ‘greener’ homes, workplaces and environment 

All 

Work with partners to ensure social, green and blue prescribing is used 
proactively and reactively to address health related conditions 

Through Age Well-
being 

P
age 40



34 

We will: Service 

Make the case strongly for any Welsh Government ambitions to franchise 
public transport routes to include small locally-based bus companies  

Highways and 
Environmental 
Services  

Develop the role of Community Connectors who support residents of all 
ages in Ceredigion by helping them to make connections to access support 
opportunities in their area that can maintain and improve their wellbeing: 

• Enhance the role of Community Connectors to support the 
development of resilient communities 

Porth Gofal P
age 41



35 

Ceredigion, like the rest of Wales, is still 
recovering from the COVID-19 health 
pandemic that reached Wales in March 2020. 
Inevitably it has impacted most of the services 
the Council provides, and brought some of 
them to the fore.  

Despite the challenges of responding to the 
pandemic, the last two years have connected 
the Council more closely with the community 
it serves than ever before. Councillors, staff, 
community groups and partners have all 
pulled together to support Ceredigion’s 
communities and the most vulnerable in 
society.  

We are proud and grateful for the response 
from our frontline services, Council staff and 
the many volunteers who have worked in 
partnership with the Council to ensure 
Ceredigion’s residents have received the 
support they need.  

The recovery period is now well underway, 
and the Council is working hard to support 
local businesses, bring economic success and 
support the most vulnerable, whilst ensuring 
that our decarbonisation and climate change 
initiatives protect the County’s beautiful 
environment for future generations.  

While the focus was on the immediate 
response to the pandemic, COVID-19 created 
windows of opportunity to learn from, to 
transform services and to bring about 
sustainable change and improvements.  

In essence, it has allowed us to reconsider the 
way we work and reorganize it in a way that 
benefits the customer, the workforce, and has 
much less impact on our environment. 

The Council has a track record of innovation 
and responded quickly and positively to the 
pandemic. It was already moving towards 

RESPONDING TO COVID-19 AND DEVELOPING NEW WAYS OF WORKING 

more agile and smarter ways of working, 
including investment in digital equipment 
and software, and enhancing the existing 
flexible working arrangements in place.  

Since then, it has been building on the 
experiences of the pandemic to change the 
way it works through a new ‘hybrid working’ 
model, which provides more agile and 
mobile ways of working for staff, a better 
experience for customers and which is also 
environmentally and financially sustainable.  

Our learning shows that virtual / remote 
working has resulted in increased 
productivity, improved collaboration and 
provided a more flexible working 
environment to help maintain the health and 
well-being of the workforce. The 
sustainability of the organisation is also 
supported through a reduction in costs and 
overall expenditure per employee.  

Technologically, it provides the opportunity 
for us to develop public Information 
Communication Technology services in 
order to improve digital customer contact 
and ensure we offer customer focused, well-
managed and joined-up services which are 
easy to access and simple to use.  

This approach also makes a positive 
contribution to the sustainability of our 
natural environment through permanently 
reducing the amount of travel for Councillors 
and officers. The impact is reduced 
congestion on our roads and less carbon 
emission, thus helping our aim of becoming 
net zero carbon by 2030. 

Over the next five years we will continue to 
develop this innovative approach and invest 
in new technologies to deliver high quality 
services in an efficient, sustainable and 
environmentally friendly way.  

Items of Personal Protective 
Equipment (PPE) distributed  

Press releases with news and 
advice on COVID-19 

Visits to ensure business premises 
were compliant with COVID-19 rules 

Food parcels delivered to 
medically vulnerable residents 

Staff Redeployed to other 
roles  to help support the 

COVID-19 response 

People referred for 
contact tracing to help 

everyone stay safe   

Mail-outs to support the 
Vaccination Programme in 

Ceredigion 

Active family bags distributed with 
Flying Start and Families First 

services 

Business Grant payments 
administered across Ceredigion 

with a value of £49m 

Laptops, tablets and MiFi 
devices supplied to pupils to 

access distance learning 

SUPPORTING CEREDIGION’S RESIDENTS, BUSINESSES 
AND COMMUNITIES THROUGH THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

P
age 42



HOME OF THE NATIONAL EISTEDDFOD 2022 

Pentre’ Ceredigion was Ceredigion County 
Council’s home in the Eisteddfod. A variety 
of activities were offered for children, young 
people and families during the week. Over 
25,000 people visited the area to support 
new businesses, watch cooking 
demonstrations which highlighted local 
businesses and produce, enjoy in the play 
area for children, learn new skills, and listen 
to interesting performances on the 
performing stage. 

A sense of belonging was also created as 
communities came together in the months 
before the Eisteddfod to decorate, raise 
money, socialise and have fun together. 

During the week, a ceremony was held to 
celebrate the achievements of Camu ‘Mlaen 
students. Camu 'Mlaen Ceredigion is an 
innovative new project and initiative led by 
Ceredigion County Council in partnership 
with Coleg Ceredigion and Careers Wales, 
which gives young people, post-16 with 
additional learning needs the opportunity to 
stay and continue their education within 
Ceredigion and to develop key skills as they 
prepare for their next stage in life. 

Other events this year included talks and 
workshops held in the main building to 
celebrate Ceredigion as the ideal place to 
live, belong, learn and succeed.  

36 

Between 30th July and 6th August 2022, 
Ceredigion welcomed the long-awaited 
National Eisteddfod of Wales to the 
County. The event, which is one of 
Europe’s largest cultural festivals was held 
in Tregaron after being postponed in 2020 
and 2021 due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  

The event was an overwhelming success 
and the Council’s preparations with the 
National Eisteddfod Team over the 
preceding months made it easier than ever 
for everyone to enjoy the language and 
culture of the county.  

It was great to welcome people from close 
and afar to Tregaron, Ceredigion towns and 
the surrounding areas, and provided a 
unique opportunity to celebrate language 
and culture of the area and Wales on the 
national stage.  

The local economy was supported during 
the week, being on the maes or as people 
wandered around the site to support 
businesses in the county. 

This year, there were competitions in 
poetry, reciting, dance, drama, literature, 
arts and craft and much more.  

There was also an extensive play area for 
children and young people, a green area to 
relax and admire nature, and a performing 
stage called 'Llwfyan-ni' which was full of 
exciting events and performances. 

Living 

Home, rest, opportunity, work within reach, 

forms part of the view from the fields to the beach 

“ 
” 

Learning 

The children of our deep-rooted fields, in a word,  

are the children of community, Wales and the world 

“ 
” 

Belonging 

Let’s speak our language, each to the other, 

let’s share our stories and create together 

“ 
” 

Succeeding 

We can move ahead without moving away: 

the horizon stands on our doorstep each day 
“ 

” 

P
age 43



MANAGING OUR PERFORMANCE 

The Corporate Strategy should not be viewed 
in isolation. It is part of the Council’s overall 
approach to corporate planning and 
performance management.  

The Council uses a ‘Golden Thread’ diagram 
(shown right) to show the links between its key 
strategies and plans. It describes the flow of 
information from national and regional 
priorities for improvement contained in the 
Local Well-being Plan and Corporate Strategy, 
through to individual services, teams and 
members of staff in the Council responsible 
for delivering them. 

A strong Golden Thread is important as it 
shows how each level of planning and action 
contributes to the next level, and how each 
role within the Council contributes towards 
achieving Ceredigion’s Corporate Well-being 
Objectives.  

The Corporate Strategy sets the vision and 
direction for the Council which flows down 
through our business plans through to 
individual appraisals and development plans. 
The steps to deliver the Corporate Well-being 
Objectives flow up from the individual 
members of staff and teams that contribute to 
the Council’s Strategy and Vision.  

Performance Management is a high priority in 
Ceredigion. The Council is committed to 
continuous improvement, regularly seeks 
citizen's views and undertakes self-evaluation 
to identify opportunities for improvement.  

To ensure we achieve this, we have a 
Performance Management Framework in 
place which allows us to regularly review and 
track progress, check how we are performing 
and ensure we are delivering the Corporate 
Wellbeing Objectives and improving outcomes 
for the people and communities of Ceredigion.  

37 

The ‘Golden Thread’ in Ceredigion 
Self-Assessment 

The Local Government and Elections (Wales) 
Act 2021 introduced a new performance 
regime for Councils in Wales based on self-
assessment.  

Self-Assessment is about self-awareness, 
understanding our strengths and areas for 
improvement, what the needs of our residents 
are, and knowing where and how to improve.  

For Ceredigion, the principles of self-
assessment already form an integral part of its 
ongoing strategic and corporate governance 
arrangements.  

Consultation and engagement is a prominent 
theme throughout the Act and we will be using 
the feedback from our consultation exercises 
with residents, businesses, staff and Trade 
Unions to influence our annual Self-
Assessment Report and Action Plan.  

Every year we will conduct our self-assessment 
exercise using a broad range of evidence to 
produce a Self-Assessment Report and Action 
Plan setting out the actions we will take to 
ensure that we are:  

• Exercising our functions effectively  

• Using our resources economically, 
efficiently and effectively and 

• That governance is effective for securing 
the matters set out above 

 

The Council’s first Self-Assessment Report will 
be published in November 2022.  

P
age 44



SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 introduced the 
Sustainable Development Principle and outlines the 5 Ways of Working 
that all public bodies must adopt. Sustainable development is the central 
organising principle that shapes what we do and how we do it.  

In essence, it means we must strive to ensure that the needs of the present 
are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet 
their own needs. We have embedded the principle across the Council and 
adopt the principle in the planning and delivery of our new Corporate Well-
being Objectives. Some of the ways in which we have used the Sustainable 
Development Principle are outlined below.  

Long-Term 

The importance of balancing short-term 
needs with the need to safeguard the long-
term needs. This Corporate Strategy looks 
to develop and improve the social, 
economic, environmental and cultural well- 
being of Ceredigion over the next 5 years 
and beyond.  

The Corporate Well-being Objectives and 
steps in this plan were informed by the 
Ceredigion Public Service’s Board’s 

Assessment of Local Well-being and the 
West Wales Population Assessment.  The 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Planning 
ensures that decisions consider the impact 
on future generations, and its workforce 
planning ensures the development of 
workforce skills for the future. 
 

Prevention 

Drawing on the evidence, our 
Corporate Well-being Objectives and steps 
are designed to prevent problems from 
occurring or getting worse. These include 
addressing the effects of poverty, the issues 
of rurality and improving the well-being of 
people of all ages, from early years through 
to older age. For example, Homelessness 
focuses on the prevention agenda and the 
Through Age Social Services Model 
promotes early intervention and prevention 
as one of its core aims.  

CORPORATE STRATEGY 

Collaboration 

The Corporate Well-being Objectives 
in this plan align with the Ceredigion Public 
Services Board’s Well-being Plan. This 
reflects our shared aspirations and common 
understanding of the challenges facing the 
County, such as tackling poverty, 
decarbonisation and reducing inequality. 
The Council is proactive in collaborating 
with partners to achieve these aims through 
the Ceredigion Public Services Board, the 
Growing Mid Wales Partnership and the 
Community Safety Partnership.  
 

Integration 

The Corporate Well-being Objectives 
have been set collectively by all services and 
cut across all Council functions.  They focus 
on what all services can do to improve the 
well-being of the people of Ceredigion and 

38 

contribute to the seven national Well-being 
Goals. The Objectives are also embedded in 
the Council’s corporate planning and 
performance management arrangements.  
 

Involvement 

The Corporate Strategy  has taken into 
account the Assessment of Local Well-being, 
which was produced following extensive 
engagement with citizens, including those 
with protected characteristics, as defined 
under the Equality Act 2010.  

We are also proactive in running stakeholder 
events with groups whose voices are seldom 
heard, and are currently in the process of 
developing a new Public Participation and 
Engagement Strategy which will ensure we 
reflect the diversity of the County and its 
communities.  

P
age 45



OUR PERFORMANCE 

39 

The Council routinely monitors and 
benchmarks its performance as part of its 
ongoing performance management 
arrangements. Performing 
benchmarking  contributes to our overall 
effectiveness and efficiency by allowing us to 
identify best practice and opportunities for 
improvement. 

Due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, 
the reporting of the national Performance 
Accountability Measures (PAMs) was 
suspended for the 2020/21 year. As a result 
only a small number were collected and these 
are shown overleaf.  

The last full year of collection was 2019/20, 
when twenty-one Performance Accountability 

The Council uses a variety of performance 
indicators to monitor how well our services 
are performing in meeting the needs of 
service users and to measure their 
efficiency and value for money.  

They measure performance across a wide 
range of Council services including: 
financial management, education, housing, 
leisure services, waste management and 
street cleansing. Targets are set for each 
measure and comparisons made with the 
West Wales region and the national picture.  

For example, despite the significant 
challenges over the last two years due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, two key measures of 
efficiency, the collection of Council Tax and 

On target:    14   (72%) 

Off target by less than 5%:    3    (14%) 

Off target by more than 5%:    4    (13%) 

PERFORMANCE 
ACCOUNTABILITY 

MEASURES 2019/20 
COMPARED TO 

TARGET 

On target:    14   (67%) 

Off target by less than 5%:    0    (0%) 

Off target by more than 5%:    7    (33%) 

PERFORMANCE 
ACCOUNTABILITY 

MEASURES 2019/20 
COMPARED TO 

2018/19 

Measures were collected. Results from that 
year show that the majority (14) of 
Ceredigion’s measures were meeting their 
target, with a further 3 slightly off target and 
4 were significant off-target, (see chart 
below left).  

When compared to the previous year, the 
majority (14) had shown improvement on 
the previous year, none were at the same 
level and the remaining 7 had decreased, 
(see chart below).  

The Council is proactively working with Data 
Cymru and all 21 other Local Authorities 
nationwide to develop an improved set of 
measures to assist in benchmarking and 
work on this will continue during 2023/24.  

OTHER KEY MEASURES 

Non-domestic (business) rates, both remain 
above average. The average Band ‘D’ Council 
Tax, often used as a comparator between 
different Counties, shows that current rates are 
equal to the national average across Wales.  

P
age 46



CORPORATE STRATEGY 

40 

2020/21 PERFORMANCE ACCOUNTABILITY MEASURES 

PERFORMANCE 
ACCOUNTABILITY 

MEASURES 2020/21 
COMPARED TO 

WALES AVERAGE 

Better than average: 6 

Same as average: 1 

Worse than average: 1 

P
age 47



  
 

 
 
   

www.ceredigion.gov.uk 

 

     By Post: 
Ceredigion County Council 
Canolfan Rheidol 
Rhodfa Padarn 
Llanbadarn Fawr 
Aberystwyth 
Ceredigion 
SY23 3UE 

 

 By Telephone : 
01545 570881 

  

A Plain Text Version or Easy Read 
Version of this document is available 
from Ceredigion County Council 

Contact Us 

P
age 48



1 

 

 

 

Corporate Strategy 2022-27 

Consultation 
Feedback Report  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

September 2022 

Page 49



1 

 

Infographic:  Cylch Caron Consultation Results Summary

 

HEADLINE RESULTS  

 Consultation undertaken between 24th August and 30th September 2022 

The survey was available online via the Council’s website and advertised through social media 

A total of 35 responses were received 

The full results and the equalities monitoring information are contained on the following pages 

35 
Responses received 

 

(As at 23 September) 

74% 
Agree or strongly agree with the 

Boosting the Economy objective  
 

(8% disagree or strongly disagree) 

74% 
Agree or strongly agree with 

the Creating Caring and 

Healthy Communities objective 
 

(9% disagree or strongly disagree) 

69% 
Agree or strongly agree with 

the Providing the Best Start in 

Life objective 
 

(6% disagree or strongly disagree) 

66% 
Agree or strongly agree with 

the Creating Sustainable, 

Greener and Well-connected 

Communities objective 

(3% disagree or strongly disagree) 

29 
Comments received in relation to 

the impact on the Welsh 

language. The main theme was 

the need for a greater emphasis 

on promoting Welsh 

Key themes from the written comments: 
 

 

SUPPORT FOR 

BUSINESSES, 

SME’s AND 

NEW START-

UPS 

 

DIGITAL 

CONNECTIVITY 

FOR ALL, NOT 

JUST A 

PERCENTAGE 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

IMPACT FROM 

DEVELOPMENT 

AND ECONOMIC 

GROWTH 

 

LEISURE 

FACILITIES AND 

OPPORTUNITIES 

FOR YOUNGER 

PEOPLE 

 

ACTIVE TRAVEL 

OPPORTUNITIES 

PARTICULARLY 

WALKING AND 

CYCLING 

 

CHALLENGES 

FACING 

PROVISION OF 

SOCIAL CARE 

 

RURAL 

DEPRIVATION 

AND FUNDED 

CHILDCARE 

 

LEARNING 

OPPORTUNITIES 

FOR OLDER 

PEOPLE 

 

CONNECTING 

COMMUNITIES 

VIA ACTIVE 

TRAVEL ROUTES 

 

PUBLIC 

TRANSPORT 

IMPROVEMENTS 

AND HIGH 

COSTS 

Page 50

https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.pembrokeshire.ac.uk%2Fthe-college-welsh-language-standards%2F&psig=AOvVaw2EcznBR-9DlqY4VWxPI8QI&ust=1596138234238000&source=images&cd=vfe&ved=0CAIQjRxqFwoTCIiVlryc8-oCFQAAAAAdAAAAABAK


1 

 

Background 
 

Between 24th August and 30th September 2022, Ceredigion County Council consulted with residents on 

its Draft Corporate Strategy 2022-27. 
 

Following the Local Elections in May, a new Corporate Strategy was needed to set out the priorities of 

the Council for the next five years. The Corporate Strategy sets out the Council’s priorities called 

Corporate Well-Being Objectives, along with its ambitions and the steps to achieve these over the next 

five years. The Strategy informs everything the Council does and is based on a wide-ranging review of 

evidence and needs-assessments. Residents’ views were sought to help guide future opportunities to 

improve outcomes for all residents and communities in Ceredigion.  
 

The survey was made available online via the Council’s website and advertised through social media. 

Printed copies and easy read versions were available on request.  
 

Response Rate 
 

As at 23rd September, there were a total of 35 responses to the Consultation and 145 written comments. 

Consultation responses on Council Strategies and Policies tend to be fewer but more detailed. On 

average respondents took 14mins 30 seconds to complete the survey. The pages that follow provide a 

summary of the findings.  
 

Main Findings 
 

Q1: Do you agree or disagree with the ambitions and steps for the “Boosting the economy, supporting 

businesses and enabling employment” objective? 
 

Overall, the majority of respondents (74%) either agreed or strongly agreed with the ambitions and 

steps for the Boosting the Economy objective. There were also a further 17% or 6 responses that neither 

agreed nor disagreed. A further 9% or 3 respondents either disagreed or strongly disagreed with the 

objective, although the reasons for this were very varied – one was due to the need for more affordable 

housing, another was due to the need to support the tourism industry and the remaining respondent 

felt strongly that protecting the natural environment should feature strongly within the Boosting the 

Economy objective.   
 

 

37% 37%

17%

3%
6%

0

10

20

30

40

Strongly Agree Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly

Disagree

Q1. Do you agree or disagree with the ambitions 

and steps for the “Boosting the economy, 

supporting businesses and enabling employment” 

objective?

 Percentage

Page 51



2 

 

Q2: Can you suggest any gaps or improvements? 
 

There were a variety of ideas presented as to how this objective could strengthened. The most prevalent 

of these was support for local and small businesses. Although this does feature in the draft Corporate 

Strategy, there were eight comments highlighting its importance. Some suggested lower business rates 

and some pointed to specifically supporting the tourism industry by reducing parking charges and 

super-boosting market towns. Others stressed the importance of helping new start-ups in the wake of 

the COVID-19 pandemic which had hit some local businesses hard, while others felt that SMEs (Small 

and Medium Sized Enterprises) should be supported and promoted as they are what helps to give the 

County and its towns its unique feel and characteristic.  

 

Other identified improvements were for the environment to feature in the objective, i.e. for businesses 

and developers to consider the impact on the natural environment and to prioritise low carbon aims and 

sustainability. There was one comment in relation to the commitments to improve digital connectivity in 

the County, which stressed that achieving decent broadband should apply to all households and 

businesses and not be satisfied with a proportion of properties achieving this standard. They drew on 

their own experience trying to run a business but struggling to get connected. A sample of these 

comments are shown in the table below.  

 

Sample Comments 

“SMEs should be supported and promoted - they give 

Ceredigion’s unique feel and characteristic.” 

“Help for early start-up companies. Mine was decimated 

due to covid and I have not been able to start again due 

to lack of funding help to get up and running again.” 

 

“Base on low carbon aims and sustainability - put the 

cohesiveness of local communities first.” 

“Decent broadband for ALL!!! Not a percentage. We live 

150 yards from a cabinet but cannot get connected as 

there are not enough takers in the area. It would cost 

hundreds of pounds to do privately!! Yet we run a small 

business and need decent internet.” 

 
 

Q3: Are there any that you disagree with, and if so why? 
 

There were three respondents who disagreed or strongly disagreed with the ambitions and steps for this 

objective. Of these three, there were very different reasons provided as to why they disagreed and what 

should be amended in the draft Corporate Strategy. One highlighted the urgent need for affordable 

housing for working people, and another focused on tourism and the impact of the 182 day rule for the 

qualification of business rates, fearing that this will have a negative impact on the industry and 

businesses in this sector. The third respondent focused on the environmental impact of boosting the 

economy and that it does not feature strongly enough in this Objective. Their view is that the natural 

environment should play a much greater role in this objective and that developers and businesses 

consider the effects on our environment. These views are shown in the table overleaf.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 52



3 

 

Sample Comments 

“Affordable housing for working people, with supportive 

housing department who actually listen and carry out home 

or face to face visits.” 

“Yet again the natural environment is apparently not of 

any importance. Move it to a position that will force 

entrepreneurs and economists to consider the effects on 

our environment. All of them. Pollution and development 

should not be allowed to run roughshod over the 

environment.” 

“The 182-day rule is ridiculous as not many people want to 

travel in the winter for holidays. With the cost of fuel 

escalating we cannot charge more as this will be out of 

everybody’s budget.” 

 

 

 

Q4: Do you agree or disagree with the ambitions and steps for the “Creating caring and healthy 

communities” objective? 
 

The Creating Caring and Healthy Communities objective received the strongest support from 

respondents with 43% strongly agreeing and a further 31% agreeing with the ambitions and steps to 

deliver the objective, which is 74% supportive overall. Like the Boosting the economy objective there 

were 17% or 6 responses that were neither supportive nor against. However, there were also 3 responses 

that strongly disagreed with this objective, citing lack of facilities for younger people, the need to create 

opportunities in food production (not meat and dairy), water quality and green energy for younger 

people, and the vacancies in the carers paid workforce as the reasons for this.   
 

 
 

Q5: Can you suggest any gaps or improvements? 
 

There were a variety of different views expressed as to how this objective could be improved. Some 

respondents argued strongly for better provision of active travel routes and infrastructure throughout 

the County to help create healthy communities, while others highlighted the challenges in the provision 

of social care, such as the number of vacancies in the sector both locally and nationally. One highlighted 

the need for greater support for people living with dementia, while another focused on local democracy 

and suggested that greater opportunities to influence decisions in their local area was needed. (Please 

note that increasing the opportunities for active travel is a key part of the Council’s ambitions in the draft 

Strategy on page 33). A sample of these comments are listed in the table overleaf.  

43%

31%

17%

0%

9%

0

10

20

30

40

50

Strongly Agree Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly

disagree

Q4. Do you agree or disagree with the ambitions and 

steps for the “Creating caring and healthy 

communities” objective?

 Percentage

Page 53



4 

 

Sample Comments 

“Healthy communities refers to all ages yet sporting 

provision and opportunities for all are being taken away 

from our younger generation, for example a 3G pitch for 

football as opposed to multi surface. A multi surface is 

inclusive and support an array of sports, 3G is football only 

therefore not promoting healthy communities only healthy 

football players.” 

“Put communities and the wellbeing of residents first - 

residents should be able to walk and cycle directly from A 

to B - not currently possible as villages and towns are not 

joined up. Invest in a post and apply Netherlands cycle 

planning to Ceredigion - make it a green and sustainable 

destination - to genuinely make it a caring and healthy 

community”. 

 “There is so little support available for the elderly those 

living with dementia - and what is it not joined up and 

promoted effectively.” 

 

Q6: Are there any that you disagree with, and if so why? 
 

There were three respondents who strongly disagreed with this objective, and as in the previous 

Boosting the economy objective there were three very different reasons provided. The first concerned 

the lack of leisure facilities particularly for younger people, explaining that they felt sporting facilities 

were actually being reduced and that facilities should be available for all sports and activities. The 

second highlighted the value of small but close communities and the opportunity for younger people to 

enter into careers in food production (but not meat and dairy), water quality and green energy 

production. They suggested that this should feature prominently in the education of Ceredigion’s pupils.  

 

The third respondent highlighted one of the key challenges in the provision of social care – the number 

of vacancies in the sector and questioned the Council’s approach, arguing that looking to families and 

volunteers to provide care is a flawed approach given there are many vacancies. Another respondent 

who actually agreed overall with the ambitions and steps for this objective raised the issue of 

homelessness and that ore needs to be done to help them. They highlighted that Council policies might 

be the place to start to help them qualify for housing. A sample of these comments are shown in the 

table below.  

 

Sample Comments 

“Healthy communities refers to all ages yet sporting 

provision and opportunities for all are being taken away 

from our younger generation, for example a 3G pitch for 

football as opposed to multi surface. A multi surface is 

inclusive and support an array of sports, 3G is football only 

therefore not promoting healthy communities only healthy 

football players.” 

“Go back to small, local schools where the value of small 

scale communities can be inculcated. Careers in food 

production (not meat and dairy), water quality and green 

energy production should be prominent in the education 

of our youngest pupils”. 

“Looking towards family and volunteers to provide care 

when there are so many vacancies in the carers paid 

workforce highlights a flawed ideology.  This is leaving 

people and families already vulnerable in dangerous and 

damaging circumstances. It actively goes against prudent 

health care.” 

“I would challenge that we are talking about creating 

caring and healthy communities and yet we have so many 

homeless on the prom who aren't being helped because 

[council] policies put too high a demand on them just to 

qualify for housing. They are vulnerable and at risk adults 

who can't handle these things and need to be eased into 

it.” 

Page 54



5 

 

Q7. Do you agree or disagree with the ambitions and steps for the “Providing the best start in life and 

enabling learning at all ages” objective? 
 

The majority of respondents (24 respondents or 69%) either strongly agreed or agreed with the 

‘Providing the best start in life and enabling learning at all ages’ well-being objective and the steps to 

deliver it. However, over a quarter of respondents (9 respondents or 26%) neither agreed nor disagreed 

with the Corporate Well-being Objective. Analysing the responses further, highlighted that half of those 

that selected “neither agree not disagree” did not have an opinion on the matter (i.e., the hidden “don’t 

know”), whilst the other half had a neutral opinion (i.e., the respondent was between agreeing and 

disagreeing). A very small percentage of respondents (2 respondents or 6%) disagreed, whilst none of 

the respondents strongly disagreed with the ambitions and steps that were set out in the third 

Corporate Well-being Objective. 

 

 

Q8. Can you suggest any gaps or improvements? 
 

Sixteen respondents (46%) highlighted gaps and/or suggested improvements to the third Corporate 

Well-being Objective. However, the responses were varied, with no clear trends. Suggestions on 

improvements and gaps ranged from providing learning opportunities for older people that are not 

tailored towards employment, to ensuring that all children have access to three healthy meals per day. 

A number of respondents that agreed or strongly agreed with the initial question used this as an 

opportunity to qualify their decision, for example, through expressing their support for the ambition to 

ensure purposeful and resilient school infrastructure. A selection of the comments is contained in the 

table below.    
 

Sample Comments 

“I strongly agree with the efforts to obtain funding for a new 

build at Ysgol Penglais. In my opinion this is imperative for 

future pupils to achieve their educational potential.  

Penglais is without a doubt an aging building that requires a 

replacement to keep up with modern education. The school 

does it's upmost to provide all pupils with facilities to carry 

out their studies however, the property is becoming unfit 

for purpose.”   

 

“Ensure all ages have provision and opportunities. 

Promote health and wellbeing across the County, rather 

than reduce services. Wellbeing hubs could offer specific 

clubs e.g., netball in a County where there is only 1 junior 

club.” 

37%

31%

26%

6%

0%
0

10

20

30

40

Strongly Agree Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly

Disagree

Q7. Do you agree or disagree with the ambitions 

and steps for the “Providing the best start in life 

and enabling learning at all ages” objective?

 Percentage

Page 55



6 

 

“I know that Ceredigion supports education really well. 

Please continue to do so.” 

 

“What about adults who wish to learn Welsh? If you want 

more Welsh speakers there needs to be FREE classes 

provided, or schemes set up in community centres / pubs 

/ or cafes etc to encourage social interaction alongside 

conversation in Welsh with native speakers.” 

 

Q9: Are there any that you disagree with, and if so why? 
 

Overall, three survey participants provided an answer to question nine: whether they disagreed with the 

steps and ambitions set out in the Corporate Well-being Objective - Providing the best start in life and 

enabling learning at all ages. One respondent agreed with the Corporate Well-being Objective but felt 

that the ambitions and steps were unachievable in practice, particularly in relation to understanding rural 

deprivation and funded childcare. The remaining two respondents disagreed with specific ambitions and 

steps, however, they did so for different reasons. One respondent was concerned about the emphasis 

placed on the Welsh language, which they felt disincentivises non-bilingual schoolteachers from 

applying for teaching jobs, whilst the other respondent expressed concerns about the delivery of the net 

zero emissions target. A selection of comments is outlined in the table below. 

 

Sample Comments 

“I agree with it but I'm not sure we do it well in practice. For 

example…I know people who have left university and are 

unable to find work but their partner works. They're busy 

looking for a job but have one or more children to care for. 

Because they're not working, they are not eligible for free 

educational childcare. They struggle to balance raising and 

teaching their child while trying to find work which is a huge 

challenge and are essentially penalised for it. Meanwhile 

people who are very wealthy benefit off the free childcare 

scheme when they could afford it without any trouble or 

change to their quality of life.”  

“My second example is seeing the local primary school 

where I am considering moving…the schools in the rural 

villages clearly haven't had work on them (save the 

addition of cabins to provide more classrooms) in 

decades. Meanwhile, if you live in a town like Aberystwyth, 

you're spoilt for choice on great schools… I agree with the 

sentiment of this but feel in practice this aim has never 

rung true as if you live rural or just one parent (or worse a 

single parent) is unable to find work, your child is not 

going to receive the best start in life from this LA [Local 

Authority].”   

“Net zero is unattainable and will cost hundreds of millions 

which will be seen to be a waste of money by Ceredigion 

residents. The new curriculum needs further scrutiny, as RSE 

[Relationships and Sex Education] lessons in the way 

proposed for primary aged children would be 

inappropriate.” 

“Stop insisting teachers must have Welsh you are not 

getting a high grade of graduates because they are put 

off by this.” 

 

 

Q10: Do you agree or disagree with the ambitions and steps for the “Creating sustainable, greener and 

well-connected communities” objective? 
 

Most respondents either agreed (31%) or strongly agreed (34%) with the ambitions and steps for the 

Corporate Well-being Objective of “Creating sustainable, greener and well-connected communities”, a 

total of 65% of all respondents. Just over 30% (31%) of respondents selected ‘Neutral’ when answering 

this question. 0% of respondents strongly disagreed with the ambitions and steps for this Corporate 

Well-being Objective.   

Page 56



7 

 

 

 

Q11: Can you suggest any gaps or improvements? 
 

There were 17 written answers to this question, which is just under half of all respondents (48%). The 

majority of written comments related to the need to improve cycling routes and better connecting 

communities in Ceredigion. It is clear that these respondents do not think that there are enough 

adequate, safe and suitable cycling routes around the County. Additionally, they noted that public 

transport is lacking, which results in people having to use their car to travel. Improving walking and 

cycling links between communities was identified as the solution to this issue.  

 

Sample Comments 

“You really need to get our isolated communities connected 

better. There is some public transport available, however 

please please please start to consider getting cycle lanes or 

designated cycle lanes/routes so that we can get from A to 

B safely and in a green and sustainable manner using 

bicycles.” 

“Sustainably connected. With an emphasis on green 

transport. Safe cycling routes between communities in 

Ceredigion are lacking.” 

“Proper on road cycle routes are needed or green ways 

linking all towns and villages.” 

“Walking and cycling paths need to be placed along 

EVERY road on Ceredigion to ensure people can safely 

walk or cycle wherever they need to go.”   

“Make a planning post to have a vision of Netherlands style 

cycle routes linking up Ceredigion - how infrastructure 

could be if proper standards were put in place to join 

communities up.  Aim for a green and connected 

Ceredigion. Make all villages and towns 20mph zones and 

have adequate Netherlands style direct cycle routes 

between all towns and villages.  Make Ceredigion the green 

sustainable county.  Actually have public transport provision 

which works - 6am to 12 pm, affordable and reliable…” 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31%
34%

31%

3%
0%

0

10

20

30

40

Strongly Agree Agree Neutral Disagree Strongly

Disagree

Q10. Do you agree or disagree with the ambitions 

and steps for the “Creating sustainable, greener 

and well-connected communities” objective?

 Percentage

Page 57



8 

 

Q12: Are there any that you disagree with, and if so why? 
 

The written responses to this question included a variety of opinions around sustainable transport 

and protection of the environment. Some respondents took the opportunity to emphasize the 

importance of opportunities for active travel, particularly walking and cycling, and creating active 

travel routes to link up the Counties towns and villages. However, some respondents also questioned 

the approach to protecting the environment, explaining that the cost of achieving a net zero Council 

will be prohibitive and another that the climate emergency does not exist. Instead, they explained 

that the Council should focus on supporting and engaging with local farmers in the production of 

high-quality local produce.  

 

Another respondent linked the Council’s decarbonisation ambitions to the Experimental Traffic 

Orders in four of Ceredigion’s Towns which retains selected parking and traffic flow elements installed 

temporarily in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Their view is that these arrangements have 

increased traffic congestion and therefore resulted in increased carbon emissions. A sample of some 

of these comments are shown below.  

 

Sample Comments 

"Net zero is unattainable and will cost hundreds of millions 

which will be seen to be a waste of money by Ceredigion 

residents. Teifi Valley flooding is a result of poor land & 

forestry management." 

“Be more specific. Offer green sustainable initiatives 

actually supported by a planning department which is not 

stuck in the past.” 

“There is no Climate Emergency. The Council needs to stop 

spending money on this nonsense. Focus on reducing 

pollution, support our farmers in their role, producing 

excellent quality food. Do not become side tracked by 

minority pressure groups. Vitally, engage with farmers to 

maintain our beautiful county.” 

“I think that CCC need to think about their lower carbon 

emissions plan again. The ETRO’s and safe zone road 

closures and changes have just escalated the problems to 

other areas. Traffic queues making matters worse. Then 

we had the Rali in the town centre? The changes and cuts 

to refuse collection in the name of carbon reduction have 

had very damaging effects on the town centre and 

housing estates with litter and rats escalating.” 

 

 

Q13: We would like to know your views on the effects that the proposed Corporate Strategy would 

have on the Welsh language, specifically on opportunities for people to use Welsh and on treating 

the Welsh language no less favourably than English. What effects do you think there would be? How 

could positive effects be increased, or negative effects be mitigated? 
 

There were 29 comments received on the impact that the Corporate Strategy would have on the 

Welsh language. The most prevalent comment was that the promotion of the Welsh language 

needed to be strengthened considerably to reflect its importance to the County, its communities and 

as a priority of the Council. There were, for example, a number of strong views expressed that the 

Welsh language should be prioritised over the use of English and greater opportunities should be 

provided for people to learn and use it in everyday life. The provision of Welsh lessons was raised not 

only in response to this question, but also in the responses to the Providing the best start in life 

objective as one way of promoting the Welsh language, encouraging people to learn or develop 

their Welsh further and in creating opportunities for the use of Welsh in all settings. A sample of 

these comments are shown in the table below.  

Page 58



9 

 

Sample Comments 

“The Welsh language is our first language and needs to be 

given priority.” 

“Put Welsh first (I’m monolingual English) - street signs 

for e.g. should be Welsh only.” 

“Free courses for Ceredigion school Staff and council staff 

for Welsh and sign language.” 

“If you had more Welsh lessons more people might use 

it.” 

“I agree that it is good to promote the ideals of Welsh 

language and culture, by persuasion rather than by law 

preferably! Make it easier for people to understand the local 

culture and adapt to their new life in Ceredigion, whilst also 

recognising we are part of the UK, and everyone has the 

right to be understood and appreciated, whatever their 

heritage and native language.” 

“This wasn't mentioned at all. Not at all in the Corporate 

Strategy and the Corporate Strategy was in English and 

not bi-lingual. That has favoured English over Welsh. I 

am a Welsh learner but it wasn't until I began to work 

here that I had access to free Welsh lessons as I couldn't 

afford them. Welsh shouldn't be equal to English.” 

 

 

Q14: Please also explain how you believe the proposed Corporate Strategy could be formulated or 

changed so as to have positive effects or increased positive effects on opportunities for people to use 

the Welsh language and on treating the Welsh language no less favourably than the English 

language. Also how the Corporate Strategy could be formulated or changed so that there are no 

adverse effects on opportunities for people to use the Welsh language and on treating the Welsh 

language no less favourably than the English language. 

 

The follow-on question asked what changes could be made to increase the positive impact on the 

Welsh language and avoid negative impacts. There were two main themes in response to this 

question. Firstly, there were some comments reflecting the sentiment expressed in Q13, i.e. stating 

simply that Welsh should be prioritised over English. Secondly, some responses went one step further 

and expressed ideas as to how Welsh could be promoted, such as through the provision of additional 

lessons for learners. One response highlighted the need to focus on opportunities for employment, 

housing and levels of pay as one way of encouraging local people to stay and live in their local area 

and thus retain their language skills in their community. A sample of these comments are shown in 

the table below.  

 

Sample Comments 

“Every school in Ceredigion should be all Welsh first” “Welsh first” 

“Ensure that employment, housing and opportunities are of 

a good standard with acceptable rates of pay to encourage 

local people to stay local” 

“Welsh should be prioritised as we're meant to be aiming 

for a fully Welsh speaking Wales. Free Welsh education 

should be available and encouraged through various 

schemes for business or just to the general public so the 

language does not die.” 

 

Q15: Do you have any other comments about the draft Corporate Strategy? 
 

This question was open-ended and provided respondents with the opportunity to raise any issues or 

ideas not covered in the rest of the survey. Fifteen respondents took the opportunity to either raise 

further issues or emphasize points already made in the previous questions. There were specific 

mentions of the need to include voluntary organisations and the role of volunteering in the County, 

Page 59



10 

 

explaining that their role is vital in supporting people in a multitude of ways, for example, in training 

and jobs, in education and in health initiatives.  

 

There were some further comments regarding transport in the County, highlighting the cost and 

frequency of bus services, the need for cycling infrastructure and reductions to speed limits through 

the County’s towns and villages. Environmental issues were also further emphasized, as was the 

importance of developing the local economy, improving education and tackling poverty. Of note, was 

the importance of communicating that Ceredigion is ‘open for business’ and creating a positive 

narrative around the economy to help attract entrepreneurs, businesses and jobs. Finally, some 

respondents questioned whether the Council would actually be able to achieve these ambitions. A 

sample of these comments are contained in the table below.  

 

Sample Comments 

“I must admit to having skimmed it rather than reading in 

detail, but I didn’t find any specific mention of voluntary 

organisations/volunteering. This is vital, especially in the 

present circumstances, and applicable to more than one of 

the objectives. It can help people into training for 

jobs/careers; it can play a role in education/play; it can 

support health initiatives - I could go on.” 

“Buses too expensive, not reliable and don’t give enough 

coverage - need proper cycle routes linking all 

communities towns and villages up. The future is cycling 

using e bikes for both residents and visitors- Ceredigion 

should try to promote itself as a green county- this would 

support development and wellbeing the most. Safety on 

the main roads - A487 for e.g. would be most served by 

implementing 20mph through all towns and villages from 

2023 - without this the affected villages are not  

communities but dormitory settlements without any 

thought being given to residents health or wellbeing.” 

“There is an environmental crisis, brought about by human 

littering & fly-tipping.  There is NOT an overall climate crisis.  

Tackle the environmental issue & see how things quickly 

improve.”   

“The plan must say, Ceredigion is open for business, all 

are welcomed. Let’s move on, reduce poverty, improve 

educational outcomes (including science) and reduce 

unemployment.” 

“I believe the Council need to seek out the things affecting 

their residents and really listen to what people need. A 

dramatically improved bus service and toilet facilities will 

bring elderly people out of their homes, get them moving 

and enable them to remain independent for many more 

years than the current situation is allowing.  Access to 

walking paths and cycle lanes will allow people to use their 

cars less, allow children to move around safely and give 

everyone the chance to stay fit and healthy for the future.” 

“Please do more than produce a strategy, get on with  

demonstrating progress and then the Council would face 

less criticism”.  

Page 60



11 

 

Equalities Monitoring Questions 

 

The Council’s standard demographic and equalities monitoring questions were asked as part of the survey.  

 

 
     

 

 

16. Age - What is your age group?

Under 16 (0)

16 - 24 years (0)

25 - 44 years (7)

45 - 64 years
(15)

65+ (10)

Prefer not to say
(1)

17. Gender - What is your gender?

Male (12)

Female (18)

Other (0)

Prefer Not To
Say (3)

18. Transgender - is your gender the 
same as when it was asigned at birth?

Yes (24)

No (1)

Prefer not to say
(5)

19. Sexual Orientation - Which one of the 
following options best describes how you 
think of yourself?

Heterosexual/ Straight (19)

Gay Man (2)

Gay Woman/ Lesbian (1)

Bisexual (0)

Prefer not to say (5)

Other (4)

2

17

5

1 1
0

1
0

5

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

Single Married Living with
Partner

Divorced Widowed Civil
Partnership

Separated Other Prefer not
to say

%

20. Partnership - Which of the following options describes your partnership 
status?

Page 61



12 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

17

3

1
0

10

0
1 1

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

Welsh English Scottish Northern
Irish

British Irish Other Prefer not to
say

%
21. National identify - How would you describe your national identity?

27

0 0 0 0
1

6

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

White Asian Black/ African/
Caribbean

Mixed Gypsy Travellers Other Prefer not to
say

%

22. Race - What is your ethnic group? Choose one option that best describes 
your ethnic group or background.

3

24

1

6

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Welsh English Other Prefer not to
say

%

23. Language - What is your preferred 
langauge?

Page 62



13 

 

 
 

 

 
 

12

9

11
10

9

7

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Understand
spoken Welsh

Speak Welsh Read Welsh Write Welsh None of the
above

Prefer not to say

N
u

m
b

er
24. Lanuage - Can you understand, speak, read or write Welsh?

25. Disability - Do you have a long term physical or mental health 
condition or illness that reduces your ability to carry out day to day 
activities?

Yes (6)

No (24)

Prefer not to say (3)

1

0 0

1 1

4

1

2

0

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

Hearing
Impairment

Visual
Impairment

Speech
Impairment

Learning
Difficulties

Mental Health
Issues

Physical /
Mobility

Impairment

Other Prefer not to
say

%

26. Disability - If you answered 'Yes' to question 25, please indicate which 
applies to you?

Page 63



14 

 

 

 
 

 

 

27. Caring Responsobilities - Do you look after or give help or support to 
family members, friends, neighbours, or others because of either: long term 
physical or mental ill-health / disability; or problems related to old age? 

Yes (9)

No (20)

Prefer not to say (3)

10

0 0 0 0 0

2

12

7

1

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

%

28. Religion or Belief - What is your religion?

Page 64



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

1 
 

This Integrated Impact Assessment tool incorporates the principles of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Sustainable 
Development Principles, the Equality Act 2010 and the Welsh Language Measure 2011 (Welsh Language Standards requirements) and Risk 
Management in order to inform effective decision making and ensuring compliance with respective legislation. 

 
1.  PROPOSAL DETAILS: (Policy/Change Objective/Budget saving) 
Proposal Title Corporate Strategy 2022-27 

 

Service Area PPPP Corporate Lead 
Officer Alun Williams Strategic Director Barry Rees 

 

Name of Officer completing the 
IIA Rob Starr E-mail Rob.starr@cereigion.gov.uk Phone no 2653 

 

Please give a brief description of the purpose of the proposal 
The previous Corporate Strategy 2017-22 came to an end in March 2022. Best practice and the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 requires a new Corporate Strategy. The new Corporate Strategy sets out the new Corporate Well-being Objectives and the steps the 
Council intends to take to deliver the Objectives and maximise its contribution to the National Well-being Goals whilst ensuring that it implements 
the Sustainable Development Principle.  
 
Who will be directly affected by this proposal? (e.g. The general public, specific sections of the public such as youth groups, carers, road users, 
people using country parks, people on benefits, staff members or those who fall under the protected characteristics groups as defined by the 
Equality Act and for whom the authority must have due regard). 
All citizens and stakeholders in Ceredigion. 
 

 

VERSION CONTROL: The IIA should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then honed and refined throughout the decision 
making process.  It is important to keep a record of this process so that we can demonstrate how we have considered and built in sustainable 
development, Welsh language and equality considerations wherever possible. 
Author Decision making stage Version number Date considered Brief description of any amendments made following 

consideration 
 e.g. Budget Process, LG, 

Scrutiny, Cabinet etc. 
  This will demonstrate how we have considered and built in 

sustainable development throughout the evolution of a 
proposal.  Have you considered and applied the sustainable 
development principle and Well-being Goals? 

P
age 65

mailto:Rob.starr@cereigion.gov.uk


Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

2 
 

Rob Starr Overview and Scrutiny 
Coordinating Committee 

V1 14/10/2022 To consider the draft Corporate Strategy following 
consultation and approve for implementation.  

     
     

COUNCIL STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES: Which of the Council’s Strategic Objectives does the proposal address and how? 
Boosting the Economy 
 
Investing in People’s Future 
 
Enabling Individual and Family 
Resilience  
 
Promoting Environmental and 
Community Resilience 
 

This proposal seeks to replace the Council’s previous corporate priorities and previous well-being 
objectives with a new set of four Corporate Well-being objectives. The proposed new Objectives are: 
 

• Boosting the Economy, Supporting Businesses and Enabling Employment 
• Creating Caring and Healthy Communities 
• Providing the Best Start in Life and Enabling Learning at All Ages 
• Creating Sustainable, Green and Well-connected Communities 

 
The Objectives have been identified through extensive analysis of evidence and engagement with 
residents, including the ambitions of the new political administration, the Ceredigion Assessment of Local 
Well-being and the recent public consultation on the draft strategy.   
 
The objectives have also been identified through the lens of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015. This involved identifying how we could maximise our contribution to the national well-being goals 
and also ensure that we used the sustainable development principle to ensure that the needs of the 
present are met without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. 
 

 
NOTE:  As you complete this tool you will be asked for evidence to support your views.  These need to include your baseline position, 
measures and studies that have informed your thinking and the judgement you are making.  It should allow you to identify whether any changes 
resulting from the implementation of the recommendation will have a positive or negative effect. Data sources include for example: 

• Quantitative data - data that provides numerical information, e.g. population figures, number of users/non-users 
• Qualitative data – data that furnishes evidence of people’s perception/views of the service/policy, e.g. analysis of complaints, outcomes of focus groups, 

surveys 
• Local population data from the census figures (such as Ceredigion Welsh language Profile and Ceredigion Demographic Equality data) 
• National Household survey data 
• Service User data  
• Feedback from consultation and engagement campaigns 
• Recommendations from Scrutiny  

P
age 66



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

3 
 

• Comparisons with similar policies in other authorities 
• Academic publications, research reports, consultants’ reports, and reports on any consultation with e.g. trade unions or the voluntary and community sectors, 

‘Is Wales Fairer’ document.  
• Welsh Language skills data for Council staff 

 

2.  SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT PRINCIPLES:  How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the five sustainable development 
principles, as outlined in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015, in its development? 
Sustainable Development 
Principle 

Does the proposal demonstrate you 
have met this principle? If yes, describe 
how. If not, explain why. 

What evidence do you 
have to support this view? 

What action (s) can you take to mitigate 
any negative impacts or better 
contribute to the principle? 

Long Term 
Balancing short term need with 
long term and planning for the 
future. 

• This Corporate Strategy seeks to 
develop and improve the social, 
economic, environmental and 
cultural well-being of Ceredigion 
over the next 5 years and beyond 

• Medium Term Financial Planning 
ensures that decisions consider the 
impact on future generations 

• Workforce planning will ensure the 
development of workforce skills for 
the future 

• Workforce planning will ensure the 
Council has a sustainable and 
qualified workforce for the future 

• Asset Management will ensure that 
the new ways of working are 
implemented and take advantage of 
the opportunities that exist post 
COVID-19 to ensure sustainable 
and high-quality services  

Boosting the Economy, supporting 
Business and enabling employment 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 
Workforce Plan 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion's Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan 
Asset Management Plan 
Ceredigion County Council 
Capital Programme 
Through Age Well-being 
Strategy 
Carbon Management Plan 
Census 2021 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 
 

• Conduct a ‘triangulation’ exercise of 
the evidence used to ensure that the 
objectives identified are evidenced.  

• Full public consultation conducted 
between 24th August and 30th 
September 2022. 

• All responses to the consultation 
have been considered and where 
necessary amendments made. 

• Develop the objectives through the 
lens of the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act, in particular identify 
how we can maximise our 
contribution to the national well-being 
goals and also ensure that we used 
the sustainable development 
principle to ensure that the needs of 
the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs. 

P
age 67



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

4 
 

• The Economic Strategy plans for the 
long-term development of the 
economy up to 2035 

• The Mid Wales Growth Deal and the 
Economic Strategy addresses 
structural weaknesses for long-term 
benefit 

• The Growing Mid Wales Partnership 
sets the vision for 15+ year 
timeframe 

• Future trend analysis has been used 
to develop the Growing Mid Wales 
vision 

Creating Caring and Healthy 
Communities 
• Ceredigion's Welsh in Education 

Strategic Plan (WESP) is a 10-year 
strategy to strengthen Welsh 
language provision and work 
towards a million Welsh speakers 
Wales wide by 2050 

• The recovery from the pandemic is 
projected to last for a number of 
years and our plans to tackle 
poverty take a long-term approach 

• School improvements provide better 
facilities for future generations of 
learners 

Providing the best start in life and 
enabling Learning at all ages 
• The Through Age Model An involves 

long-term planning to ensure 
sustainable services for the next 15 
years + 

P
age 68



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

5 
 

• Future Trends, such as 
demographic change have been 
utilised in the Model 

• The recovery from the pandemic is 
projected to last for a number of 
years and our plans to improve 
physical and mental well-being take 
a long-term approach to support in 
response 

Creating sustainable, greener and 
well-connected communities 
• Long-term planning to reduce 

carbon emissions will help protect 
our beautiful landscape for future 
generations 

• Future Trend analysis utilised in 
developing the Council’s 5-Year 
Carbon Management Plan 

Collaboration 
Working together with other 
partners to deliver. 

The Council actively supports a variety 
of partnerships, and is proactive in 
assessing the benefits of partnerships 
to the citizens and communities of 
Ceredigion.  
 
Boosting the Economy, supporting 
Business and enabling employment 
• The Growing Mid Wales Partnership 

brings together public, private and 
academic sectors to achieve shared 
goals 

• Working with Powys County Council 
and Welsh and UK Government to 
maximise use of re-sources and 
capitalise on opportunities 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 
Workforce Plan 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion's Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan 
Asset Management Plan 
Ceredigion County Council 
Capital Programme 
Through Age Well-being 
Strategy 
Carbon Management Plan 
Census 2021 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 

• Conduct a ‘triangulation’ exercise of 
the evidence used to ensure that the 
objectives identified are evidenced.  

• Full public consultation conducted 
between 24th August and 30th 
September 2022. 

• All responses to the consultation 
have been considered and where 
necessary amendments made. 

• Develop the objectives through the 
lens of the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act, in particular identify 
how we can maximise our 
contribution to the national well-being 
goals and also ensure that we used 
the sustainable development 

P
age 69



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

6 
 

Creating caring and healthy 
communities 
• The Council works proactively with 

partners through the Ceredigion 
Public Services Board Poverty Sub- 
Group to tackle the causes and 
impacts of poverty across the 
County 

• Working with the Third Sector to 
provide mental health support to 
young people following the COVID-
19 pandemic 

Providing the best start in life and 
enabling Learning at all ages 
• The Health Board, Council and Third 

Sector partners work collaboratively 
to implement integrated health and 
social care programmes across west 
Wales 

• Effective collaboration with the 
Health Board in responding to the 
COVID-19 pandemic such as the 
setting up the two field hospitals and 
the Mass Vaccination Centres 

Creating sustainable, greener and 
well-connected communities 
• Collaborative working with partners 

and stakeholders will help to ensure 
a coordinated approach to 
minimising the impact of climate 
change and that we all focus on 
more sustainable forms of energy in 
the future 

Assessment of Local Well-
being 
 

principle to ensure that the needs of 
the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs. 

 
 

P
age 70



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

7 
 

• We are working in partnership with 
colleagues on the Ceredigion Public 
Services Board, for example, in the 
development of the Penglais District 
Heating Project where all public 
sector organisations in the locality 
will be able to take advantage of 
green solutions to energy 

Involvement 
Involving those with an interest 
and seeking their views. 

The Objectives have been identified 
through extensive analysis of evidence 
and engagement with residents, 
including the recent public consultation 
on the draft strategy and in 2021 the 
Regional Well-being Survey that was 
used to inform the Ceredigion 
Assessment of Local Well-being. The 
Council is committed to ensuring that 
the voices of all Ceredigion citizens and 
communities are heard and will actively 
seek the views of those whose voices 
are seldom heard.  
 
Some specific examples of involvement 
in the production of the draft Strategy 
are: 
• Consideration has been given to the 

ambitions of the new political 
administration 2022-27.  

• Development of the draft Strategy 
has involved Corporate Lead 
Officers and Corporate Managers 
who have taken part in workshops 
and help set the steps for delivering 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 
Workforce Plan 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion's Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan 
Asset Management Plan 
Ceredigion County Council 
Capital Programme 
Through Age Well-being 
Strategy 
Carbon Management Plan 
Census 2021 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 
 

• Conduct a ‘triangulation’ exercise of 
the evidence used to ensure that the 
objectives identified are evidenced.  

• Full public consultation conducted 
between 24th August and 30th 
September 2022. 

• All responses to the consultation 
have been considered and where 
necessary amendments made. 

• Develop the objectives through the 
lens of the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act, in particular identify 
how we can maximise our 
contribution to the national well-being 
goals and also ensure that we used 
the sustainable development 
principle to ensure that the needs of 
the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs. 

P
age 71



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

8 
 

the Corporate Well-being 
Objectives.  

• The draft Strategy has taken into 
account the Ceredigion Public 
Services Board’s Assessment of 
Local Well-being, which was 
produced following extensive 
engagement during 2021 including 
those with protected characteristics 
as defined under the Equality Act 
2010.  

 
Boosting the Economy, supporting 
Business and enabling employment 
• Private sector businesses, drivers of 

future economic growth are involved 
in identifying key priorities and 
strategies 

• Private, public and third sectors 
involved in shaping the emerging 
Growth Deal programme 

• Extensive engagement was 
undertaken in the development of 
the Economic Strategy 

Creating caring and healthy 
communities 
• Supporting the Ceredigion Youth 

Council as a forum for children and 
young people ensures the voices of 
young people across Ceredigion are 
heard 

Providing the best start in life and 
enabling Learning at all ages 

P
age 72



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

9 
 

• Public and private sector have been 
involved in developing the Through 
Age Model 

• The refreshed Strategic Equality 
Plan ensures that our actions are 
fair and inclusive to all 

• Younger people were identified as 
one of the groups disproportionally 
affected by the pandemic in 
Ceredigion, and as a result a range 
of specific support was put in place 

Creating sustainable, greener and 
well-connected communities 
• Everyone is involved and 

encouraged to make choices that 
will reduce costs now and protect 
the environment for the future 

Prevention 
Putting resources into 
preventing problems occurring 
or getting worse. 

The Council’s Corporate Well-being 
Objectives have been set in order to 
prevent problems from occurring or 
getting worse. These include 
addressing the effects of poverty, the 
issues of rurality and improving the 
wellbeing of people of all ages.  
 
Boosting the Economy, supporting 
Business and enabling employment 
• Increased economic opportunities 

will prevent further out-migration of 
skilled young people 

• Economic growth will prevent the 
future negative impact of migration 
patterns on Welsh language and 
culture 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 
Workforce Plan 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion's Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan 
Asset Management Plan 
Ceredigion County Council 
Capital Programme 
Through Age Well-being 
Strategy 
Carbon Management Plan 
Census 2021 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 

• Conduct a ‘triangulation’ exercise of 
the evidence used to ensure that the 
objectives identified are evidenced.  

• Full public consultation conducted 
between 24th August and 30th 
September 2022. 

• All responses to the consultation 
have been considered and where 
necessary amendments made. 

• Develop the objectives through the 
lens of the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act, in particular identify 
how we can maximise our 
contribution to the national well-being 
goals and also ensure that we used 
the sustainable development 
principle to ensure that the needs of 

P
age 73



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

10 
 

• Interventions in the Economic 
Strategy will prevent further growth 
in the productivity gap 

Creating caring and healthy 
communities 
• Supporting all learners helps to 

provide them with better learning 
and career opportunities 

• Working to raise income levels 
across the County will help in the 
prevention of in-work poverty 

• Supporting people through the 
Council Tax Reduction Scheme or 
Discretionary Housing Payments are 
key components of financial support 
to households through the cost-of-
living crisis and in preventing their 
situation becoming worse.  

Providing the best start in life and 
enabling Learning at all ages 
• The Through Age Model provides a 

coordinated approach to social care 
in order to prevent, reduce or delay 
the need for ongoing support, and 
allow people to remain in their own 
homes 

• Preventing homelessness and 
promoting independence remains a 
priority for the Council and is the 
most effective way of tackling 
homelessness 

• Progressing the Well-being Centres 
supports the ambition to create 
healthy communities 

Assessment of Local Well-
being 
 

the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs. 

P
age 74



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

11 
 

Creating sustainable, greener and 
well-connected communities 
• The first objective focuses on 

preventing further impact on the 
environment, particularly reducing 
carbon emissions, but also the 
impact on biodiversity across the 
County 

• Active travel is a key part of 
Ceredigion’s strategy to improve 
health and well-being, and thus 
preventing health related problems 
in the future 

• Being connected has come to the 
fore over the last two years, and 
investment in connectivity will help 
to create stronger and more resilient 
communities 

 
Integration 
Positively impacting on people, 
economy, environment and 
culture and trying to benefit all 
three. 

The draft Corporate Strategy has been 
developed to ensure that all services 
can make a contribution to the 
Corporate Well-being Objectives. The 
draft Corporate Well-being Objectives 
are interlinked and services will 
strengthen collaboration in order to 
work towards delivering them.  
 
Boosting the Economy, supporting 
Business and enabling employment 
• The Economic Strategy provides a 

shared vision and action for 
development of the local economy 
and the interventions contain in it 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 
Workforce Plan 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion's Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan 
Asset Management Plan 
Ceredigion County Council 
Capital Programme 
Through Age Well-being 
Strategy 
Carbon Management Plan 
Census 2021 

• Conduct a ‘triangulation’ exercise of 
the evidence used to ensure that the 
objectives identified are evidenced  

• Full public consultation conducted 
between 24th August and 30th 
September 2022 

• All responses to the consultation 
have been considered and where 
necessary amendments made. 

• Develop the objectives through the 
lens of the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act, in particular identify 
how we can maximise our 
contribution to the national well-being 
goals and also ensure that we used 

P
age 75



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

12 
 

will be delivered by a variety of 
partners and stakeholders over the 
next 15 years 

• Economic growth strategies 
integrated with other service 
provision, including education, skills, 
planning and infrastructure 

Creating caring and healthy 
communities 
• Better skills and jobs increase 

income levels and therefore allow 
the local economy to grow 

• The Arfor Programme to support 
and strengthen the links between 
economic growth and the Welsh 
language also strengthen each of 
the four pillars of well-being 
(economic, social, environmental 
and cultural) 

Providing the best start in life and 
enabling Learning at all ages 
• Public and private working together 

to maximise contribution to healthier 
Wales and other goals 

• Supporting people’s physical and 
emotional well-being impacts on all 
of the national Well-being Goals and 
helps to build stronger and more 
resilient communities 

Creating sustainable, greener and 
well-connected communities 
• Decarbonisation, improving the 

health of the County through 
encouraging active travel, and 

Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 
 

the sustainable development 
principle to ensure that the needs of 
the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own needs. 

P
age 76



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

13 
 

improving connectivity has clear 
benefits for maximising our 
contribution to all of the well-being 
goals 

 
  

P
age 77



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

14 
 

 

3.  WELL-BEING GOALS:  Does your proposal deliver any of the seven National Well-being Goals for Wales as outlined on the Well-being of 
Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015?  Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect, together with suggestions of how to mitigate 
negative impacts or better contribute to the goal.  We need to ensure that the steps we take to meet one of the goals aren’t detrimental to meeting 
another. 
Well-being Goal Does the proposal contribute to this 

goal?  Describe the positive or 
negative impacts. 

What evidence do you 
have to support this view? 

What action (s) can you take to mitigate 
any negative impacts or better 
contribute to the goal? 

3.1. A prosperous Wales 
Efficient use of resources, skilled, 
educated people, generates 
wealth, provides jobs. 

All of the Corporate Well-being 
Objectives capture the importance of 
developing the local economy in 
Ceredigion. In particular, the ambitions 
under the Boosting the Economy, 
Supporting Businesses and Enabling 
Employment aim to grow the local 
economy, support new and local 
businesses, create higher paid and 
skilled jobs, improve connectivity, 
tackle poverty and support learning. 
The combination of these will support a 
prosperous Ceredigion and Wales. 
Specifically, the ambitions we propose 
to undertake to achieve this are: 
 
• Progress the £110m Mid Wales 

Growth Deal 
• Support local businesses in the 

recovery from COVID-19 
• Support new and growing 

businesses in the County 
• Create new job opportunities for 

skilled young people 
• Promote equal opportunities in 

employment 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 
Workforce Plan 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion's Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan 
Asset Management Plan 
Ceredigion County Council 
Capital Programme 
Through Age Well-being 
Strategy 
Carbon Management Plan 
Census 2021 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 

• Conduct a ‘triangulation’ exercise of 
the evidence used to ensure that 
the objectives identified are 
evidenced  

• Full public consultation conducted 
between 24th August and 30th 
September 2022 

• All responses to the consultation 
have been considered and where 
necessary amendments made. 

• Develop the objectives through the 
lens of the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act, in particular 
identify how we can maximise our 
contribution to the national well-
being goals and also ensure that we 
used the sustainable development 
principle to ensure that the needs of 
the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own 
needs. 

P
age 78



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

15 
 

• Achieve sustainable economic 
growth 

• Pursue the Local Development Plan 
• Prioritise locally sourced produce 

and supply chains 
• Improve 4G Broadband 
• Equitable funding within the Arfor 

programme  
• Improve digital, transport and 

energy connectivity  
• Tackle poverty in Ceredigion 
• Support working parents in 

Ceredigion  
• Enhance the provision of skills and 

learning opportunities for people 
aged 16+ 

• Further develop apprenticeships in 
the County 

3.2. A resilient Wales 
Maintain and enhance biodiversity 
and ecosystems that support 
resilience and can adapt to change 
(e.g. climate change). 

All of the Corporate Well-being 
Objectives capture the importance of 
sustinability and protecting the 
environment for future generations. In 
particular, the Creating Sustainable, 
Greener and Well-Connected 
Communities Objective aims to 
achieve carbon net zero by 2030, 
improve biodiversity and create the 
infrastructure to support greener and 
cleaner means of transportation and 
energy. The combination of these will 
support a resilient Ceredigion and 
Wales. Specifically, the actions we plan 
to undertake to achieve this are: 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 
Workforce Plan 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion's Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan 
Asset Management Plan 
Ceredigion County Council 
Capital Programme 
Through Age Well-being 
Strategy 
Carbon Management Plan 
Census 2021 

• Conduct a ‘triangulation’ exercise of 
the evidence used to ensure that 
the objectives identified are 
evidenced  

• Full public consultation conducted 
between 24th August and 30th 
September 2022 

• All responses to the consultation 
have been considered and where 
necessary amendments made. 

• Develop the objectives through the 
lens of the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act, in particular 
identify how we can maximise our 
contribution to the national well-

P
age 79



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

16 
 

• Prioritising the reduction of carbon 
emissions and pursue our goal of 
becoming a Net Carbon Zero 
Council by 2030  

• Build on Ceredigion's excellent 
performance in waste management 
and recycling  

• Transition towards an Ultra-Low 
Emission Vehicle corporate fleet  

• Press for an urgent resolution to the 
phosphates issue that is preventing 
building in the Teifi Valley  

• Find solutions to flooding in the Teifi 
Valley  

• Pursue funding for coastal defences 
at Aberaeron and Aberystwyth and 
develop proposals for the next 
phase of the Borth coastal defence 
scheme and for the frontage at 
Llangrannog  

• Enhancing and protecting 
biodiversity for future generations 

• Deliver schools investment across 
the County, including the net 
carbon zero 3-storey extension at 
Cardigan Secondary School 

Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 

being goals and also ensure that we 
used the sustainable development 
principle to ensure that the needs of 
the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own 
needs. 

3.3. A healthier Wales 
People’s physical and mental 
wellbeing is maximised and health 
impacts are understood. 

All of the Corporate Well-being 
Objectives capture the importance of 
improving people’s physical and mental 
health and well-being in Ceredigion. 
The Council aims to improve well-being 
through the following ambitions in the 
Creating Caring and Healthy 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 
Workforce Plan 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion's Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan 

• Conduct a ‘triangulation’ exercise of 
the evidence used to ensure that 
the objectives identified are 
evidenced  

• Full public consultation conducted 
between 24th August and 30th 
September 2022 

P
age 80



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

17 
 

Communities and in the Providing the 
Best Start in Life:  
• Provide for the nursing care needs 

of our population  
• Deliver the Through Age Well-being 

Programme 
• Launch Well-being Centres across 

the County 
• Pursue initiatives to train and recruit 

social care staff 
• Progress Cylch Caron extra care 

facility at Tregaron 
• Welcome and support refugees 
• Develop carers’ breaks/ respitality 

and support the aspiration of 
creation of a National Care Service 
for Wales  

• Support community mental health 
facilities 

• Encourage people to get physically 
active so they can benefit from 
positive health and wellbeing  

• Develop an improvement plan for 
the strategic provision of facilities to 
increase physical activity levels in 
the county  

• Enhance the role of Community 
Connectors to support the 
development of resilient 
communities 

• Further develop participation events 
to ensure communities have a voice 

Asset Management Plan 
Ceredigion County Council 
Capital Programme 
Through Age Well-being 
Strategy 
Carbon Management Plan 
Census 2021 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 

• All responses to the consultation 
have been considered and where 
necessary amendments made. 

• Develop the objectives through the 
lens of the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act, in particular 
identify how we can maximise our 
contribution to the national well-
being goals and also ensure that we 
used the sustainable development 
principle to ensure that the needs of 
the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own 
needs. 

P
age 81



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

18 
 

• Support the Ceredigion Youth 
Council as a forum for children and 
young people  

• Developing Children and Young 
People’s skills, knowledge and 
confidence to be physically active 

• Support the provision of Free 
School Meals for primary school 
pupils  

• Support the provision of free 
childcare for all two-year-olds 

• Support the development of Theatr 
Felinfach’s facilities 

• Ensure that all learners’ identified 
Additional Learning Needs are 
supported appropriately to become 
independent and fulfilled individuals 

• Provide support for schools to 
successfully implement the new 
curriculum for Wales   

• Develop a Culture Strategy and 
Equity Strategy to support school 
and community wellbeing  

• Enhance the range of care and 
support options for looked after 
children and young people 

• Support increased provision for 
walking and cycling 

3.4. A Wales of cohesive 
communities 
Communities are attractive, viable, 
safe and well connected. 

The Council is acutely aware of the 
need to continue to strengthen the 
cohesiveness of communities and 
contains a number of actions to help 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 
Workforce Plan 
Economic Strategy 

• Conduct a ‘triangulation’ exercise of 
the evidence used to ensure that 
the objectives identified are 
evidenced  

P
age 82



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

19 
 

deliver this, particularly in relation to 
connecting communities. These are: 
• Working with stakeholders to 

support and sustain the public 
transport network, and identify 
funding/improvement where 
appropriate 

• Continue to inspect, maintain and 
repair the highway network subject 
to available funding 

• Securing increased funding for the 
delivery of a wide range of active 
travel improvements 

• Campaigning for active travel 
routes alongside the whole length 
of our trunk roads 

• Pushing for our smaller towns and 
rural areas to be included in Welsh 
Government's criteria for funding 
active travel routes. 

• Make it easier for people to leave 
their cars at home, thereby 
reducing carbon emissions by 
pushing for our smaller towns and 
rural areas to be included in Welsh 
Government's criteria for funding 
active travel routes. 

• Support the Bwcabus on-demand 
service in our rural communities 

• Make the case strongly for any 
Welsh Government ambitions to 
franchise public transport routes to 

Ceredigion's Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan 
Asset Management Plan 
Ceredigion County Council 
Capital Programme 
Through Age Well-being 
Strategy 
Carbon Management Plan 
Census 2021 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 

• Full public consultation conducted 
between 24th August and 30th 
September 2022 

• All responses to the consultation 
have been considered and where 
necessary amendments made. 

• Develop the objectives through the 
lens of the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act, in particular 
identify how we can maximise our 
contribution to the national well-
being goals and also ensure that we 
used the sustainable development 
principle to ensure that the needs of 
the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own 
needs. 

P
age 83



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

20 
 

include small locally based bus 
companies 

• Enhance the role of Community 
Connectors to support the 
development of resilient 
communities 

3.5. A globally responsible 
Wales 
Taking account of impact on global 
well-being when considering local 
social, economic and 
environmental well-being. 

In developing the Corporate Well-being 
Objectives the Council has taken into 
account of the Ceredigion Assessment 
of Local Well-being to ensure that 
we can make a positive contribution to 
global well-being. The most visible 
actions the Council plans to take is to 
continue to move towards becoming a 
carbon net zero Council by 2030 and 
the draft Strategy contains a number of 
steps that will be taken to achieve that.  
 
• Pursue our goal of becoming a net 

carbon zero council by 2030 by 
• All new schools built to achieve 

BREEAM Excellent 
• Rationalise the Council's building 

stock in order to further save 
carbon and resources 

• Enhancing and protecting 
biodiversity for future generations 

• Develop Leadership skills within our 
Children and Young People at the 
earliest opportunity 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Medium Term Financial 
Strategy 
Workforce Plan 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion's Welsh in 
Education Strategic Plan 
Asset Management Plan 
Ceredigion County Council 
Capital Programme 
Through Age Well-being 
Strategy 
Carbon Management Plan 
Census 2021 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 

• Conduct a ‘triangulation’ exercise of 
the evidence used to ensure that 
the objectives identified are 
evidenced  

• Full public consultation conducted 
between 24th August and 30th 
September 2022 

• All responses to the consultation 
have been considered and where 
necessary amendments made. 

• Develop the objectives through the 
lens of the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act, in particular 
identify how we can maximise our 
contribution to the national well-
being goals and also ensure that we 
used the sustainable development 
principle to ensure that the needs of 
the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future 
generations to meet their own 
needs. 

  

P
age 84



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

21 
 

3.6. A more equal Wales 
People can fulfil their potential no matter what 
their background or circumstances.  
 

In this section you need to consider the impact on 
equality groups, the evidence and any action you are 
taking for improvement.   
You need to consider how might the proposal impact 
on equality protected groups in accordance with the 
Equality Act 2010? 
These include the protected characteristics of age, 
disability, gender reassignment, marriage or civil 
partnership, pregnancy or maternity, race, religion or 
beliefs, gender, sexual orientation. 
Please also consider the following guide: 
Equality Human Rights  - Assessing Impact & 
Equality Duty 
 

Describe why it will have a 
positive/negative or negligible 
impact. 
 
Using your evidence consider the 
impact for each of the protected 
groups.  You will need to consider 
do these groups have equal access 
to the service, or do they need to 
receive the service in a different 
way from other people because of 
their protected characteristics.  It is 
not acceptable to state simply that 
a proposal will universally 
benefit/disadvantage everyone.  
You should demonstrate that you 
have considered all the available 
evidence and address any gaps or 
disparities revealed. 

What evidence do you have to 
support this view? 
 
 
Gathering Equality data and 
evidence is vital for an IIA. You 
should consider who uses or is 
likely to use the service.  Failure to 
use data or engage where change 
is planned can leave decisions 
open to legal challenge. Please link 
to involvement box within this 
template. Please also consider the 
general guidance. 

What action (s) can you take 
to mitigate any negative 
impacts or better contribute to 
positive impacts? 
 
These actions can include a range 
of positive actions which allows the 
organisation to treat individuals 
according to their needs, even 
when that might mean treating 
some more favourably than others, 
in order for them to have a good 
outcome.  You may also have 
actions to identify any gaps in data 
or an action to engage with those 
who will/likely to be effected by the 
proposal.  These actions need to 
link to Section 4 of this template. 

Age 
Do you think this proposal will have a positive or 
a negative impact on people because of their 
age? (Please tick ) 

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Children and 
Young 
People up to 
18 

   

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

People 18-50 
 
    

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Older People 
50+ 
    

The new Corporate Strategy 
aims to improve the well-being 
and quality of life for all 
residents in the County, and 
reduce inequality for all 
protected characteristics.  
 
All service users will be treated 
with respect irrelevant of their 
race, colour, religion, ethnicity, 
sex, age, disability, nationality, 
marital status, pregnancy and 
maternity, sexual orientation or 
gender reassignment. 
 
Some of the most visible steps 
that will have a positive impact 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 
Equality Act 2010 

• Full public consultation 
conducted between 24th 
August and 30th September 
2022 

• Analysis of the public 
consultation by protected 
characteristic 

• Regular assessment of the 
delivery of the Corporate 
Well-being Objectives 
through the new Self-
Assessment Report 

• Regular assessment of 
Business Plans through the 
Quarterly Performance 
Board 

P
age 85

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/assessing_impact_and_the_equality_duty_wales_0.pdf
https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/sites/default/files/assessing_impact_and_the_equality_duty_wales_0.pdf


Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

22 
 

on people because of their age 
are: 
 
• Develop and publish 

Ceredigion Strategic 
Equality Plan 2024-2028 

• Enhance the provision of 
skills and learning 
opportunities for people 
aged 16+ 

• Further develop 
apprenticeships in the 
County 

• Create new job 
opportunities for skilled 
young people 

• Provide for the nursing care 
needs of our population 

• Progress Cylch Caron extra 
care facility at Tregaron 

• Deliver schools investment 
across the County, 
including the net carbon 
zero 3-storey extension at 
Cardigan Secondary 
School 

• Ensure that pupils are 
confident communicators in 
both Welsh and English by 
the end of Key Stage 2 
(year 6) 

• Support the Ceredigion 
Youth Council as a forum 

• Publish the new 
Engagement and 
Participation Strategy 

• Proactively engage with 
protected characteristics in 
corporate consultations 

 

P
age 86



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

23 
 

for children and young 
people  

• Developing Children and 
Young People’s skills, 
knowledge and confidence 
to be physically active 

• Develop Leadership skills 
within our Children and 
Young People at the 
earliest opportunity  

• Support the provision of 
Free School Meals for 
primary school pupils  

• Support the provision of 
free childcare for all two-
year-olds 

• Tackle poverty in 
Ceredigion 

 

Disability 
Do you think this proposal will have a positive or 
a negative impact on people because of their 
disability? (Please tick )  

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Hearing 
Impartment 

   
Positive Negative None/ 

Negligible 
Physical 
Impairment 
    

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Visual 
Impairment 
    
Learning 
Disability 

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

The new Corporate Strategy 
aims to improve the well-being 
and quality of life for all 
residents in the County, and 
reduce inequality for all 
protected characteristics.  
 
All service users will be 
treated with respect irrelevant 
of their race, colour, religion, 
ethnicity, sex, age, disability, 
nationality, marital status, 
pregnancy and maternity, 
sexual orientation or gender 
reassignment. 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 
Equality Act 2010 

Full public consultation 
conducted between 24th 
August and 30th September 
2022 
 

P
age 87



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

24 
 

    
Positive Negative None/ 

Negligible 
Long 
Standing 
Illness     

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Mental 
Health 

   
Positive Negative None/ 

Negligible 
Other 

   

 
Some of the most visible 
steps that will have a positive 
impact on people because of 
their disability are: 
• Develop and publish 

Ceredigion Strategic 
Equality Plan 2024-2028 

• Promote equal 
opportunities in 
employment 

• Tackle poverty in 
Ceredigion 

• Provide for the nursing 
care needs of our 
population 

• Deliver the Through Age 
Well-being Programme 

• Launch Well-being 
Centres across the County 

• Progress Cylch Caron 
extra care facility at 
Tregaron 

• Support community mental 
health facilities 

• Ensure that all learners’ 
identified Additional 
Learning Needs are 
supported appropriately to 
become independent and 
fulfilled individuals 

 

Transgender The new Corporate Strategy Draft Corporate Strategy Full public consultation 

P
age 88



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

25 
 

Do you think this proposal will have a positive or 
a negative impact on transgender people? 
(Please tick ) 

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Transgender 

   

aims to improve the well-being 
and quality of life for all 
residents in the County, and 
reduce inequality for all 
protected characteristics.  
 
All service users will be 
treated with respect irrelevant 
of their race, colour, religion, 
ethnicity, sex, age, disability, 
nationality, marital status, 
pregnancy and maternity, 
sexual orientation or gender 
reassignment. 
 
Some of the most visible 
steps that will have a positive 
impact on people are: 
• Develop and publish 

Ceredigion Strategic 
Equality Plan 2024-2028 

• Promote equal 
opportunities in 
employment 

• Launch Well-being 
Centres across the County 

Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 
Equality Act 2010 

conducted between 24th 
August and 30th September 
2022 
 

 

Marriage or Civil Partnership 
Do you think this proposal will have a positive or 
a negative impact on marriage or Civil 
partnership? (Please tick ) 

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Marriage 

   

The new Corporate Strategy 
aims to improve the well-being 
and quality of life for all 
residents in the County, and 
reduce inequality for all 
protected characteristics.  
 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 
Equality Act 2010 

Full public consultation 
conducted between 24th 
August and 30th September 
2022 
 

P
age 89



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

26 
 

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Civil 
partnership 
    

All service users will be 
treated with respect irrelevant 
of their race, colour, religion, 
ethnicity, sex, age, disability, 
nationality, marital status, 
pregnancy and maternity, 
sexual orientation or gender 
reassignment. 
 
Some of the most visible 
steps that will have a positive 
impact on people because of 
their marriage or civil 
partnership: 
• Develop and publish 

Ceredigion Strategic 
Equality Plan 2024-2028 

• Promote equal 
opportunities in 
employment 

• Launch Well-being 
Centres across the County 

 

Pregnancy or Maternity 
Do you think this proposal will have a positive or 
a negative impact on pregnancy or maternity? 
(Please tick ) 

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Pregnancy 

   
Positive Negative None/ 

Negligible 
Maternity 
 
    

The new Corporate Strategy 
aims to improve the well-being 
and quality of life for all 
residents in the County, and 
reduce inequality for all 
protected characteristics.  
 
All service users will be 
treated with respect irrelevant 
of their race, colour, religion, 
ethnicity, sex, age, disability, 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 
Equality Act 2010 

Full public consultation 
conducted between 24th 
August and 30th September 
2022 
 

P
age 90



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

27 
 

nationality, marital status, 
pregnancy and maternity, 
sexual orientation or gender 
reassignment. 
 
Some of the most visible steps 
that will have a positive impact 
on people because of 
pregnancy/maternity: 
• Develop and publish 

Ceredigion Strategic 
Equality Plan 2024-2028 

• Promote equal 
opportunities in 
employment 

• Launch Well-being Centres 
across the County 

 

Race 
Do you think this proposal will have a positive or 
a negative impact on race? (Please tick ) 

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

White 
 

   
Positive Negative None/ 

Negligible 
Mixed/Multiple 
Ethnic Groups 
 
 

   

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Asian / Asian 
British 

   
Positive Negative None/ 

Negligible 
Black / African 
/ Caribbean / 
Black British     

The new Corporate Strategy 
aims to improve the well-
being and quality of life for all 
residents in the County, and 
reduce inequality for all 
protected characteristics.  
 
All service users will be 
treated with respect irrelevant 
of their race, colour, religion, 
ethnicity, sex, age, disability, 
nationality, marital status, 
pregnancy and maternity, 
sexual orientation or gender 
reassignment. 
 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 
Equality Act 2010 

Full public consultation 
conducted between 24th 
August and 30th September 
2022 
 

P
age 91



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

28 
 

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Other Ethnic 
Groups 

   

Some of the most visible steps 
that will have a positive impact 
on people because of their 
age are: 
• Develop and publish 

Ceredigion Strategic 
Equality Plan 2024-2028 

• Promote equal 
opportunities in 
employment 

• Launch Well-being 
Centres across the 
County 

• Develop a Culture 
Strategy and Equity 
Strategy to support school 
and community wellbeing 

• Welcome and support 
refugees 

 

Religion or non-beliefs 
Do you think this proposal will have a positive or 
a negative impact on people with different 
religions, beliefs or non-beliefs? (Please tick ) 

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Christian 
 

   
Positive Negative None/ 

Negligible 
Buddhist 
 
    

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Hindu 
 
    
Humanist Positive Negative None/ 

The new Corporate Strategy 
aims to improve the well-being 
and quality of life for all 
residents in the County, and 
reduce inequality for all 
protected characteristics.  
 
All service users will be 
treated with respect irrelevant 
of their race, colour, religion, 
ethnicity, sex, age, disability, 
nationality, marital status, 
pregnancy and maternity, 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 
Equality Act 2010 

Full public consultation 
conducted between 24th 
August and 30th September 
2022 
 

P
age 92



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

29 
 

Negligible  
   

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Jewish 
 

   
Positive Negative None/ 

Negligible 
Muslim 
 

   
Positive Negative None/ 

Negligible 
Sikh 
 

   
Positive Negative None/ 

Negligible 
Non-belief 
 

   
Positive Negative None/ 

Negligible 
Other 

   

sexual orientation or gender 
reassignment. 
 
Some of the most visible 
steps that will have a positive 
impact on people because of 
their religion, belief are: 
• Develop and publish 

Ceredigion Strategic 
Equality Plan 2024-2028 

• Promote equal 
opportunities in 
employment 

• Launch Well-being 
Centres across the County 

• Develop a Culture Strategy 
and Equity Strategy to 
support school and 
community wellbeing 

 

Sex 
Do you think this proposal will have a positive or 
a negative impact on men and/or women? 
(Please tick ) 

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Men 

   
Positive Negative None/ 

Negligible 
Women 
 
    

The new Corporate Strategy 
aims to improve the well-being 
and quality of life for all 
residents in the County, and 
reduce inequality for all 
protected characteristics.  
 
All service users will be 
treated with respect irrelevant 
of their race, colour, religion, 
ethnicity, sex, age, disability, 
nationality, marital status, 
pregnancy and maternity, 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 
Equality Act 2010 

Full public consultation 
conducted between 24th 
August and 30th September 
2022 
 

P
age 93



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

30 
 

sexual orientation or gender 
reassignment. 
 
Some of the most visible 
steps that will have a positive 
impact on people because of 
their sex: 
• Develop and publish 

Ceredigion Strategic 
Equality Plan 2024-2028 

• Promote equal 
opportunities in 
employment 

• Launch Well-being Centres 
across the County 

• Develop a Culture Strategy 
and Equity Strategy to 
support school and 
community wellbeing 

 

Sexual Orientation 
Do you think this proposal will have a positive or 
a negative impact on people with different 
sexual orientation? (Please tick ) 

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Bisexual 
 

   
Positive Negative None/ 

Negligible 
Gay Men 
 
    

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Gay Women 
/ Lesbian 
    
Heterosexual Positive Negative None/ 

The new Corporate Strategy 
aims to improve the well-being 
and quality of life for all 
residents in the County, and 
reduce inequality for all 
protected characteristics.  
 
All service users will be 
treated with respect irrelevant 
of their race, colour, religion, 
ethnicity, sex, age, disability, 
nationality, marital status, 
pregnancy and maternity, 

Draft Corporate Strategy 
Economic Strategy 
Ceredigion Draft Self-
Assessment Report 
Assessment of Local Well-
being 
Equality Act 2010 

Full public consultation 
conducted between 24th 
August and 30th September 
2022 
 

P
age 94



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

31 
 

Negligible / Straight 
   

sexual orientation or gender 
reassignment. 
 
Some of the most visible 
steps that will have a positive 
impact on people because of 
their sexual orientation are: 
• Develop and publish 

Ceredigion Strategic 
Equality Plan 2024-2028 

• Promote equal 
opportunities in 
employment 

• Launch Well-being 
Centres across the County 

• Develop a Culture Strategy 
and Equity Strategy to 
support school and 
community wellbeing 

 

Having due regards in relation to the three aims of the Equality Duty - determine whether the proposal will assist or inhibit your ability 
to eliminate discrimination; advance equality and foster good relations. 
3.6.2. How could/does the proposal help advance/promote equality of opportunity? 
You should consider whether the proposal will help you to:   Remove or minimise disadvantage   To meet the needs of people with certain characteristics  
 Encourage increased participation of people with particular characteristics 
All of the Corporate Well-being Objectives seek to establish a more Equal Ceredigion and Wales by ensuring equal opportunities for employment, 
housing, education, healthier lifestyles and sustainable communities, regardless of protected characteristic. The Council’s Strategic Equality Plan 
sets out how it will ensure that residents and stakeholders in Ceredigion have a voice to influence the development of policies and strategies that 
will affect their lives. One of the steps in the draft Corporate Strategy under Creating Caring and Healthy Communities is to update the Strategy 
for 2022-24 which will set out the actions we plan to take to achieve our equality objectives. There are a number of other steps in the draft 
Corporate Strategy that will also help to eliminate or minimise disadvantage and these are: 
 
• Develop and publish Ceredigion Strategic Equality Plan 2024-2028 
• Promote equal opportunities in employment 

P
age 95



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

32 
 

• Enhance the provision of skills and learning opportunities for people aged 16+ 
• Further develop apprenticeships in the County 
• Create new job opportunities for skilled young people 
• Provide for the nursing care needs of our population 
• Progress Cylch Caron extra care facility at Tregaron 
• Deliver schools investment across the County, including the net carbon zero 3-storey extension at Cardigan Secondary School 
• Ensure that pupils are confident communicators in both Welsh and English by the end of Key Stage 2 (year 6) 
• Support the Ceredigion Youth Council as a forum for children and young people  
• Developing Children and Young People’s skills, knowledge and confidence to be physically active 
• Develop Leadership skills within our Children and Young People at the earliest opportunity  
• Support the provision of Free School Meals for primary school pupils  
• Support the provision of free childcare for all two-year-olds 
• Tackle poverty in Ceredigion 
• Launch Well-being Centres across the County 
• Develop a Culture Strategy and Equity Strategy to support school and community wellbeing 
• Welcome and support refugees 
3.6.3. How could/does the proposal/decision help to eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, or victimisation? 
You should consider whether there is evidence to indicate that:  The proposal may result in less favourable treatment for people with certain characteristics   The 
proposal may give rise to indirect discrimination   The proposal is more likely to assist or imped you in making reasonable adjustments 
 
The draft Corporate Strategy and the proposed Corporate Well-being Objectives set out a series of steps to eliminate unlawful discrimination, 
harassment and victimisation. There is no evidence yet of their success as the Corporate Strategy has not been approved. However, if approved, 
the delivery of these steps will be reviewed and reported on annually through the new Self-Assessment Report, and adjustments made, where 
necessary, to ensure that the Council meets its Equality Duty and eliminates unlawful discrimination. One of the key steps to this will be updating 
and delivering the new Strategic Equality Plan for 2022-24.  
 
3.6.4. How could/does the proposal impact on advancing/promoting good relations and wider community cohesion? 
You should consider whether the proposal with help you to:   Tackle prejudice   Promote understanding 
 
The draft Corporate Strategy and the proposed Corporate Well-being Objectives set out a series of steps to promote good relations and wider 
community cohesion. One of the key steps to this will be updating and delivering the new Strategic Equality Plan for 2022-24, but there are steps 
across the four proposed Corporate Well-being Objectives that seek to eliminate inequality, tackle prejudice and promote understanding. There is 
no evidence yet of their success as the Corporate Strategy has not been approved. These steps are: 

P
age 96



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

33 
 

 
• Develop and publish Ceredigion Strategic Equality Plan 2024-2028 
• Promote equal opportunities in employment 
• Enhance the provision of skills and learning opportunities for people aged 16+ 
• Further develop apprenticeships in the County 
• Create new job opportunities for skilled young people 
• Deliver schools investment across the County, including the net carbon zero 3-storey extension at Cardigan Secondary School 
• Ensure that pupils are confident communicators in both Welsh and English by the end of Key Stage 2 (year 6) 
• Support the Ceredigion Youth Council as a forum for children and young people  
• Developing Children and Young People’s skills, knowledge and confidence to be physically active 
• Develop Leadership skills within our Children and Young People at the earliest opportunity  
• Support the provision of Free School Meals for primary school pupils  
• Support the provision of free childcare for all two-year-olds 
• Tackle poverty in Ceredigion 
• Launch Well-being Centres across the County 
• Develop a Culture Strategy and Equity Strategy to support school and community wellbeing 
• Welcome and support refugees 
 

 
 

Having due regard of the Socio-Economic Duty of the Equality Act 2010.  
Socio-Economic Disadvantage is living in less favourable social and economic circumstances than others in the same society.  
As a listed public body, Ceredigion County Council is required to have due regard to the Socio-Economic Duty of the Equality Act 2010. Effectively this means carrying 
out a poverty impact assessment. The duty covers all people who suffer socio-economic disadvantage, including people with protected characteristics.  
  
3.6.5 What evidence do you have about socio-economic disadvantage and inequalities of outcome in relation to the proposal?  
Describe why it will have a positive/negative or negligible impact.  
  
The Corporate Strategy and the Corporate Well-being Objectives have been developed to specifically tackle socio-economic disadvantage and 
reduce inequality as part of the Council’s duty under the Equality Act 2010. The Objectives have been developed by drawing on evidence such as 
the Assessment of Local Well-being that highlighted poverty, including in-work poverty and child poverty, as a key local and regional issue across 
West Wales. The new Objectives have been set with this in mind and contain a number of actions to reduce socio-economic disadvantage and 

P
age 97



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

34 
 

reduce inequality in all of its forms, and therefore contribute to a more equal Wales National well-being goal. These actions are listed below for 
reference.  
 
The main source of evidence is the Ceredigion Assessment of Local Well-being published in March 2020 by the Ceredigion Public Services 
Board. This document sets out a comprehensive picture of the state of well-being in Ceredigion according to the four pillars of well-being 
(Economic, Social, Environmental and Cultural). The Assessment considers socio-economic disadvantage and poverty and made the following 
conclusions: 
 
• The cost of living is increasing and there is a strong link between poverty and longer-term health.  
• Child poverty in Ceredigion is higher than average and has seen the second highest increase nationally since 2014/15. In Ceredigion 3,459 

children are living in poverty. This is key a regional issue affecting Carmarthenshire and Pembrokeshire as well. 
• The data available suggests that in-work poverty is increasing and remains a key challenge for households, particularly in Aberystwyth North, 

Cardigan & Aberporth and Aberystwyth South. 
• Poverty remains one of the biggest challenges for the County. Low earnings and incomes, affordable childcare, Universal Credit reduction and 

high housing costs/ housing affordability are the drivers of poverty in Ceredigion. 
 
It is important to note tackling poverty was already a council priority prior to the development of the new Corporate Strategy, and as part of the 
Ceredigion Public Services Board the Council is a contributor to the Poverty Sub-Group that is tasked with delivering the Tackling Hardship 
Strategy that was developed in July 2020 and monitoring trends in poverty to help guide the work of the Group and the actions that need to be 
taken. This has been an ongoing workstream for several years.  
  
What evidence do you have to support this view?  
  
 
The evidence is taken from the draft Corporate Strategy. The specific ambitions of the Strategy in relation to tackling poverty and wider hardship 
are listed below. These are all aimed to have a positive impact on socio-economic disadvantage and there are no anticipated negative effects. 
 
Action How the action will help tackle poverty/hardship 
Boosting the economy, supporting businesses and enabling employment 

P
age 98



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

35 
 

• Progress the £110m Mid Wales Growth Deal 
• Support local businesses in the recovery from COVID-19 
• Support new and growing businesses in the County 
• Achieve sustainable economic growth 
• Create new job opportunities for skilled young people 
• Further develop apprenticeships in the County 
• Promote equal opportunities in employment 
• Equitable funding within the Arfor programme  
• Tackle poverty in Ceredigion 
• Support working parents in Ceredigion  
• Enhance the provision of skills and learning opportunities for 

people aged 16+ 

• Growing the local economy will help to create job opportunities, 
attract new businesses and encourage existing businesses to 
expand.  

• Increase higher paid jobs and household incomes.  
• Provide opportunities for local people to stay and live in their local 

area.  
• Provide increased opportunities for young people to stay and live in 

their local area rather than move away in search of better career 
opportunities.  

• Investment in projects to deliver economic resilience and growth 
over the next ten years. Represent the region's interests and 
priorities for improvements to our local economy.  

• Deliver the Tackling Hardship Strategy and coordinate the work of 
the Poverty Sub-Group in tackling poverty in Ceredigion.  

• Reduce inequalities that exist in employment 
• Provide support for working parents to enter or return to the 

workforce, helping to boost confidence, income and well-being.  
• Develop the skills and opportunities for adults in the local economy.  

• Creating Caring and Healthy Communities 
• Launch Well-being Centres across the County 
• Welcome and support refugees from Ukraine 
• Develop carers’ breaks/ respitality and support the aspiration of 

creation of a National Care Service for Wales  
• Enhance the role of Community Connectors to support the 

development of resilient communities 

• Provides welcoming environment for the delivery of a range of 
support services to local people in the North, Mid and South areas 
of Ceredigion. Well-being Centres provide a facility that enhances 
the Council’s core offer of leisure provision with areas for meeting, 
consultation and treatment to contribute to improving the physical, 
mental and social well-being of the County's residents 

• Provides additional support to local people to access support 
opportunities in their area that can maintain and improve their 
wellbeing. Community Connectors can work with people and 
families to identify targeted solutions that meet their needs, such as 
accessing advice and assistance that is provided by the third 
sector, as well as identify appropriate services and groups, within 
their own communities, such as social groups that could help 
contribute to their wellbeing.  

P
age 99



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

36 
 

• Providing the best start in life and enabling learning at all ages 
• Ensure that all learners’ identified Additional Learning Needs are 

supported appropriately to become independent and fulfilled 
individuals 

• Enhance the range of care and support options for looked after 
children and young people 

• Support the Ceredigion Youth Council as a forum for children and 
young people 

• Support the provision of Free School Meals for primary school 
pupils  

• Support the provision of free childcare for all two-year-olds 

• Provide the support needed for all of Ceredigion’s residents to lead 
independent and healthy lives.  

• Provide the education and training to support people at all ages in 
their working lives and meet their career aspirations.  

• Ensures that the voices of younger people are recorded and used 
in the development of future services and support.  

• Provides regular healthy and nutritious meals to primary pupils 
from September 2022, important giving the rising cost of living 
which includes food.  

• Provides support to parents to help enable them to return or enter 
the workforce.  

• Creating sustainable, greener and well-connected communities 
• Work with local Housing Associations to increase our stock of 

social housing  
• Discourage the ownership of second homes in the county  
• Enable more young people to build their lifetime home 
• Press for an urgent resolution to the phosphates issue that is 

preventing building in the Teifi Valley 

• Provide more affordable housing opportunities to meet the needs 
of local people 

• Increase the housing stock to help relieve the pressure in the 
housing market and provide additional housing options for local 
people 

• Support younger people to live and stay in their local area rather 
than having to move away to seek affordable accommodation 

 
 
What action(s) can you take to mitigate any negative impacts or better contribute to positive impacts?  
  
As the Corporate Strategy is intended to reduce socio-economic disadvantage and inequality, there are no negative impacts of the Strategy 
identified at this stage. However, there are some key actions that will be taken to better contribute to positive impacts. These actions are to 
monitor the delivery of the Corporate Strategy and Corporate Well-being Objectives to assess their impact and adjust or add to them if necessary. 
These actions will provide crucial feedback on the effectiveness of the Corporate Strategy in reducing socio-economic disadvantage and 
inequality, and directing future actions put in place. Specifically, these are: 

1) The delivery of the Corporate Well-being Objectives is assessed annually as part of the Self-Assessment Report in November as required 
by the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015.  

P
age 100



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

37 
 

2) Part of the process of conducting the annual Self-Assessment includes a desktop analysis of a variety of evidence, including internal 
performance reports, external inspection reports and the results of consultation. This helps to provide essential feedback and independent 
views on the Council’s performance and on progress with the delivery of its Corporate Well-being Objectives.  

3) The delivery of business plans is assessed quarterly through the internal Corporate Performance Board Meetings. The business plans align 
with the Corporate Strategy and the Corporate Well-being Objectives and contribute the National Well-being Goals.  

4) The annual business planning process seeks to strengthen the Golden Thread and ensure that business plans support the delivery of the 
Corporate Well-being Objectives and national well-being goals.  

5) Ongoing public consultation/engagement with protected groups will provide important feedback on Council services and where inequalities 
may exist.  

 
  

P
age 101



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

38 
 

 

3.7. A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh 
language 
Culture, heritage and Welsh Language are promoted and 
protected. 
In this section you need to consider the impact, the evidence and 
any action you are taking for improvement.  This in order to ensure 
that the opportunities for people who choose to live their lives and 
access services through the medium of Welsh are not inferior to 
what is afforded to those choosing to do so in English, in 
accordance with the requirement of the Welsh Language Measure 
2011.  

Describe why it will have 
a positive/negative or 
negligible impact. 

What evidence do you 
have to support this view? 

What action (s) can you take 
to mitigate any negative 
impacts or better contribute 
to positive impacts? 

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Will the proposal be 
delivered bilingually 
(Welsh & English)?    

The draft Corporate 
Strategy is available 
bilingually.  
 
The steps and services to 
deliver the Corporate 
Well-being Objectives will 
be delivered bilingually.  
 
The specific steps in the 
Strategy to promote a 
vibrant culture and 
thriving Welsh Language 
are: 
• Deliver the Welsh in 

Education Strategic 
Plan (WESP) 2022 to 
2032 

• Ensure that pupils are 
confident 
communicators in 
both Welsh and 

• These will be the 
Council’s priorities for 
delivery over the next 
five years and will be 
reviewed annually in 
the Council’s Self-
Assessment Report 
which will include 
reviewing progress.  

• The Council conforms 
to the requirements of 
the Welsh Language 
Standards and further 
actions to promote 
bilingualism and the 
Welsh language are an 
integral part of the new 
Corporate Well-being 
Objectives 

• “Sustainable bilingual 
public services” are 
also part of the 

• Full public consultation 
conducted between 24th 
August and 30th 
September 2022.  

• Develop Corporate Well-
being Objectives based 
on evidence as identified 
in key document such as 
the Assessment of Local 
Well-being.  

• Review the delivery of the 
Corporate Well-being 
Objectives annually in the 
Self-Assessment Report 
and adjust as 
appropriate.  

• Review the delivery of 
Business Plans through 
the Quarterly 
Performance Board.  

P
age 102



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

39 
 

English by the end of 
Key Stage 2 (year 6) 

• Ensure that the 
principles of the 
Welsh Language 
Standards underpin 
the way the Council 
deliver its services to 
the public, so that 
service users are able 
to access services 
through the language 
of their choice 
naturally 

• Enhance the bilingual 
culture and ethos of 
the organisation, 
providing training and 
social opportunities 
for our staff to work in 
Welsh and increase 
their confidence in 
using the language in 
the workplace. 

• Develop the 
Ceredigion Welsh 
Language Strategy 
2023-28, in order to 
promote and support 
the vitality of the 
Welsh language 
within the County, to 
help meet the Welsh 
Government’s 

Council’s overall vision 
in the new Strategy.  

 

P
age 103



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

40 
 

‘Cymraeg 2050: A 
million Welsh 
speakers’ strategy. 

• Continue to push for 
the protection of 
Welsh-language 
house and place 
names 

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Will the proposal have an 
effect on opportunities for 
persons to use the Welsh 
language? 

   

The steps in the Strategy 
to promote a vibrant 
culture and thriving 
Welsh Language will 
contribute to creating 
opportunities to use the 
Welsh Language by: 
• Deliver the Welsh in 

Education Strategic 
Plan (WESP) 2022 to 
2032 

• Ensure that pupils are 
confident 
communicators in 
both Welsh and 
English by the end of 
Key Stage 2 (year 6) 

• Ensure that the 
principles of the 
Welsh Language 
Standards underpin 
the way the Council 
deliver its services to 
the public, so that 
service users are able 
to access services 

• These will be the 
Council’s priorities for 
delivery over the next 
five years and will be 
reviewed annually in 
the Council’s Self-
Assessment Report 
which will include 
reviewing progress.  

• The Council conforms 
to the requirements of 
the Welsh Language 
Standards and further 
actions to promote 
bilingualism and the 
Welsh language are an 
integral part of the new 
Corporate Well-being 
Objectives 

• “Sustainable bilingual 
public services” are 
also part of the 
Council’s overall vision 
in the new Strategy.  

 

• Full public consultation 
conducted between 24th 
August and 30th 
September 2022. 

• Develop Corporate Well-
being Objectives based 
on evidence as identified 
in key document such as 
the Assessment of Local 
Well-being. 

• Review the delivery of the 
Corporate Well-being 
Objectives annually in the 
Self-Assessment Report 
and adjust as 
appropriate.  

• Review the delivery of 
Business Plans through 
the Quarterly 
Performance Board. 

P
age 104



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

41 
 

through the language 
of their choice 
naturally 

• Enhance the bilingual 
culture and ethos of 
the organisation, 
providing training and 
social opportunities 
for our staff to work in 
Welsh and increase 
their confidence in 
using the language in 
the workplace. 

• Develop the 
Ceredigion Welsh 
Language Strategy 
2023-28, in order to 
promote and support 
the vitality of the 
Welsh language 
within the County, to 
help meet the Welsh 
Government’s 
‘Cymraeg 2050: A 
million Welsh 
speakers’ strategy. 

• Work in conjunction 
with Welsh 
Government to ensure 
capital investment to 
replace Theatr 
Felinfach with a new 
theatre and Centre for 
the Arts in Dyffryn 

P
age 105



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

42 
 

Aeron as approved by 
Cabinet. 

• Develop a 
comprehensive 
Culture Strategy to 
include Theatr 
Felinfach and 
Museum 
infrastructure. 

• We want Ceredigion 
to continue to be a 
place where people 
want to live, work and 
visit. We will work to 
understand the 
changing needs of its 
residents, workers, 
visitors, as well as the 
challenges 
represented by 
climate change to 
adapt in a changing 
World in the wake of 
the Covid 19 
pandemic and Brexit. 
Young people who 
wish to stay in 
Ceredigion, as well as 
those who may want 
to return to live and 
work here or move 
here for the first time, 
will see Ceredigion as 
a place of opportunity. 

P
age 106



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

43 
 

This will ensure our 
communities remain 
vibrant places where 
our culture and Welsh 
language can thrive.  

• Continue to push for 
the protection of 
Welsh-language 
house and place 
names 

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

Will the proposal 
increase or reduce the 
opportunity for persons to 
access services through 
the medium of Welsh? 

   

The Corporate Strategy 
will increase the 
opportunities for people 
to access services 
through Welsh. The 
Council is committed to 
its vision of ‘sustainable 
bilingual’ public services 
and the draft Strategy 
contains a number of 
actions to promote and 
create opportunities to 
access services in Welsh: 
• Increase recruitment 

in in-house Welsh 
speaking foster carers 

• Ensure that the 
principles of the 
Welsh Language 
Standards underpin 
the way the Council 
delivers its services to 
the public, so that 
service users are able 

• These will be the 
Council’s priorities for 
delivery over the next 
five years and will be 
reviewed annually in 
the Council’s Self-
Assessment Report 
which will include 
reviewing progress.  

• The Council conforms 
to the requirements of 
the Welsh Language 
Standards and further 
actions to promote 
bilingualism and the 
Welsh language are an 
integral part of the new 
Corporate Well-being 
Objectives 

• “Sustainable bilingual 
public services” are 
also part of the 
Council’s overall vision 
in the new Strategy.  

• Full public consultation 
conducted between 24th 
August and 30th 
September 2022.  

• Develop Corporate Well-
being Objectives based 
on evidence as identified 
in key document such as 
the Assessment of Local 
Well-being.  

• Review the delivery of the 
Corporate Well-being 
Objectives annually in the 
Self-Assessment Report 
and adjust as 
appropriate.  

• Review the delivery of 
Business Plans through 
the Quarterly 
Performance Board. 

P
age 107



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

44 
 

to access services 
through the language 
of their choice 
naturally 

• Enhance the bilingual 
culture and ethos of 
the organisation, 
providing training and 
social opportunities 
for our staff to work in 
Welsh and increase 
their confidence in 
using the language in 
the workplace 

• Develop the 
Ceredigion Welsh 
Language Strategy 
2023-28, in order to 
promote and support 
the vitality of the 
Welsh language 
within the County, to 
help meet the Welsh 
Government’s 
‘Cymraeg 2050: A 
million Welsh 
speakers’ strategy. 

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

How will the proposal 
treat the Welsh language 
no less favourably than 
the English language? 

   

The Corporate Strategy 
seeks to promote and 
increase the use of 
Welsh in all walks of life 
and at all ages. It will do 
this by: 

• These will be the 
Council’s priorities for 
delivery over the next 
five years and will be 
reviewed annually in 
the Council’s Self-
Assessment Report 

• Full public consultation 
conducted between 24th 
August and 30th 
September 2022.  

• Develop Corporate Well-
being Objectives based 
on evidence as identified 

P
age 108



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

45 
 

• Deliver the Welsh in 
Education Strategic 
Plan (WESP) 2022 to 
2032 

• Ensure that pupils are 
confident 
communicators in 
both Welsh and 
English by the end of 
Key Stage 2 (year 6) 

• Ensure that the 
principles of the 
Welsh Language 
Standards underpin 
the way the Council 
delivers its services to 
the public, so that 
service users are able 
to access services 
through the language 
of their choice 
naturally 

• Enhance the bilingual 
culture and ethos of 
the organisation, 
providing training and 
social opportunities 
for our staff to work in 
Welsh and increase 
their confidence in 
using the language in 
the workplace 

• Develop the 
Ceredigion Welsh 

which will include 
reviewing progress.  

• The Council conforms 
to the requirements of 
the Welsh Language 
Standards and further 
actions to promote 
bilingualism and the 
Welsh language are an 
integral part of the new 
Corporate Well-being 
Objectives 

• “Sustainable bilingual 
public services” are 
also part of the 
Council’s overall vision 
in the new Strategy.  

in key document such as 
the Assessment of Local 
Well-being.  

• Review the delivery of the 
Corporate Well-being 
Objectives annually in the 
Self-Assessment Report 
and adjust as 
appropriate.  

• Review the delivery of 
Business Plans through 
the Quarterly 
Performance Board. 

P
age 109



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

46 
 

Language Strategy 
2023-28, in order to 
promote and support 
the vitality of the 
Welsh language 
within the County, to 
help meet the Welsh 
Government’s 
‘Cymraeg 2050: A 
million Welsh 
speakers’ strategy. 

Will it preserve promote 
and enhance local 
culture and heritage? 

Positive Negative None/ 
Negligible 

    

Yes. The Corporate 
Strategy seeks to 
promote and enhance 
local culture and heritage 
by: 
• Enhance the bilingual 

culture and ethos of 
the organisation, 
providing training and 
social opportunities 
for our staff to work in 
Welsh and increase 
their confidence in 
using the language in 
the workplace 

• Develop the 
Ceredigion Welsh 
Language Strategy 
2023-28, in order to 
promote and support 
the vitality of the 
Welsh language 
within the County, to 

• These will be the 
Council’s priorities for 
delivery over the next 
five years and will be 
reviewed annually in 
the Council’s Self-
Assessment Report 
which will include 
reviewing progress.  

• The Council conforms 
to the requirements of 
the Welsh Language 
Standards and further 
actions to promote 
bilingualism and the 
Welsh language are an 
integral part of the new 
Corporate Well-being 
Objectives 

• “Sustainable bilingual 
public services” are 
also part of the 

• Full public consultation 
conducted between 24th 
August and 30th 
September 2022.  

• Develop Corporate Well-
being Objectives based 
on evidence as identified 
in key document such as 
the Assessment of Local 
Well-being.  

• Review the delivery of the 
Corporate Well-being 
Objectives annually in the 
Self-Assessment Report 
and adjust as 
appropriate.  

• Review the delivery of 
Business Plans through 
the Quarterly 
Performance Board. 

P
age 110



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

47 
 

help meet the Welsh 
Government’s 
‘Cymraeg 2050: A 
million Welsh 
speakers’ strategy. 

• Work in conjunction 
with Welsh 
Government to ensure 
capital investment to 
replace Theatr 
Felinfach with a new 
theatre and Centre for 
the Arts in Dyffryn 
Aeron as approved by 
Cabinet. 

• Develop a 
comprehensive 
Culture Strategy to 
include Theatr 
Felinfach and 
Museum 
infrastructure. 

• We want Ceredigion 
to continue to be a 
place where people 
want to live, work and 
visit. We will work to 
understand the 
changing needs of its 
residents, workers, 
visitors, as well as the 
challenges 
represented by 
climate change to 

Council’s overall vision 
in the new Strategy. 

P
age 111



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

48 
 

adapt in a changing 
World in the wake of 
the Covid 19 
pandemic and Brexit. 
Young people who 
wish to stay in 
Ceredigion, as well as 
those who may want 
to return to live and 
work here or move 
here for the first time, 
will see Ceredigion as 
a place of opportunity. 
This will ensure our 
communities remain 
vibrant places where 
our culture and Welsh 
language can thrive.  

• Continue to push for 
the protection of 
Welsh-language 
house and place 
names 

  

P
age 112



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

49 
 

4.  STRENGTHENING THE PROPOSAL:  If the proposal is likely to have a negative impact on any of the above (including any of the protected 
characteristics), what practical changes/actions could help reduce or remove any negative impacts as identified in sections 2 and 3? 
4.1 Actions. 
What are you going to do? When are you going to do it? Who is responsible? Progress 
Integrate the delivery of the Corporate Well-being 
Objectives into service business plans, i.e. 
ensure the business plans align and contain the 
steps in order to deliver the Corporate Well-being 
Objectives and maximise our contribution to the 
National Well-being Goals. (This is the Golden 
Thread).  

Every year during the business 
planning process (January - 
March) 

Corporate Lead 
Officers, Corporate 
Managers and 
Service Managers 
when setting 
business plans 

The Business Planning process was 
successfully relaunched following the 
COVID-19 pandemic with a new 
streamlined process. Overall, it has 
been a positive start to the 
performance journey, business plans 
align with Corporate Well-being 
Objectives, but further work is needed 
to develop and strengthen this further 
this further. There is also further work 
on strengthening some of the methods 
of monitoring their delivery such as the 
development of new performance 
measures. This work is in progress and 
will be an ongoing task annually as 
new business plans are developed.  

Monitor the delivery of service’s business plans 
regularly 

Quarterly through the 
Performance Board 

Corporate Lead 
Officers, Corporate 
Managers and 
Service Managers 

The Performance Board meetings 
have been restarted following the 
COVID-19 pandemic. Overall, it has 
been a positive start to the 
performance journey but there is 
further work to be done on developing 
them and the dashboards further. This 
is an ongoing action.  

Review the Corporate Well-being Objectives and 
the progress in implementing them annually to 
adjust them where appropriate, and amend or 
add new steps towards their delivery if necessary 
in service’s business plans 

Annually as part of the 
requirements of the Well-being 
of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015 and Local 

Performance and 
Research Team and 
sign off from 
Leadership Group 

Progress against the previous 
Corporate Priorities and Well-being 
Objectives has taken place through the 
Council’s Annual Report published in 
October each year. The last Annual 

P
age 113



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

50 
 

Government and Elections 
(Wales) Act 2021 

Report received an unqualified opinion 
in its compliance certificate in 2021. 
However, following changes to the 
legislation (the end of the Local 
Government Measure 2009 and the 
implementation of the Local 
Government and Elections (Wales) Act 
2021) this duty will be discharged 
through the new Self-Assessment 
Report in November each year. The 
first of these is in the process of being 
completed. This report reviews the 
progress made and identifies 
opportunities for improvement. The 
learning from the Self-Assessment 
Report is used to help review the 
Corporate Well-being Objectives and 
make amendments as necessary.  

4.2. If no action is to be taken to remove or mitigate negative impacts please justify why. 
(Please remember that if you have identified unlawful discrimination, immediate and potential, as a result of this proposal, the proposal must be changed or revised). 
 
There are key actions in place to mitigate any negative impacts highlighted in section 4.1 above.  
 
4.3. Monitoring, evaluating and reviewing. 
How will you monitor the impact and effectiveness of the proposal?   
There are both local and statutory processes in place for monitoring the Corporate Strategy, the Corporate Well-being Objectives and the delivery of 
the individual steps to ensure the Corporate Well-being Objectives are delivered and our contribution to the National Well-being Goals is maximised. 
These are: 

1) The delivery of the Corporate Well-being Objectives is assessed annually as part of the Self-Assessment Report in November as required by 
the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2015.  

2) Part of the process of conducting the annual Self-Assessment includes a desktop analysis of a variety of evidence, including internal 
performance reports, external inspection reports and the results of consultation. This helps to provide essential feedback and independent 
views on the Council’s performance and on progress with the delivery of its Corporate Well-being Objectives.  

P
age 114



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

51 
 

3) The delivery of business plans is assessed quarterly through the internal Corporate Performance Board Meetings. The business plans align 
with the Corporate Strategy and the Corporate Well-being Objectives and contribute the National Well-being Goals.  

4) The annual business planning process seeks to strengthen the Golden Thread and ensure that business plans support the delivery of the 
Corporate Well-being Objectives and national well-being goals.  

5) Ongoing public consultation/engagement with protected groups will provide important feedback on Council services and where inequalities 
may exist.  

 
 
5.  RISK:  What is the risk associated with this proposal?   

Impact Criteria 1 - Very low 2 - Low 3 - Medium 4 - High 5 - Very High 

Likelihood 
Criteria 

1 - Unlikely to occur 2 - Lower than average 
chance of occurrence 

3 - Even chance of 
occurrence 

4 - Higher than 
average chance of 
occurrence 

5 - Expected to occur 

Risk Description Impact (severity) Probability (deliverability) Risk Score  
The new Corporate Strategy/ 
Corporate Well-being Objectives 
are not approved 

3 3 9 

Not all priorities are covered by the 
steps to deliver the Corporate 
Well-being Objectives 

4 3 12 

Does your proposal have a potential impact on another Service area? 
 
Yes – the new Corporate Strategy and Corporate Well-being Objectives impact on all council services as they are required to deliver the steps in 
the Corporate Strategy in order to achieve the Corporate Well-being Objectives. All future strategies/policies of the Council will also need to take 
into account the new Corporate Well-being Objectives in their development and ensure they align. Similarly, the development of the annual 
Business Plans will also need to ensure they align. 
 

 
6.  SIGN OFF 
Position Name Signature Date 

P
age 115



Cyngor Sir Ceredigion County Council - Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 
 

An integrated tool to inform effective decision making 

 
 

52 
 

Service Manager Diana Davies   
Corporate Lead Officer Alun Williams   
Strategic Director Barry Rees   
Portfolio Holder Cllr Bryan Davies   

 
 

P
age 116



 

1 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY CO-ORDINATING COMMITTEE 
held at the Hybrid - Neuadd Cyngor Ceredigion, Penmorfa, Aberaeron / remotely via 

video conferrence onMonday, 26 September 2022 
 
PRESENT;  Councillor Keith Evans (Chair), Councillors Wyn Evans (Vice-Chair), 
Gwyn Wigley Evans, Rhodri Evans, Geraint Wyn Hughes, Chris James and Caryl 
Roberts 
 
Also in attendance: Councillor Bryan Davies, Leader of the Council, Councillor Alun 
Williams, Councillor Mathew Vaux, Councillor Keith Henson, Councillor Wyn Thomas 
(Cabinet Members).   Councillor Hugh Hughes. 
 
Officers in attendance: Elin Prysor, Monitoring Officer and Corporate Lead Officer, 
Sian Howys, Corporate Lead Officer and Statutory Director of Social Services, 
Naomi McDonagh, Partnerships Manager, Public Service Board (PSB), Diana 
Davies, Corporate Manager, Partnerships and Performance, Alun Williams, 
Corporate Lead, Policy and Performance, Harry Dimmack, Governance Officer, Nia 
Jones, Corporate Manager, Democratic Services, Lisa Evans, Standards and 
Scrutiny Officer and Dwynwen Jones, Overview and Scrutiny Officer; Carwyn 
Williams and Llinos Williams, Translators. 
 
 

(10.00  - 11.47 am) 
 

 
 

11 Welcome and Apologies 
  
The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting. 
Councillors Endaf Edwards and Ceris Jones apologised for their inability to 
attend the meeting. 
 

12 Disclosures of personal interest (including whipping declarations) 
Members are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any 
personal and prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained in this 
agenda in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members Code of Conduct. In 
addition, Members must declare any prohibited party whip which the 
Member has been given in relation to the meeting as per the Local 
Government (Wales) Measure 2011 
There were no disclosures of personal or prejudicial interests.  
  
 

13 CYSUR/CWMPAS Combined Local Operational Group Safeguarding 
Report Qtr 4 2021/22 
Sian Howys and Councillor Alun Williams (Cabinet Member) attended the 
meeting to present the CYSUR/CWMPAS Combined Local Operational 
Group Safeguarding report to Committee Members to ensure Members 
monitor progress of the CYSUR/CWMPAS Combined Local Operational 
Group quarterly management meetings. These are multi-agency 
management reports in relation to safeguarding children and adults in 

Page 117

Agenda Item 4



 

2 
 

Ceredigion during the period 1st January to 31st March 2022. They provide 
management information on action taken under the Wales Safeguarding 
Procedures. 
  
Sian outlined the main points as listed in the covering report.  A Member 
raised a concern that Child Protection referrals in the Aberystwyth area had 
doubled during the  quarter.  In response to the concern, it was explained 
that on occasions group safeguarding referrals can be made in terms of 
concerns, i.e. more than one individual in one family or in a peer group.  
There could also be seasonal factors.  Another Member noted that 12 
individuals had been removed from the child protection register and asked if 
there is an age limit that they are automatically removed from the register.  
The Officer confirmed this would happen when an individual turns 18 years 
old.  Concern was also raised that the data shows that not all review child 
protection conferences are being taken within the required  timescale. It was 
explained by the Officer that the workforce due to vacancies are under 
considerable pressure and are prioritising tasks A Member asked whether 
face to face reviews are now undertaken at Penmorfa and Canolfan Rheidol 
as were pre-covid.  It was confirmed that those offices have not resumed 
access to the public, however, other appropriate locations will be used for 
this purpose when required.  It was confirmed that use of offices is being 
reviewed on a corporate basis.  A reference was made to self-harming in 
children and the Officer confirmed that the data in the report is provided from 
the Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS) team, Hywel Dda 
University Health Board. The Chairman noted that as a Scrutiny Committee, 
Members have the right to invite any outside organisations in for questioning. 
The Healthier Communities Overview and Scrutiny Chair, Councillor Caryl 
Roberts, requested that a representative from CAMHS team attend a future 
meeting.  
  
Following discussion, Members were asked to note the contents of the report 
and the levels of activity with the Local Authority. Members agreed to note its 
contents so that the governance of the Local Authority and its partner 
agencies are monitored.  
  
The Chairman thanked Sian Howys for attending and presenting the report 
and also thanked the Officer concerned for providing an Executive Summary.  
  
 

14 Ceredigion Public Services Board (PSB) meeting held 12th July 2022 & 
Ceredigion Local Well-being Annual Report 2021-2022 
The Chairman welcomed Naomi McDonagh, Diana Davies and Alun Williams 
and the Leader of the Council, Councillor Bryan Davies (Cabinet Member) to 
the meeting to present the minutes of the 12th July 2022 PSB meeting and to 
present the Ceredigion Local Well-being Annual Report 2021-2022.  
  
Under Section 35 of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015,  Local Authorities are required to ensure their Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees have the power to scrutinise decisions made, or other action 
taken, by the Public Services Board for the Local Authority area in the 

Page 118



 

3 
 

exercise of its functions. The Public Services Board (PSB) is required to 
produce and publish annual reports relating to the delivery of their Wellbeing 
Plans. It is a statutory requirement of the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 that annual reports are scrutinised by local PSB Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees. Unlike with the assessments of well-being and the 
well-being plans, the PSB does not have to wait on the scrutiny panel 
recommendations to approve annual reports but, the Board is encouraged to 
use Scrutiny recommendations in developing work programmes and future 
reporting. 
  
During discussion, it was reiterated that it is important to include Local 
Members in any discussions/consultations relating to their ward as their input 
is valuable.  
  
Following discussion, Members were asked to receive the draft minutes of 
the Ceredigion PSB meetings held on the 12th July 2022, and to receive and 
note the Ceredigion PSB Local Well-being Plan Annual Report 2021-2022.  
  
The Chairman thanked the Officers and the Leader of the Council for 
attending and presenting the report. 
 

15 Report on the Council's use of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers 
Act 2000 (RIPA) 
Elin Prysor attended to present the report on the Council’s use of the 
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) as the Coordinating 
Committee Members are responsible for reviewing the Council’s use of 
RIPA. Reports are presented to the Committee on a 6 monthly basis; 
however; this report is presented 12 months following the previous report 
due to a lack of RIPA activity.   
  
It was reported that there has been no RIPA activity by any service of the 
Council during the period between the 13th August 2021 and the 4th July 
2022. Authorising Officers have confirmed that they have not considered any 
RIPA applications during this time.  
  
On the 28th February 2022, a half day training workshop was delivered by an 
external provider to relevant Officers on RIPA. It was reported that the IPCO 
report will be presented at the next Committee meeting.  
  
Following discussion, Members agreed to note the report contents.  

  
The Chair thanked Elin Prysor for attending and presenting the report.  
  
 

16 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2021/2022 
Lisa Evans reported that the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report highlights 
the key issues that have been considered by the five overview and scrutiny 
Committees during 2021/2022.  

  

Page 119



 

4 
 

There is a statutory duty on Local Authorities to publish an annual report 
relating to the work of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees. The Annual 
Report will be published in the Overview and Scrutiny webpage on the 
Council Website. 

  
Following discussion, Members agreed to note the information contained 
within the report prior to it being presented to Council on the 20th October 
2022. 
 

17 To receive a update from the Chairmen of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees and to consider the draft Forward Work Programmes 
Each Chair in turn provided an update on their respective Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees. Following discussion, it was agreed to include the 
following on each Forward Work Programme: 
Thriving Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee – Pay and Display 
Car Park Machines. 
Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee – to request a 
Council Tax Second Homes update report at the 19th December 2022 
Committee meeting; 
Healthier Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee – to invite a 
representative from the Child and Adolescent Mental Health Team (CAMHS) 
to a future meeting to provide an update on their service; and; to request an 
update relating to recruitment issues for the Porth Cynnal, Porth Gofal y 
Gymuned and Porth Ceredigion Cynnar teams. 
  
 

18 To confirm minutes of the Coordinating meeting held on 15 June 2022 
and to consider any matters arising from those minutes 
The minutes of the Coordinating meeting held on the 15th June 2022 were 
confirmed as a true record of proceedings and there were no matters arising 
from those minutes.  
  
The Chairman thanked Committee Members for attending and closed 
proceedings at 11:47am.  
  
 

Confirmed at the Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordinating 
Committee held on 14 October 2022 

 
Chairman:   

 
Date:   

Page 120


	Agenda
	3 Draft Corporate Strategy 2022-27
	Appendix 1 Corporate Strategy 2022-27
	Appendix 2 Corporate Strategy Consultation Feedback Report
	Appendix 3 Draft Corporate Strategy Integrated Impact Assessment

	4 To confirm minutes of the Coordinating meeting held on 26 September 2022 and to consider any matters arising from those minutes

